
Chamorro Land Trust Commission
Ktunision Inangokkon Tano’ flamoru)

IO. Box 2950 ffagâtna, Gudhan 96932 Phone: 639.5263 ext. 435 Fax: 639-5383

r
August 22, 2016

Eddie Baza Calvo
a ml if Gut4hwi.

TO: Honorable Eddie Baza Calvo
R Tenudo

- Governor of GuamL:&nlep:a,ii (u-rI; ,,-i- of (sun ban

FR: Michael J.B. Borja
Director

Commission Members

RE: CLTC Board meeting of August 18, 2016
Fescue] VA .Sablan

Chairman

Pursuant to Public Law 31 -233, transmitted herewith is the Chamorro Land
JosephLCruz Trust Commission Board meeting packet of August 18, 2016.
in-c Chairman

Please do not hesitate to contact 649-5263 ext. 435 if you have any
Amanda L.G. Santos questions.C øJiUi3Sir,fli’r

Gyongyi’Pika”P;Feferan 1f iL.cyr_z’?N111, —

(Thca,it) MICHAEL J.B. BORJA
(‘onu,pissic prier Director

Mkhael J.B. Borja
Ad,nin is!ratire Direct,, r

cc: Honorable Judith T. Won Pat, Edo.
Speaker, 33° Guam Legislature

Rei 4/4/20)6

N
/



Chamorro Land Trust Commission
Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ chamom,)

P.O. Box 2950 ffagdtña, Ct,dhun 96932 Phone: 649-5263 ext. 435 rca: 649—5383

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Eddie Baa Cairo
Gavensorofrntahan

Department of Land Management Conference Room
3’ Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning

Tenodo Thursday, August 18, 2016; 1:00 PMf.Wi,Itl ‘clflH,nlcrin:p ciHi IznwI

Public Notice: The Guam Doily Post on Thursday, August 11, 2016 and Tuesday, August 16, 2016

Con,,nkclpnIlenthen I. CALL TO ORDER

Pascuid + Sablan
C’ha,rnian

Joseph!. Crc: Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 16, 2D16 Meeting
F ice-C’hrn,nian

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
.4nianda LG. Sancos

(‘o-mnu.cs,c,ner

V. OLD BUSINESS
Gy.,ngyi ‘Pika”P. Fejeran 1. Status of previous agenda’s action items

(‘ow mis.cioner

VI. NEW BUSINESS
(‘ommvcm,ner 1. Request to decline leased land

a. Mark Duenas
Michael JR. Bor b. Cynthia Terlaje

A cbni,,istrattve Director
c. Stephanie Duenas

2. Loan Guarantee: Amparo Guerrero
3. Francisco P. San Nicolas — Agreement with US Fish & Wildlife
4. Linda Perez —Application process
5. Veronica Camacho — Request for one acre for farming
6. Daniel Babauta — Request survey authorization extension on Lot 8-33- 10, Inarajan
7. Bill Nos. 360-33 & 361-33: GPA requests for Talofofo land
8. Bill No. 362-33: Amot biodiversity conservation easements in Mangilao and Inarajan
9. GEFF Lease amendment
10. RH’ development for commercial properties

VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
1. Revenue collection report for June and July 2016

VIII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

Rev. 33 2016
IX. ADJOURNMENT



0
5

Ca

C

is) CHIEF JUSTICE ROBERT J. TORRES
- Chairman

GUAM POWER AUTHORITY
AThRIDAT ILEKIRESEDAT GUAHAN

P.O. BOX 2977 • AGANA, GUAM USA 96932.2977
Telephone Nsa 1571) Me 1054/55 or Facsimile se7l edemas

INVITATION FOR BID
This notice is paid for by the GUAM POWER AUTHORITY REVENUE & BOND FUNDS

Public Law 26-12

_______

TJME PLSdRIEIDN
2:00 P.M. Disposal of Wooden Power

Poles and Cross-Aims
08/18/2016 3:00 PM. Backup Protection Relays
08/18/2016 2:30 PM. Insulators

Bid packages may be picked up at the GPWA, Procurement Office, Room 101,1st floor, Gloria B. Nelson Public ServIces Building, 688
Rouee 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913. MI interested finns should register wIth GPA’s Procurement Oivlslon to be able to participate In the
bid. F(ease call our office at (6711648-3054(3055 to reglseec Registi’Jon Is rsq3llred to ñaure that all “Amendments and Special
Rem irdem’ are cammusicated to all bidders bxoughgfl the bid n PrzliWñâIt fritvicdorm am posted on the Auifiutfs
wthdte a!

in Berlin, Munzer Khattab could barely
say a word in German, lot alone fill out
a pile of forms in the language.

So overthe past year Khattab has not
only learned German but also worked
with five other Syrian refugees or
asylum seekersto designasmartphone
app to make forms less daunting,

The app, called Bureaucracy, to be
launched inianuary,willtranslatevari’
gus forms into Arabic and Eng(sh for
newcomers facing a piie of paperwork
ranging from registering with authori
ties to opening a bank account.

It wii also provide thorn with a map
with Berlin offices that all newcomers
need to navigate and deal with other
questions about red tape that can
leave asylum seekers in knots.

Khattab, 23, who fled his coastal
hometown of Latakia last year to avoid
military service in Syria, said the inspi
ration came as he ploughod through
more than a dozen registration forms
in German after arriving in Berlin.

Even when wo asked Germans
they had problems understanding the
forms’ Khattab told the Thomson
Reuters Foundation -in a telephone
interview. ‘If the Germans found them
unreadable, how could weread them?”

PUBLIC NOTICE
Guam Boast I Exaniires for Pbarmacy
Regidar Session Meetflg, Ttjirsda
August 18, 2015 at 7:30 AM at the
Tedaje Professional Building. 194 Hernan
Coder Avenue, 2nd Floor, SuIte 209
Health Professional Licensing Office
Board Conference Room, Hagatha, Guam.

For more Information please contact the
Board office at 735-7405 thni 12.
Persons wrth disabIlities needing special
accommodations may call Jimmy Sian at
735.7172 or the telecommunication
device for the Hearing/Speech Impaired
rroo at 649-1801. Executive meeting
may be caNed It .1ecerg

Kuini cia/i hningvkkvu Thun ‘Chcu;,vni
C’hcnnrn7’ci Jinc/ Trots! L’rn;ii;Ii.ssivn

16 WORLD ‘Nil We weld, a ne. and *1 to men and revises lOt ,rs.•- JawJes- Keep a alto cotland world piass arid sin In WSacthi sendans /rsa coctewepastguam.coit.

- w
The Chamorm Land Trust Connmilsion Board Mrrring will ho held on

Thursday, Augouc 18, 2016 as 1:00 pm. Deparvmanu olbnd Managrmcai:
conference room, 3rd FIr of rho nC Building, 590 S. Marine Corps Drive,

Tamuning.

Individuals rrquiring spedal accommodations, auxiliary aids or
aenvicca, may contact 649-5263 rat 436.

This ad paid for by Govrrnmrnr finds.::,.

-Ak.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
The Judicial Council of Guam will conduct its monthly meeting on
Thursday, August 18, 2016, In the Justice Monessa G. Laden
Appellate Courtroom located on the 3rd Floor of the Guam Judicial
Center, 120 West O’Brien Drive in Haghtha at 1100 p.m. The agenda
will be made available prior to the meeting.

Any person(s) needing special accommodations, auxiliary aids or
services. ptease contact the Administrator of the Courts at 475-3544, or
Joanna S. McDonald at475-3300.

oftheL
.YO&YsOUOtZYF ..

Syrian refugees create app to cut
through German bureaucracy

Joseph T Dsr,rns
CCu Chairman

N EWYORK(Thomson Reuters Foun
dation) — As a Syrian migrant arriving

GUAM POWER AUTH&RITY
ATURIDAT ILEKTRESEDAT GUAHAN

P.C. CDX 2977 • AGANA, GUAM USA 96932.2977
Thl.phone N.e (sill ela.30s455 or FacsimIle 16711 eda.lles

a
Job,, At 8e,arnre. p.r

cene,alMcsa1er

H INVITATION FOR BID
This notice is paid fdt by the GUAM POWER AUThORITY REVENUE & CIP FUNDS

Public Law 26-12

PI&DAIL
GPA-SS-003-16 09/06/2016

GPA-094-16 09/06/2016

PtSGRiFUQft
1000 kM. M.scei!aneoux Smplsro Salvage Bid

($25.00 Non-Refundable Fee)
3:00 PM. Group Operated Disconnect Switch Set

Bid parkages may be picked up at the GPWA. Procaremonl Office, Room 101, 1st floor, Gloria B. Nelson Public services BuIlding. 688 Route 15,
Margllao, Gaam 96913. MI interested firms should register with CPA’s Procurement DivIsIon to be utile to participate to the bid. flesae call our office at
(671) 648.3054 I 3055 to reetoter. Registrelini (a reqsirsd to ensure that dl “Mielidmenla and special Reminders’ are communicated to dl bIdders
thraughntn the bid proceaa.A Nan-Refundable palnem mimi be made at GM Cambreer Service Departnent pdotta beaaoce of dooumea
Procurement Inatuclora art posted on me Authority’s webste at httyl/guampoweraulodty.con’gpa..authorltylprxoremenUgptcurent..rlps.pbp#.

Joseph C Ournos
(CU Chairman

a
JohaM Renevenrr.P.E

Gernaiwonaqei

(MANDATORY)
948 NO.; PBEUID/5ffiLVISTh
GPA-086-16 08/11/2016

GPA-091-16
GPA-096-16

TiM Dt DArn
10:00A.M. 09/06/2016



WORLD ‘a, me veerita a slag,, aM WI ye men sMearer merely pleynra.’ —Jaque,. Keep upwlttr renecteval went ioyen ‘edeveeb In this eeceen.Send mylar thoeghlat onnreM@poal0uam.csa.

0

(Reuters) -The U.S. dmne efrike that
kOled Islamic Stat&s commander tar
Pjghanistan and Pakistan was the latest
blawtotheMidcleEast-ledmovemenVs
ambitionstoexpandinto a region where

• the long’establishedTaliban remain the
dominant Islamist force.

lsbn* State has enticed hundreds,
p&laps thousand of jihadist fighters
ii Afghardstwi and Pakistan to switch

i loyalty and has held a small swathe of
territory In the eastern Afghan prov

e ince of Nangarhar, where reader Hafiz

Saeed KMn was kiied on July 26 by a
U.S. drone, Washington confirmed late
Friday.

But outside that pocket of territory.
secwty officials and analysts say that
WaiWc State remains — for now — more
of a brand nam& thanacohesive miii
tant fate in nwch of the region.

Last month, IS’s self-declared
‘Khorasanovince” inMghanistanand
Pakistan claimed two especially deadly
bombings that each killed more than
70 people — one in the Afghan capita!,

Kab-jI, and the latest in the southwest-
em Pakistani city of Quetta last west

Yet Pakistani officials and indeperi
dent analysts have raised doet about
the IS claims especially for the Quetta
bombing — saying Ow more credible
claim for the suicide attack at a hos*
tel was by a Pakistani Taliban offshoot
iamaat-ur’Atuar.

ISIS is iocreasirgfy on the defensive
as it struggles to defend its shrinking
caliphate In Iraq and Syria, 50 It has a
strung incentive to show it’s still rele

PUBLIC NOTICE
Guam Board of Examiners for Pharmacy
Regular Session Meeting, Thursday.
August 18, 2016 at 7:30 AM at the
Terlaje Professional BuIlding. 194 Heman
Cortex Avenue, 2nd Flo% Suite 209
Health Professional Licensing Office
Board Confertnce Room, Hagatna. Guam.

For more Information please contact the
Board office at 735-7405 Pu 12.
ftrsor.a with dth ibes reedIng special
acnsonwthtons may cal Jumy Sian at
735-7172 Ct the teecomcrtrslloc
device for the HeaslnSpeech impaired
(TOO) at 549-1801. txeotve meeUr
ray be called it lwcessary.

Concessions
Parade Entry Fee
Queen’s Raffle ‘Ticket Sales
Sponsorships

Total revenues
Expensee:

Admin and Genera)
Awards
Committee Expenses
Donation a
Occupancy
Fireworks
Travel

cant by taking credit for somethng
it didn’t do,” said Michael Kugelman,
South Asia analyst for the Wondrow
Wilson Centee a U.S-based think tank,

Two years ago, lslwiic State was
the world’s hot new name in the eyes
of jthadists bent on using violence to
destroy secularinstilutions and inwosa
their harsh interpretation of Islam.

Jamaat-ur-Ahrar, in fad, at one point
swore allegiance to Islamic State’s
leader Abu Bakr al-eaghdadl in 2014
during a spat with the Pakistani Taliban
leadership.

Several monthslater, however,JA had
switched back to the Taliban banner,
and when it claimed responsibility for
the Aug. 8 suicide bombing in Quefta
it used its lull name “Tehreek-e-Taliban
Pakistan )amaat-ur-Ahrar.”

The fledgling IS movement in both
Pakistan and Afghanistan facts
challenges.

Varioen Taithan factions and their al
Qaeda allies — who vehemently oppose
aI-Baghdadi’s claim to lead a nascent
global caliphate — still control vast
overlapping networks of finance from
ophan, kidnappings and tates on asas
tinder their sway.

$ 498,585.00
$ 6,675.00
$ 83,656.00
$ 10,000.00

LQaQa

$ 125,966,00
$ 9,000.00

$ 250,644.00
$ 87,38300
$ 95,290.00
$ 42,000.00
$ 4,150.00
$ 622,433.00
$ 115,514.00)
$ 35,564.00
5 20050.00

Islamic State faces uphil! branding war in Afghanistan, Pakistan

Kin;,i.vio,, Inc nigokkon Tano ‘Chainen’u
‘hanrii flit I 7’rust C innii ist (on

Tins (lnassn,lrro Land Tnssc Commiruion Board Mccning will be held on
Thursday, August 18, 2016 as LiOO pm, Dcpacrmcnc of Land Managcmcnc
conference room, 3rd FIr. ofehe ITC Building, 590 S. Marinc Coips Drive,

Tamuning.

Individuals rcquiring opccixl sucommodasiono, auziliany aids or
novices, may comics 6495263 cxc 436.

Thiu ad paid fur by Covcrnmcnc Fands.

I4 DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE AND TAXATION
Govenndefce,a,

PS Be, 22057 Oar. Cu,e oKuzi • Td tan-yew las Be ma-ago

T’ PUBLIC NOTICE E&
The Banking and Insurance Board will hold a meeting on

Thursday, August 18, 2016 at 2:00 p.m.
at the Department of Revenue and Taxation Building,

Director’s Conference Room,
at 1240 Army Drive, Barrigada, Guam.

ARTEMIO B. ILACAN
Banking and Insurance Commissioner

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
The Judicial Council of Guam will conduct its monthly meoting on
Thursday, August 18, 2016, In the Justice Monessa G. Lujan
Appellate Courtroom located on the 3rd Floor of the Guam Judicial
Center, 120 West O’Brien Drive In Hagàtna at 12:00 p.m. The agenda
will be made available prior to the meeting

Any person(s) needing special accommodations, auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Administrator of the Courts at 475-3544, or
Joanna S. McDonald at 475-3300.

is? CHIEF JUSTICE ROBERT J. TORRES
ChairmanGUAHAN

ACADEMY
(:IIAR1I: R St II 001

Notice of Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of

GUAHAN ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL

Notice is hereby given that the Regular Meeting of flue Board
of Trustees is being called as follows:

Date: Tuesday—August 16,2016
Time: 6:15 RM.
Place: GAGS Board Administration Office

Suite 10, Castle Mall Mangilao, Guam

Individuals requiring special accommodations or services
should submit their request to the Board Liaison at 483-3044

or email at: info.gacsbot@pmail.com

Is/FE VALENCIA-OVALLES

GUAM LIBERATION HISTORICAL SOCIETY
(a non-profit organization)

Revonues:

Statement of Activities
For the year ended Oocomber 31, 2015

Total empenses
Revenues collecoed In exceas of expenses paid
Fund balances at beginning of year
FLMud balances at end of yearChairwoman, Board of Trustees



Chamorro Land Trusi Commission
(Kunilsion Inangokkon Tano’ Chamoru)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagdtfla, Cud/ian 96932 Phone: 649-5263 ext. 335 Fax: 639.5383

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
Department of Land Management Conference Room

3rd FIr., ITC Buidling, Tamuning
Thursday, June 16,2016; 1:07pm — 5:11pm

Ray Tenorio
U’ ci,:,’, of (huthcut

Com,nLcsion Memben

Pascual V.A. Sablan
C ‘/ulitnian

I. CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 1:07pm by Chairman Pascual Sablan.

II. ROLL CALL
Present were Chairman Pascual Sablan, Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz,
Commissioner Amanda Santos, Commissioner Pika Fejeran, Legal Counsel
Kristan Finney and Administrative Director Michael Borja.

Joseph I. Cruz
i,e C htii,niciii

Amanda LG.Sanws
(oto;u.csioner

Gyongyi’Pika” P. Fejeran
C ‘ommIsm,ner

(Vacant)
L’o,n,niscio,zer

Michael LB. Borja
Athiunisirative Director

Ret. 4/4/2016

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — May 19, 2016
Commissioner Amanda Santos moved to approve the minutes of May
19, 2016. Commissioner Pika Fejeran seconded the motion. There were
no objections, MOTION PASSED.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
1. Dayna Bamba — My name is Dayna Bamba.

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — Ms. Bamba just decided to appear before the
Board due to a certain situation with regard to the passing of her father who
left no beneficiary to his Chamorro Land Trust application. Because there are
like two sets of brothers and sisters and one side has minor children involved
her siblings decided to pass on any beneficiary rights they may have to their
sister Dayna. With regard to the minor children the mother agreed to also
pass on the beneficiary rights to Dayna Bamba provided that she lists one of
the minor child as a beneficiary on her application. So she’s just seeking the
Board’s approval for that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Dayna has siblings right and her mother is still
around?

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — You have brothers and sisters?

Dayna Bamba — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Maybe I can direct this question to Mr. Borja
with things like that don’t you think we should have some kind of a little
document that (interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

11 73

Eddie Barn Calvo
cc titiof Cin,ihcctt



Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well the question I would have is were the
affidavits signed and notarized by the siblings passing on the beneficiary authority over to
her?

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — Yes there was however because the household originally
contained the three minor children with a different mother, same father but different mother
is just to you know to I guess avoid any future issues with regard to the passing of any
beneficiary because the fact that Mr. Bamba which is the original applicant left no
beneficiary.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — In the past when we’ve had an issue like this and
I think we had one just recently when the deceased has no beneficiaries and there’s a
number of individuals who fall in line like maybe the children then they would have an
affidavit from each and every one of those potential beneficiaries to declare in an affidavit
that they are rescinding their desire to have control of the land over to a specific individual.
So this is what should happen as well just for the record so that it’s clear and there will be
no future disputes concerning that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So Ms. Bamba do you think you can provide that maybe in
the near future to the Chamorro Land Trust an affidavit from your siblings?

Dayna Bamba — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And I don’t think you have any problem with that right?

Dayna Bamba — No.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay.

Dayna Bamba — It’s just with the mother with the minors so she’s here today with us. This
is the mother of the three minors, same dad but just different, this is the mother. She’s
willing to do her part.

Renita Meno — I’m with the three minors and I was with the father when we had that land
where we were staying on Battulo Street.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Now minors are allowed to be a beneficiary so
long as there’s a guardian.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — What’s happening here I think is there are two sets of siblings
from same father different mother. She is the living from the first wife if I’m not mistaken
and there’s children from the second wife that are minors. So they all have to agree to give
it to one individual which she I think is requesting for. Are you willing to give up your
interest of your children as a guardian to her?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
- June 16, 2015

Q (3 2173



0 0

Renita Meno — Okay my point is at least one of my youngest is supposed to be isn’t it to be
a beneficiary with her? That’s all I’m asking.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — But what you need to do is you need to give up the interest first to
her and she can identify your youngest as a benefactor.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — There’s a house on this lot right? Is there
somebody living on this land?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Are you guys staying here?

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — It’s like abandoned.

Renita Meno — It’s abandoned.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Oh okay so you’re not living on the land.

Dayna Bamba — No not yet. There’s a foundation that was there already but the typhoon
had (didn’t finish).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And there’s only going to be one beneficiary
whoever becomes the lessee can only identify.

Dayna Bamba — I understand. So I came to an agreement (inaudible) yesterday.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay so provide the affidavits and it needs to be
notarized stating all of this and it’s all your brothers and sisters any off-spring.

Renita Meno — Even the minors? I have to be the one to (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — As the guardian being the mother yes on their
behalf naming them.

Renita Meno — So my daughter will be in the new under her name too with her.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No the lease will have one name.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — It will go to her if you agree and then she would have to identify
your youngest whoever you want her to identify as beneficiary so when she passes it goes
to them. But for her and another individual to be on the lease (interrupted).

Renita Meno — I know it has to be one.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Now you as the spouse of the deceased are you
eligible?

cLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

3 I 73



Renita Meno — Can I or?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Are you an eligible applicant?

Renita Meno — I never applied and I want to find out.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — You’re a native inhabitant of Guam?

Renita Meno — I’m not from Guam but I’ll just go ahead and make her be the beneficiary.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Alright so that’s what you need to provide before
we can move forward. It has to be clear all the way across every sibling.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay so the minors which is I think you (interrupted).

Renita Meno — I have minors yeah.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But you have minor kids so I guess you have to sign on
behalf of your (interrupted).

Renita Meno — Yeah the three minors.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — An affidavit giving it to her. Any questions from the floor?
Vice-Chair?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I don’t have any I have no knowledge of the issue.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s just a public comment.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — So when was this lease first started?

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — Just 2002.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — John make sure that you coordinate those things and once
everything is in order bring it in to us and we’ll give our blessing.

John Gumataotao (CLTC) — Yes sir.

Dayna Bamba - Thank you.

2. Jaynace Terrazas — I’m Jaynace Terrazas and she’s Germaine.
Germaine Quitugua — I’m going to speak on her behalf because she had surgery and I’m
known to be loud. I will speak for her. So my mali here was given property up in Yigo and
apparently she’s not able to build on the property because of the water access I believe is
a far distance and at the same time I believe the water company it’s not feasible with the
budget and all.

CLIC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 4173



0 0

Administrative Director Michael Borja — How much did they assess you the cost to run
water? How much do they think it’s going to cost to run the water?

Jaynace Terrazas — From what heard it’s a lot but there’s no water in that area.

Germaine Quitugua — There’s no water and power. And what about the access? So there
is an access into the property there’s already and easement there but there’s no pipeline for
water accessibility in Yigo. And I believe she was told it was something Phase II. All she
knows is that she’s not able to build on the property.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But what does she have in mind?

Germaine Ouitugua — I’m sorry sir what was that?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So what’s the intent?

Germaine Quitugua — Her request is to cancel her current lease and to be moved to
someplace where she’s able to continue to build.

Jaynace Terrazas — I already paid for the survey and everything. I am willing to give it up if
I have to.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Have she surveyed the property already?

Germaine Quitugua — Yes she has.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — It’s all recorded and everything?

Germaine Ouitugua — Yes.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — She does have a lease for 9210 Phase II. Phase us where they
have surveyed the property. Phase II was just a master plan. What it is is there is no
access to the property.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — What is the lot?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Tract 9210 the one right outside Andersen Air Force Base in the
back Phase II.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The one on the left?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Right if you’re going up to Andersen on Phase II. Phase I is
where there’s some infrastructure and roads. Phase II is none at all. So she’s coming here
to request to decline her property for another piece of property. I know Matt has sat down
with her and has identified some properties that we may be able to offer.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

5 I 73



Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — How many clients have we assigned to that area?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Not much in the Phase II area not much.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Chairman, question?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Well we’ll probably have the agent look into their request
and see what’s the possible site and then they can come back and (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No we’ll be able to assign her. For these issues
like we’ve done in the past you’ve asked for them to come forward so we bring forward
those who are declining so that it could be for the record how many declines they have. So
that you know we don’t go through this process with each, it’s documented when they have
a decline they’re allowed up to three.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Three?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Declines.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — And this is your first?

Jaynace Terrazas — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So they’ve already been working out a possible
replacement lot. But I want to note for the record that this is not an unusual or a unique
case when it comes to Chamorro Land Trust property. And as I noted in the testimony on a
recently introduced bill to authorize funding for another individual’s infrastructure placement
that that’s not a singular issue that that bill was assisting but it’s a multitude, thousands of
them that are in the same predicament and that the funding source was quite limited and
directed only to assist one constituent.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Do we have a process where we can package those that
are not able to develop their assigned lease so the department can just handle the
reassignment and bring forth to the Commission that these are the projected relocations
instead of the clients coming in individually? Can there be a statement from them and have
the department look into the criteria of them being relocated?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We can but some of these things you know in
some cases some of them may be ones that are from a long time ago where they’re now
coming forward after trying to do something (inaudible). Some may want to keep it as they
are and some may not. It’s up to them to come to us and tell us what they want. We’re just
bringing forward the clients that have expressed the desire to terminate an existing lease or
decline a proposed assignment so it’s a matter of record. So we’ll proceed I just wanted,
it’s just coming forward for your information. This will be her first decline.

cLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 6173



0 0

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So do I understand this correctly that they already surveyed
the property and have that survey recorded the whole nine yards?

Jaynace Terrazas — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And if we were for example to accommodate you to another
property where the infrastructure is close by are you ready to survey again?

Jaynace Terrazas — Yes sir.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I got a very simple question. In the event she terminates
from that site and someone else wants to inherit or request for that lease is the Department
authorized to charge the survey cost that she had paid? Because if we relocate her if she’s
willing to give up this survey cost and inherit another survey cost.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — I don’t think we are because the contract that
she engaged in is (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but what about the Department assigning
this lot that has already been surveyed?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — What’s going to happen though is if we identify another lessee for
that property we’ll still have them pay for services. They have to hire a surveyor to get the
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No but she already surveyed are we going to terminate that
survey?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No it’s recorded.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I know but who is going to inherit that cost if you reassign
the parcel with a recorded and approved map?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — What do you mean I don’t understand?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — She paid a surveyor, the map is legal, it’s recorded, we
assign somebody else in there, are we going to charge that individual the fee?

Margarita Borja (DLM) - Yes. It’s not going to be a full fee it’s just for a certification for the
surveyor to locate the boundary markers now.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s just relocation.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yeah that’s all.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — But the creation of that map is different.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

1 I 73



Margarita Borja (DLM) — It’s her request to (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but is the Department just (interrupted).

Margarita Borja (DLM) — That’s on her.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that I heard what she said.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — There’s no legal authorization for us to charge
individuals for it. Just like if and when we begin doing surveying of properties we don’t
assess the charge off to the person we’ve made other provisions.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but here is a person coming in after
spending a survey that is not feasible to build and then when we assign another person
there she’s going to inherit that approved map that she paid.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — But she’ll still pay a smaller fee than what Ms. Terrazas paid.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand the relocation versus creation of the approved
map it’s more expensive for the survey. I just wanted to bring that up.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I guess you have to come back and work with Margaret.
Margaret you’ve been coordinating with her right?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yeah.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay so get back to Margaret and (interrupted).

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Is there a need for her to come back again to the Board to, are
we approving the (interrupted).

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — She doesn’t need to come back. Now that you’ve declined
work with them and you can find another property.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay I guess the Chair needs a motion to approve her
request.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Motion to approve her first decline and be assigned
another property.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

-

-

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 8173



C C

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Ayes have it.

3. Germaine Ouitugua — Hafa Adal everybody I’m Germaine Quitugua and I am also in
the same situation as Jaynace. I applied back in 1995 I believe and I was issued a lease
about four years ago on Route 13. Right that’s Route 13?.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Route 3.

Germaine Ouitugua — I’m having the same situation. Actually after I was given the lease I
went in because I was told back in that time that I can go and start clearing and I did exactly
that. I had my machete and everything but each time I tried to build something they said I
couldn’t because there’s no water access, no power. It was just a fireball. It came to that
point where I came to the office and I went through the routes and asked what I’m
supposed to do or what can I do to cancel my lease and also be relocated where I can also
build on and I was told to come here and explain that you. So again my situation is almost
the same I believe.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So again to decline your existing lease and seek
a second lot.

Germaine Ouitugua — Yeah.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Are you aware of it Margaret?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yes. She actually just came by the office a couple of days ago
and we didn’t have enough time to put her on the agenda. So she asked that you know
whether or not she could come in and how and I told her she could. But we went ahead
and we assessed her situation and again we did show her some properties potential
properties so we’re working on it in anticipation that there is an approval from the Board to
decline.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Where is this on Route 3?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Right across from NCTAMS, Lot 10125 you know where the
pipeline and all that.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — And you surveyed your lot?

Germaine Ouitugua — Yes I did.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — The Chair brought up a good question like now both of you
surveyed the lot the lot has been recorded and let’s say we relocate you are you willing to

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

9 I 73



give us that signed document that you know let’s say there’s another recipient another
person interested on that lot that you’re willing to pass on that we could say survey?

Germaine Quitugua — If it’s going to benefit somebody especially if they’re less fortunate I
have no problem with that. I would like to make sure the land goes to good use and if
someone can make use of it then yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Director with all your experience do you think that’s wise?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well we don’t have any authorization to
reimburse for surveys done but (interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — No not authorization just to pass it on to another person.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Waiver of cost of survey.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well yes I mean if the land is already surveyed
and there’s someone who’s willing to go in there but you know it’ll probably be some piece
of property at this rate we wouldn’t want to assign any one just because of the nature of the
infrastructure problems.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And if we were to relocate you to a nearby infrastructure are
you willing to survey at your own expense?

Germaine Ouitugua — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay so are you done?

Germaine Ouigutua — I’m done.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So I guess we need a motion again to take into consideration
the request of Germaine Quitugua to relocate her to another nearby where the
infrastructures are. But you’re going to build a house right?

Germaine Quitugua — I’ll invite you over.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I move to approve the request to terminate her lease.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Germaine Quitugua — Yes I’m definitely going to build.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — A motion was made by Mr. Cruz, second by Mrs. Santos.
Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

(%_)
10173



0 0

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Ayes have it.

4. JR Gonzalo Fejeran — My name is JR Gonzalo Fejeran. I’m here to find out the
possibilities of relocating from Vigo to Dededo. The property is on my mom’s property and
I’m staying with here right now I’ve been helping her clear the property with all the trash.
It’s really hard for me to keep going back and forth. On top of all of that the property that I
was shown in Yigo by the Andersen road I found that it looks like somebody has been
there. I’m only there to clear it you know. I was told to find the markings so I found all the
marks then I found out that the person that’s next to me had backhoed all his land on the
property I was shown. So you know I want to see if it’s possible to go and just relocate to
my mom’s side. They came down to take a look at her property so I asked them if there’s a
possibility so that’s why Pm here to see. Her property is surveyed already and she’s willing
to I guess give half of that, give it up because I’m actually clearing that side although there
are a lot of things on that property that I’ve already taken care of most of it. There is one
thing I can’t take care of but I have reported it to EPA regarding a hole that was dug by
squatters that were on her land. They were already removed the squatters but they left a
lot of trash. What they did was they dug a hole with a backhoe and they dumped gas cans
in. So when I cleared the trash that they left there the first hard rain that came I stepped on
that soil and it sunk. The first thing that came out was fumes. So I made a report to EPA
and nobody responded yet but I figured maybe I can bring it up here too. But you know me
and my mom she’s thinking about doing that and then there is an issue on the property of
the survey. According to my mom and I’ve been with the surveyor and he showed me the
mark. The survey mark on the corner where she’s thinking to see if I can move there it’s on
the road. So I guess they were supposed to fix, she’s asking to fix that but you know I want
to see if I can relocate there to the section I’m clearing. On top of all the trash I’m finding
the neighbor that’s supposedly not supposed to be there he’s still dumping trash on that you
know. So if somebody can come take a look at it, let me know if it’s possible to move there.
I wouldn’t mind relocating although she did agree to give that section to me. She said you
guys were supposed to resurvey her property or take care of that issue first.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Do we have anybody here that’s aware of this
situation?

Jhoana Casem (DLM) — His mom is Virginia Tainatongo and from my knowledge
(interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — What’s the lot?

Jhoana Casem (DLM) — This is in Macheche. I’m not too sure exactly the lot number.

JR Fejeran — Kalamasa Street.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

11173



Jhoana Casem (DLM) — But the property has already been surveyed for an acre. Part of
the boundary is within the road and I believe Mr. Santos and Mr. Camacho have gone out
there themselves to see the area. So Mr. JR is asking if he can occupy I guess the other
half of the acre from his moms. I haven’t visited his area actually in 9210 but I visited the
mom’s lot and it looks like you know there’s a part there that’s cleared. I’m not too sure if
that’s exactly where Mr. JR wants to situate himself but he’s been coming, emailing and
asking if you know he can be on that property despite the fact that his mom surveyed the
full.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So the mom has a one acre lot, she’s willing to
cut it into half and then his application and transfer of his lease would go to the other half of
that lot subject to survey.

Jhoana Casem (CLTC) — Yes. I guess a retracement or (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No a resurvey.

JR Fejeran — Yeah because the one in Yigo it really does look like that person whoever
occupied the land next to me instead of taking their back hoe they back hoed it onto that
property I was shown and you can see the boundary line for it too but I did find the marks
on the property in Yigo.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Your lot in Yigo is an acre also?

Jhoana Casem (CLTC) — It’s 929.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Oh quarter acre. And how much of that is contaminated
with that discovery you reported to EPA?

JR Fejeran — I’d say about 50% and there’s also someone built a fencing there.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Of the land that your mother’s occupying?

Vice-Chairman Joseph — No, no the land that he’s assigned.

JR Fejeran — The one that I was assigned, I’d say like 50% of it was trash and people are
also dumping there. If I’m not mistaken that site was in the news for dumping trash. But my
mom’s property I’m clearing all the trash. The only thing I can’t take care is the one that
was dug. There are three holes that was dug there.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Within your mom’s place.

JR Fejeran — On my mom’s property and whoever the squatters were they were removed
and they left all that junk there. I’m the one cleaning it up so you know me and mom sat
down and she asked when they came by is there a possibility for me to come there.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 12173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — But what kind of debris that was there at your mom’s lot?

JR Fejeran — Oh man it was beds, refrigerators and the one that’s right now that’s
underground I’m guessing it’s all butane gas cans. I actually covered the area you know I
squared it off because every time I step on it you can smell the fumes from the gas cans.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So if you were to get half of your mom’s lot you’ll be
inheriting part of that contaminated lot?

JR Fejeran — Well I’m going to have to clear it out. Like I said I did email EPA about that
nobody responded.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Margarita can we have a site inspection report
done on this specific area to include photographs as soon as possible.

JR Fejeran — I didn’t go an inch down I went like a foot down on that hole when I stood in it.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We’re going to have some land agents come on
out to do a site inspection with photographs just to let you know. They’ll be in contact with
your mother to coordinate (interrupted).

JR Fejeran — And then when I spoke with the neighbor he said it’s not his trash but they’re
burning there on the corner. So I’m guessing I’m like I need to let you guys know this. My
mom’s not allowed to come today because she’s really sick right now.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — How much of the acre do you think is contaminated on
your mom’s side?

JR Fejeran — On my mom’s side I’d say 50%. I took majority of that out already.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So if we were to relocate you within a quarter acre you’ll
still be on a contaminated lot if your mother is already on a half acre.

JR Fejeran — Also you know she’s my mom so I wouldn’t mind being next to her.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but what I’m saying is we cannot assign
you now that you’re saying it’s a contaminated material there so (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So what we can do is just have that in a survey
to subdivide it and ensure that it’s identified in the as-built of where this possible area is at
as well so it’s for the record.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Because you can request to terminate your Yigo and
relocate to your mother provided that there’s acreage to be (didn’t finish).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

13 I 73



JR Fejeran — Yeah because even when they gave me the property in Yigo at the time I was
still clearing my mother’s property and like I said it was a lot of trash. I think even the
Mayor’s came and assisted to.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So work with the Department and see what they can work.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We need a motion here.

Margarita Borja (DLM) - Are we approving Ms. Tainatongo’s request to subdivide her
property or no?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Just see first how much of the lot it they can scheme out
what was contaminated within the area then we can parcel because it’s one acre right?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — So are we entertaining that now? No?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No we need to know what’s on the lot first.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Just on the lease the decline right just the decline.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yeah.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — We would also need to have her come in.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yeah okay.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — You want to make a motion just in case everything is all right
they can proceed without them coming back?

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I think the mother needs to come in.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — It’s the mother’s lease.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Yeah to say that she does want that to happen.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well she would have to provide written, she can
even provide it by an affidavit that says that she’s willing to yield half her (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — And we can give it to the Department to handle the request
from them.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Because they can be reduced down to two half
lots and then that will satisfy his application and his lease transfer.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — So they cannot be relocated to a place that is not
contaminated?

cLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 0 14173



0 0

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well we’re going to look (interrupted)

Commissioner Amanda Santos - What’s the use moving into that contaminated place?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — She’s already living there.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — The thing that bothers me is that he reported it to EPA and
EPA didn’t do anything.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that’s why we’ll get a site inspection and
report from the Trust and we’ll submit that as well. But you know it’s a matter of them trying
to track down who it is that may have possibly done it and there may be nothing that they
can do if they don’t know who it was except for making sure it gets cleaned up.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Remember when I called you up Mike, excuse me, the
refrigerators are still there, maybe almost 10. I cannot even enter my Land Trust and one
day they burn it down. There’s a fire that they set up to erase the evidence.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — We’re not going to make any motion, we’ll wait for those
documents.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Where’s Mr. Fejeran?

Jhoana Casem (CLTC) — He left.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Well anyway whoever’s the caseworker, Margaret, follow up
with him you know what we need okay especially from the mother.

V. OLD BUSINESS
Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I know it’s not on here but from the last meeting I think I
saw the OWA transfer of land (inaudible) that was put on a bill or several bills that went
through so then from there we have 180 days to work out the (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — But it hasn’t been enacted into law yet so it’s on
the session floor this week it’ll probably be approved by the Legislature, passed by the
Legislature this week and then enacted in the next 10 days after that. So when it is then
we’ll be sitting down to and maybe we can have a little working group to determine the
strategy in which you want to do in which direction you want to go in.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Is there a way we can lump that land transfer with the well
issue? Remember they came to us the last time for the well in Dededo or Vigo.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

15173



Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well I would like in fact there’s a 4 o’clock public
hearing at EPA hearing this afternoon to talk about wells. My hope was to try and attend it
if time permitting otherwise submit written testimony to express the concern that we have
that it would then negate our ability to use our surrounding properties if we don’t have any
kind of sewer infrastructure. And that we should have a position in that case where I have
not you know I don’t know if we really want to proceed in permitting this unless they put in
the infrastructure first so that it doesn’t stop us from using the rest of our lands and that’s
the issue there. I don’t want to be just prioritized and that’s what this public hearing today
with EPA was to establish priorities for wastewater infrastructure. That’s what I was going
to talk about is that you can’t you know the fact is many of the water wells exist on or very
near Chamorro Land Trust properties and so they’re going to be negating our ability to use
our properties if we lack the wastewater infrastructure on the properties. So I just don’t
want to be just prioritized they need to install it if they want to use the wells.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Okay. The last time we didn’t approve the well we just
gave them rights of entry to go look at it?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We haven’t even given them rights of entry.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Oh we haven’t okay. So it’s just an informational.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It was a discussion to talk about the ability to use
the property.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Okay. I think that’s also very important if you go to the 4
o’clock.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well I’ll try and provide written testimony as well.

VI. NEW BUSINESS
1. Guam Hals Angels Football Association — Request for relocation of easement
Margarita Borja (DLM) — Guam Hals Angels Football Association is here today to request
the CLTC Board to expunge actually or delete and relocate the proposed the 60 foot wide
easement and joint parking area for use by the Guam Hals Angels and the Guam Rugby
Club which was approved by motion by the Board on a December 2010 meeting. I know I
provided you with the packet but I’m going to go ahead and take from when the Board had
approved it just so that you (inaudible). Maybe Ivan can probably give you a little brief
history after I’m done with the staff report. So what it is Hals Angels was issued a 21 year
commercial license on August 1, 2002 for basic lot 100S7NEW containing an area of 51
acres which was inclusive at the time with the Wellengel School for the purpose of needed
sporting facilities to include but not limited to a football field, a practice field and related
and/or other sporting associated facilities and was further amended due to the commercial
license issued to Guam Rugby Club containing an area of 12 acres and the severance of
the Wettengel School encompassing an area of 15 acres which resulted in a decrease to
the Guam Hals Angels leased premises. In addition to the above a December 2010 CLTC

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

(_)
16173



0 0

regular meeting the Board approved to delineate a 60 foot wide road in between the Hals
Angels and the Guam Rugby Club to be used as an easement and joint parking use by both
Hals Angels and Guam Rugby Club. Also to maintain the 40 foot wide easement existing
power and water lines. Once again decreases the leased premises of the Hals Angels
Football Association. That is why Mr. Shiroma is here today to request the Board to
expunge the motion made by the Board in the December 2010 meeting to delineate the 60
foot road that was to be used as an easement and joint public parking between the Hals
Angels and the Guam Rugby Club. This request would not hamper the access for the
Guam Rugby Club which they have clear access along Lada Avenue and a portion of the
Hals Angels leased premises would also be given up for a joint public parking as shown on
the map. There is a map that we have that was created. With the approval of the Hals
Angels request it would clearly allow for the full utilization of a lot that they can finally call
the Hals Angels Field. I don’t know if Ivan you want to include anything?

Ivan Shiroma — I just know that at that same meeting I went in to protest the renewal of
license for Guam Rugby because of what Mr. Borja the previous Administrator had given
me. He gave me all the property there for our Association because Rugby didn’t meet their
contractual obligations as per contract, I was up against Mr. Arthur Clark he’s a full fledge
lawyer and I’m just a regular person and it ended up after the meeting they were talking
about the parking lot. I was there to protest the renewal and I didn’t know that they
approved this. I never agreed to it. I was there but I didn’t agree to them using part of our
inventory for a parking lot. Now it’s already been approved and I don’t know how that
happened.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I’d like to ask this question Mr. Shiroma are you here to
request to transfer the existing access to the most southwest of the property? Or are you
here to support I mean to request that the, are you here to support the transfer or you’re
here to request to transfer? Because you know whoever prepared this document if it’s you
Margaret you did a very good job and I went through it and I found on this document that
there was a document signed that that access has been transferred based on a document
they signed but I didn’t see any Commission’s approval. So really my question is are you
here to request to transfer or are you here to support the transfer? There’s a document that
came from Rugby and it was signed by God bless his soul Mr. Monte Mafnas of the transfer
of the access. I’ll go on record I never come across a document that there’s a lot of
documents missing, it’s a messy document really. I’m sorry I’m just quoting from what I
read you know it looks like the previous maybe Commissioners and management dropped
the ball on this one. I’m very disappointed. So what is your primary, according to the
agenda it says here request for relocation of easement. Are you supporting this or you’re
requesting to relocate?

Ivan Shiroma — Yes I’m supporting to relocate that easement to the backside the
southwest side that way they don’t have to come into my property and we’re sharing the
access to the area where there’s a lot of trash being dumped in my area also. There’s a lot
of copper theft going on. Right now I have all these about 2,500 blocks sitting there and
most of that is being taken slowly but surely because we share access. I’m not blaming
them but if I have full control then I can just blame myself for not protecting all my assets a

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

17 I 73



lot better. But right now anybody can go in there and there are some people that stay there
late at night which I have no control over but they’re in the backside of my property. I’d like
to point fingers but I cannot because there’s so many people that has access to that area
right now. If we just leave it up to me then I can just blame myself. I’ll put more fence up or
gate. But right now I went out of my way to reach out to the Rugby Club and gave them a
spare key so we can share access but I cannot control who comes there at night. There’s
people that goes there at night, they leave the gate open so everything is missing from my
place.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I believe on March 30, 2012 there was a letter from the Guam
Rugby Club Incorporated requesting you know that the access be transferred and so as the
parking and all those things so that’s what’s making me ask this question are you here to
support the transfer of the access or are you here to request transfer of access? Because a
document has been signed by Mr. Monte Mafnas in reference to all those access.

Ivan Shiroma — I need to be shown on the map Mr. Chairman because I’m kind of
confused, support and transfer?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Margarita can you come and talk about the map.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — What Mr. Sablan is talking about was the amendment to the
license agreement. What it is is Rugby is just quoting what had transpired in the December
2010 meeting that they would have access to this 60 foot that they had approved for
parking and all this. If you look at the map that I just provided you there’s a doffed line
easement on the bottom where it’s doffed that is what was approved. That’s the 60 and the
40 that was approved in the December 2010 meeting. What he’s requesting is
(interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Can you be more specific December 2010 what?

Margarita Borja (DLM) —2010 meeting by the Commission it was approved. What it is is
Mr. Shiroma, Hals Angels, had a lease for the entire portion so in that meeting the Board
said they will take away that 60 foot and return it back to the Trust so that they can make it
a 60 foot for joint use for public parking and easement for both clubs. Remember this is a
part of the Hals Angels lease. So what he’s coming in now is he wants for you to either
expunge it to remove that motion and delete it because there was a motion made right to
create that easement and take it out of this and put it back so that he can have the whole
area for his use.

Administrative Director Michael Sorja — What you have is you have two separate
entities, two separate defined lots, one rugby and one football. In this amendment in 2010
what you have is it’s signed by Monte and Peter Walls from Rugby who is taking away he’s
not even the signator of the football side of the lease but he’s agreeing that they’re going to
take away part of the land from the football lease. There should be a signator where the
football people should have said that they release that but there’s none. There isn’t that.
The agreement was with the Rugby to do it. So the issue here is the lot which is NEW-Re

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 18173



ii 0 Q

which belongs to the football people, NEW-5 belongs to Rugby, that they get their 60 foot
easement back under their control for their full use. The argument at the time was that the
rugby people had built some concrete section that’s right down here on this easement and
then they would have easy access to it. But they also always claimed that their access to
this should be through this Santa Monica Boulevard through some access cutting,
dissecting the football lease property to get to it when they already have Lada Avenue as a
fully developed road on the their side of the field. That should have always been their
access from the very start without any question but they wanted it to be from Santa Monica
Boulevard.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Is there a master plan for this particular facility or
conceptual plan that you’re planning to improve the remaining parcel that you have?

Ivan Shiroma — No there’s no master plan we threw that out the window a long time ago.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So your intent is to delete the 40 foot that runs right in the
middle of that parcel.

Ivan Shiroma — Yes.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — And I’m seeing this map and what about the 40 foot on the
west part?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — All the dotted lines there is to be deleted.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Are we going to recognize the agreement between Rugby
and Chamorro Land Trust when they created the access to license property that says
pending completion from the new access road on exhibit C?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But that’s the Director you know just mentioned when you
have a contract it’s between two or more people. What happened is the CLTC Mr. Mafnas
signed document between him and Rugby and totally left out (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand your comments but what I’m getting at is that
based on this map and based on this lease there is a legal 40 foot easement that runs
through that parcel.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — It’s not legal it was proposed by the Board.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No based on this drawing number that you provided me
under 403FY01, Document number, you have this 40 foot dotted easement that runs
through so that means this is a legal alignment within that lot being encumbered, the
approval of this map.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Where the utilities is?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

19173



Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yes so that’s a 40 foot. It says rights of way it says public
access and utility easement.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — But it was never severed out.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No it doesn’t have to be it’s a doffed easement it’s an
encumbered alignment.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Okay.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Until it’s severed out then you determine the acreage of
that 40 foot but right now it’s an alignment that was created under this FY403, 01.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — So what are you saying that we can’t delete?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — We cannot acknowledge the deletion if it’s already an
approved map is in place. What they need to do is get a surveyor present this to Land Use
Commission for deletion.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But we have to make a decision for them to move
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No I’m recognizing the approved map everything else is a
sketch even this one that we got provided where you have R6 being divided into four lots or
three lots, -8,-9 and R9. That’s just a sketch. Until such time that this map is addressed
deleting that 40 then we can entertain the Football Association saying you have been
granted deletion by the Land Use Commission it is now our turn to say a resolution to delete
this easement.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — How about the 60 foot that was approved by the, the doffed lines?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Well if it’s shown, it’s not shown on this FY so that 60 foot
is a future.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — It was something that was proposed by the Board and was
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I’m only relating to what was approved in this 403FY01.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — So Mr. Shiroma is here regarding the 60 foot.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Where is that 60 foot?

Margarita Borja (DLM) - This one all of this is what was approved by the Board in 2010,

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — That the Rugby Club signed for and it wasn’t their property.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 20173



0 0

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yes. So he’s asking for them to delete that or go back I don’t
know how you would delete it if it was made a motion. I don’t know if you have to you know
to (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — But the motion was done by the previous Board.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Margarita you want to explain what this is
showing us?.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — I just want to explain what Rugby Club has today. Rugby right
now in a lease has all of this, everything here to include this, this and this, I mean Hals
Angels I’m sorry. Hals Angels has this, this and this in a lease today. This is the rugby field
in a 2010 meeting the Board approved this 60 foot and the 40 to be used as a joint parking
and an access for both clubs. So they took this away and they also took this away.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that was already there.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — According to him it wasn’t right.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well according to the map we’re looking at it’s
there.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — When the Rugby came in they’re the ones that created this. Am I
correct?

Ivan Shiroma — Yeah they ran their water line.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — So everything was being catered to the Rugby at the time. So
now today he’s here to request that this easement that was approved by the Board to be
removed and give the easement for Rugby on Lada and the joint parking he’s willing again
to give this up out of his leased land for joint parking with an easement coming down this
way and then also this because there’s squatters. He’s willing to give this, this, this up if
you delete this and he’ll settle for all of this down here.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — You know what I don’t understand that 2010 meeting when
they created the 40 foot on the right side I mean on the left and the 60 foot for parking.
How is the parking (interrupted).

Margarita Borja (DLM) — What it was, it was designed to be I believe an access in the
middle and then parking and parking on the outskirts of it.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Within who’s lot?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

211 73



Margarita Borja (DLM) — Hals Angels. Everything was in Hals Angels so all he’s asking is I
don’t know expunge I don’t know if that’s the right word what was done in 2010 meeting by
the Board and give the access to the Rugby on Lada and he’ll give up for public parking and
he’ll also give this back to the Trust and then an easement coming in for public parking for
both clubs.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Where is the parking for the football, the proposed site? Is
it going to be within that rectangle or (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — NEW9 is the joint parking.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yeah but the access is in Lada.

Margarita Borja (DLM) - This is not existing today the parking right now.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No, no, no if we were to concur with that setting you have a
full blown rectangle lot for the football that’s why I asked if there is any master plan or
conceptual setting so that we can predict the development of that.

Ivan Shiroma — We’re trying to make a practice on that rectangular portion down there but
the parking is minimal. You put that 60 foot easement or whatever and that 40 foot you’re
squeezing me in again you’re limiting my (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand your concern but what I’m asking is if there’s
a game where would be the parking?

Ivan Shiroma — Everyone parks along the road along Santa Monica or along Lada.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s not a, to give a site for that type of activity and for
them to go on an off-street parking? That’s why I’m asking if portion of that western lot area
can be designated as parking then it’s within the site.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — This one, this?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No, no, no right there where that 40 foot the deletion of that
40 foot there.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — That’s in his lease.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but like I said if we see the masterplan
that they have I can okay let’s move it back but right now we’re just shooting that a practice
field, a football field, a game happens, where are we going to park?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well he’s been given this is his entire
(interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 22173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand, I understand all that.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So he’s designating his part to be parking right
there.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — But look at we’re going to go through Lada to park on that
parking lot because he’s going to delete the 40 foot on the alignment. It doesn’t make
sense to have an alignment of that 9 in Lada Avenue when your game is in front of
Wettengel.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — But it’s supposed to serve both Rugby and (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand that but what I’m asking is where would the
parking for the football because the football has a lot of clientele it’s not as the rugby does.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Rugby gets crazy too.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Well they’re both crazy but like I said where are we going
to put the parking is what I’m asking?

Ivan Shiroma — Nobody from day 1 planned for parking whether it’s Rugby or us. We
didn’t plan any of that we just planned to build our field. Rugby has that big piece which
was originally ours but somehow we were bypassed and this is why I’m so frustrated. They
got that big piece compared to what we have right now you see the difference. Nobody
planned for the parking to answer your question. So everybody parks along the road and it
lust happens to work.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Okay like I said if we see your outline of what your facilities
is going to look like after development we can turn around and recommend Rugby to take
half of his lot to create their own parking because the whole lot is not used as rugby okay.
And then at the same time the concept that you have is your practice going to be same
elevation as your football field?

Ivan Shiroma — No because that football is almost 100 feet high so we’re trying to level the
bottom there.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Exactly and where is the water draining from the field? Do
we contain our runoff within the field or I mean that’s another issue but what I’m saying is
that parking is where my concem is because we can give you the whole lot which is
(interrupted).

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — I’m sorry what I’m understanding you know you’re talking
about giving him the whole lot or, the lot is already leased to them. And so what their issue
is is that a piece of the property that was already leased to them has been essentially taken
away and made this access road and this parking without their involvement. So he’s
coming to the Commission and say how do we fix this and it sounds like his proposal to you

CLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16 2016

23 73



know he says if there is an issue with this then he is willing to give up a piece of the
property to address those issues but hes asking to be involved since he actually has the
lease of that property. The Commission wouldn’t have the ability to lease property to this
organization after it’s already leased to then unilaterally change what the property that is
assigned to him (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I understand but (interrupted).

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — So all of that is regardless of how he plans to lay out his
fields or to lay out his parking and all that. The property is already leased to him.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Okay.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Can I say something now? I stand to be corrected I
understand that Hals Angels was given all this land okay then I don’t know from nowhere
Rugby comes in to the picture am I correct so far?

Ivan Shiroma — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Without your knowledge.

Ivan Shiroma — We were bypassed.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay then now we’re talking semantic and technical
technicality I believe that Hals Angels should still have all well they were pushed and all
these lines were drawn. This belongs to Hals Angels this one too and so as this but Hals
Angels is still what do you call that willing to compromise that for the Rugby come through
Lada Avenue and they can come in here and use this as a parking space for them. And so
for them now if they were to put fence here you know to protect whatever investment they
have in here or if there’s a game for example for them they can always open this so they
can go this way but not for Rugby just to use this over because the minute you remove for
example open the gate the accessibility for people coming in is there and vandalism and of
course the copper wire is the most attractive. So am I right so far? Okay so as the legal
counsel said of course I recognize you Joe and I see your point that I guess we need to
make a motion to have this thing resurveyed and remove this because it’s already an
approved map. And also gentlemen this is where maybe the power, water line of course it’s
all underground passing through right that may be servicing also this.

Ivan Shiroma — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I don’t know if we have to get clearance from Public Works,
SPA, etc. to remove this access and just leave or I don’t know maybe we can say utilities
easement but we still can bury it in we still can play football above this. But it’s still we have
to resurvey and remove this and you know give the football their property and let them also
have an access and control here. So as Rugby they can have an access through here but
now through here because they have to you know secure their area. Now I came across

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 24173



0 0

document that says there is a small I think concrete house or small hut that was built for like
their contribution through the village whatever you call that improvement or contribution to
the village. They didn’t build it because they’re going to use it for dug out or what. They
built it way before you know for the contribution to the village. My only question is where is
the boundary of the Wettengel because I don’t want any encroachment too of the Wettengel
School you know. Are we using Wettengel boundary?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No. It’s already severed out.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Oh okay that answers. Really I read this over and over the
rugby and the football and I’ll tell you it’s the most messed document I ever came across.
Somebody dropped the ball here and it looks like you know now, I am not citing anybody
but it looks like somebody just robbed them this property and the new tenant is the one
calling all the shots. That’s why I’m kind of hesitant because I’ve seen, I came across
document that the previous Administrative Director signed document without the consent of
the Football Association you know and I believe that they should. So I think the Chair is
ready to hear two motions. One is to come up with maybe another map to remove this
access here because it’s already an approved this one is an approved map and give it back
to the football and the other motion is the access for the Rugby go through the Lada
Avenue and so as the football also they can go through the Lada Avenue. There are
houses here but we still can have this access here.

Ivan Shiroma — I don’t mind giving that up Mr. Chairman because there’s a lot of
Chamorros that are squatting there. I don’t know if they have Land Trust lease or what but I
have no problem and I will not chase them out.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Let us kick them out if we have to kick them out.

Ivan Shiroma — I’m willing to give it up just so we can have some kind of compromise
without them going through our property because that’s the problem that we’re having.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay, Mr. Cruz?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Okay are you ready for a motion?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yes. Oh wait, wait Mr. Cruz. Mrs. Santos you have any
further comments or anything? Pika?

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I think what we do today we have to make sure that we
engage with Guam Rugby so they know that we’re taking away the parking which shouldn’t
have happened anyway but we need to engage with them so that they know that’s the new
parking, this is your new access.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — It would be nice to go through that route but the document
that I came across was signed by Monte. There’s no such thing, there’s no communication

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

25 I 73



between the rugby and the football. I’m not citing, it’s just that I think the decision has to be
made by this body.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Yes I agree. I just want to make sure that we engage with
Rugby so they know what you’re doing for them and why we’re doing this.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And for the record we’re all new here that in the past there
were some decisions made but we overrule that you know. Because I’m really surprised
that (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So Mr. Chairman can we terminate the Rugby’s license?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I wouldn’t (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No, no I mean I’m only asking because we have a license
here and if we’re not addressing what’s in this license that was signed by Mr. Monte then
hey. I’m only asking how much leverage do we have on this license.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No that was just an amendment.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Nothing on the license the original on that (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No, no I understand but as the Commission since you’re
not recognizing this document can we terminate it?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I would not go to that extend but there’s nothing in those
documents (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — The amendment?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I mean no the one that Monte and Mr. (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That’s the amendment.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — That’s an amendment to Hals Angels lease.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — There’s nothing on the document about this one I checked
this to make sure.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — What document?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Well of all the document that they signed, the original and the
(interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 26173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Crux — So is it safe to say that the request for this deletion or this
removal of alignment is the 40 foot on the left side not the one on the middle? Margaret is
that the 40 foot that we’re identifying on this request is the one parallel with the gas line?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yes.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — And the 60 foot that goes between the two fields?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Uhmm and then I guess at a later date if we could they’ll go
before the Guam Land Use to try and remove that because I think in the end that’s what
you also want to remove that.

Ivan Shiroma — The center one.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And that one has to be done through a survey
and once that surveyor realizes what’s there he’ll probably give you advice because if there
are utilities in there already getting them moved is going to be more expensive.

Ivan Shiroma — I can tell you what’s exactly there and even the Morrison brothers will admit
there’s a service line (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Water and power.

Ivan Shiroma — Just water and no power line they’re using generator. But their service line
not the main Waterworks main distribution line because that distribution is parallel with
West Santa Monica because our meters share the same location along West Santa Monica.
So the only thing going through that road right now is their service line.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That restroom facility over on the Rugby side is it
on a septic tank and leaching field?

Ivan Shiroma — I have no idea on that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So this one there’s nothing power here other than
(interrupted).

Ivan Shiroma — There’s no power line.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Just water line.

Ivan Shiroma — There’s none from us and I don’t believe there’s any from theirs like I said
they use generator. This is where both our meters are our water meters are right along the
edge here in the sidewalk. So their service line goes like this and straight into their area.
Water only water service line not the distribution.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The meter is there right?

cLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

27 I 73



Ivan Shiroma - Yeah the meters are right here.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Crux — Is it a three quarter or two inch or one inch?

Ivan Shiroma — I think it’s a two inch water line.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Two inch water meter.

Ivan Shiroma — Yeah. So both our meters are here like I said. If it’s like GPA your service
wire cannot encroach over somebody’s property to get to your house. That’s like an aerial
easement infraction so basically he lust has his service line running in here.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So if we were to have this thing resurveyed so we can
eliminate this I’m pretty sure Guam Waterworks is going to question (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well who does that water serve?

Ivan Shiroma — Rugby.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Just Rugby.

Ivan Shiroma — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So they should have been bringing in their water
in from their access side which is Lada Avenue.

Ivan Shiroma — But even if you guys were to go ahead and give us back this piece I will not
ask Rugby to get your water line out because I know it’s going to be expensive. It doesn’t
bother us, it’s underground but it’s in our inventory or in my property if it was given back.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I also came across document that Rugby promised to do a lot
of things on his side and your side. Have they fulfilled that?

Ivan Shiroma — We’ll be here another hour if I explain what the agreement was.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — No you don’t have to I read already but did they fulfill all these
promises?

Ivan Shiroma — This is our original practice just a real quick history. This is our original
practice field that my dad cleared a long time ago in the 805. In order for Rugby to come
here and take this we had an agreement a town hall meeting with Senator Baza Calvo,
Marcel, go ahead we’ll give Rugby this just this piece. I don’t know how they got this. Take
this just build us a practice field over here again or somewhere. Build us a practice field
you guys keep this. Next thing I knew they got both this recorded officially under their name
before we got our license and we were here almost 20 years before these guys. Now we
have no practice field. I’m trying to build one here. When I saw this proposal I’m like wait a

cLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

(3 Q 28173



0 0

minute now I can’t even put bleachers or a press box because now you’re squeezing me so
I only have this to deal with and this one again.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — If you have this for example access wouldn’t that make it
substandard (interrupted).

Ivan Shiroma — You can’t have an official field if you take that 60 feet here and keep this.
Look at the difference we’re the original people that had activity here look at how much
these guys have now as opposed to us and we’re there 20 years before them coaching
kids. We’ve been doing community service before we even committed a crime. Yes I’m
willing to give this all of this up. Nobody questioned Rugby where do they park? Now
they’re going to be parking on our side?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Shiroma you close this side for example when it’s not in
use what’s your plan are you going to put fence and everything?

Ivan Shiroma — Yes I’m trying to control the location so nobody comes in and steal my
copper again.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Oh they steal copper?

Ivan Shiroma — Three times.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That size is 49,000 square meters the Rugby
side.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Ivan I just have one question about that I know there’s a gate,
there’s an entrance to the school is that something that can be closed off if anything?
Because I think do they use that as an access to go in the school.

Ivan Shiroma — Yes I don’t believe you should be parking in there where the kids are
playing because if everybody parks in there, I don’t make our Football Association park in
there. We practice there but we got permission from the principal. But when Rugby has a
game they go park inside there and who knows if there’s (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Is that gate back there that 60 foot easement
leads up too? Is that gate there for fire and safety purposes do you know?

Ivan Shiroma — I have no idea. I think all I see is the guys that do maintenance on the
grass.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No because the terrain, the terrain is bad on the back. I
don’t think a firetruck will enter (inaudible).

Ivan Shiroma — They have access from the school (inaudible) also.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

29 I 13



Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — I’m sorry you’re trying to find out if the school needs to
access that?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s the gate, it might be just you know for their
own exit.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay thank you Mr. Shiroma. The Chair is ready to hear a
motion and I think Mr. Cruz is (didn’t finish).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I move that the request for the deletion of the 60 and
the 40 be granted and the 40 foot on the center must be deleted as per Public Works
concurrence being that it’s a utility, it’s a private line if Public Works does not need it
for an access then subject to that.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Any discussions?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — On the -9 on the creation of this if we’re considering
parking for the Rugby and they got majority of the acreage why cut it up why not just leave it
to the remainder of the Football’s lease?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Why do they not have their own area for their
own parking?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Good question.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I mean the 40 some thousand square meters that Rugby
has they’re not utilizing the whole lot so we’ll deal with them when the time comes for
parking. But right now I don’t agree having a pan or an access and wasting this acreage in
there for another lot not unless they have another intent of leasing it, a different activity.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Then would you suggest that you keep that 40
foot access on the west side so they can enter from Santa Monica?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No because if it’s together with the P9 it’s one consistent
lot. You don’t need an access for that because it’s part of the basic lot.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Oh so you just keep it called R9 not a NEW-9.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So you keep it one lot so he can enter and exit
any way he wants.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Got you. You understand that what he said?

Ivan Shiroma — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Don’t see a reason why you have to have this
easement just so that everyone can park but it this is just one lot then you can have your
access in there any way you want.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — You can use it for your maintenance warehouse or
whatever. And then delete that 7191W and just take that 1,400 square meters and bring it in
instead of 116 for that 8 maybe just one hectare which is 10,000 square meters.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — So then Rugby would access the parking through their own.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — There’s no parking for Rugby we’re not considering the
parking for Rugby.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They have to consider their own parking.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I see.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — Before you vote to remove that access if the Commission
has an agreement with the Rugby group to provide that access even if there was an issue
with that as you had brought up before don’t you think that you would need to bring in the
Rugby group and involve them in this? Because I mean what’s going to happen if they find
out that if they had an agreement and without consulting them and just changed the
agreement that’s the same thing that happened with these guys. You’re going to create a
new problem (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well my question then would be while the
Commission in 2010 had apparently moved and passed a motion to take out a section of
the Football’s land to dedicate it for the benefit of the Rugby and by virtue of doing the
amendment and the Rugby people signed it isn’t that kind of like an invalid amendment?
Could it be found to be invalid or not really binding?

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — I would think so but where I’m saying is that whether that
agreement should have been made or not the Commission and I have to just you know
because I haven’t reviewed all of the details of the agreement either with the Football or
with the Rugby. I’m just saying if there is an agreement with the Rugby people then you’re
going to need to involve them before you just change your agreement even if the
agreement shouldn’t have been made to begin with.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

311 73



Chairman Pascual Sablan — I guess as a legal counsel I agree with you with that but if you
look at really the history of Rugby and the Football Association it looks like there’s always a
unilateral without the consent of the other party.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — Well it’s just that I mean you know if you’re making an
agreement with the Rugby Association to change the agreement you have with the Football
that’s not right but it’s also not right to make an agreement or you know to pass something
based on what these guys are saying to change your agreement with the Rugby people.
That wouldn’t be right either.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Okay the way I see the deletion it’s an encumbered
alignment within the basic lot of the Football. We are not reducing the acreage of the
Rugby. Everything is on the Football alignment and it’s only an encumbered.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — True but there seems to be some agreement between
the Commission and the Rugby Association. It sounds like you might be trying to change
that agreement without involving them. So I just want to caution you to make sure that
that’s not what you’re doing here.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Nothing yes thank you but you know what I was looking at the
latest agreement that was signed between Rugby and the late Mafnas there is nothing that
it says that that especially the (inaudible) alignment the 40 foot is part of the agreement that
CLTC has and the Rugby. I cannot find any.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — In fact in this addendum to the Football’s, Hals
Angels Association we more precisely now defined what the Football people have based on
the same survey map that the Rugby people used and nowhere on this map is this 60 foot
alignment. So when this document this addendum with the Rugby people had taken away
the 60 foot easement out of the Football it didn’t depict any map change which it would
have to have. It would have to have a survey map that would show it was approved. So
you know it doesn’t even have that kind of delineaty where there’s nothing there nor is it a
recorded addendum, amendment to the agreement. And then it’s involving another
person’s land without their signature on the amendment or their concurrence to the
amendment and they in turn in fact in that lease they used the same survey map 403FY01
to make their point with a sketch, a drawing of an exhibit showing where they wanted this
easement but that’s (interrupted).

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — Was the Rugby Club invited to be (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — In this meeting? I don’t believe so. But your
point is you know well taken they’re a party that’s involved in this but you know we’re all
talking about the same map. Each one of us are all talking about the exact same map in
which that 60 toot easement is not showing at all. So no one has gone forth to create one
that has a 60 foot easement. All they had was a, it doesn’t even look like well it’s some kind
of sketch.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 0 32173



0 0

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — All I’m trying to say is if there is an agreement between
the Commission and the Rugby people I would not recommend that that agreement be
changed or that you attempt to change it without involving the Rugby Club.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — They mention here the access this was I think 2011, access
to licensed property pending completion of new access road depicting on Exhibit C,
licensee it’s agents.. .and then mention the 40 foot okay pending because they want to go
through this process. This is only for me it was signed by Mr. Mafnas and signed by that.
Why weren’t the Hals Angels consulted if there is an agreement? I appreciate and I
understand as counsel that we should but it looks like as I said one way street here
whoever comes here and all those things. And believe me there’s a lot of documents
missing here and no action by the Commission. I feel like throwing up after I read all these
things. How it happened I don’t know.

Ivan Shiroma — Ms. Finney excuse me so if we do have another meeting Rugby is going to
come in here and say look I don’t agree with what you guys just did today. They’re going to
ask can we restore the 40 foot utility easement and the 60 feet. You guys are going to ask
me, and I say no I don’t want to restore it. So we’re back to square one right?

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — All I’m (interrupted).

Ivan Shiroma — Because there’s no agreement, there’s no agreement here made from the
last meeting. They never contacted me. They tried to shove that right through like they did
that they’re getting their license from day one. I was never called or my dad was never
called about them getting their license their original license. That’s what really upset us
because they only wanted half of that piece of property that they had up there but now they
double the size without us being called in.

Blu Shiroma — Can they do that? Is that legal if we have the lease can they (interrupted).

Ivan Shiroma — We didn’t have the lease.

Blu Shiroma — Huh?

Ivan Shiroma — We didn’t have the lease back then. Land Trust wasn’t even created
before that when we were having activity there.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No, no but in this whole chronological order it
looks like Hals Angels had the lease prior to Rugby for the piece of land.

Ivan Shiroma — No. I have my license here, 2008 from Mr. Borja it’s the only time I got it.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Right, right that’s what I’m talking about in 2008,
they’re in 2010 or the changes were made in 2010.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

33 I 73



Ivan Shiroma — Yes but they got theirs in 1993 or 1998 one of the two if you check the
record. They had it before us they had that piece surveyed and recorded before we even
got our license. That’s why I complained to Mr. Borja, Joe Borja I said how did these guys
get their license done without consulting my family?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay theirs is 2002.

Ivan Shiroma — I just want to stop deleting that’s it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Do you have the insurance, liability insurance?

Ivan Shiroma — No sir.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — No?

Ivan Shiroma — I’m not sure where my boundary was until just recently because I just don’t
know.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — That’s another thing that on the contract it says that they
have to have a liability insurance and what I would like to see is that the CLTC and whoever
purchasing that insurance will be the two party on that insurance. Because they always say
we’ll buy the insurance and of course they bought the insurance but later on a month later
they terminate. Anyway a motion has been made, second, discussion is over. Those
in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz - Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Aye, unanimously have the ayes.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I would like to make a motion to call Rugby in so that
they’re aware of our decision and (inaudible).

Ivan Shiroma — Thank you, thank you very much for considering us.

Chairman Pascual Sablan - Okay thank you too for coming. And be more aggressive
and be more (inaudible).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — You don’t want them to be aggressive.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — What I meant to say is we publish out the agenda if you see
anything or come to us.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q



0 Q

Ivan Shiroma — Another thing I have nothing personal against Rugby they’re doing good
just like we’re doing good with the youth kids for football. Wetre doing the same thing as
Rugby but the one thing I have over all of them is I am a Chamorro born and raised here.

Commissioner Amanda Santos - Thank you.

Ivan Shiroma — Thank you.

(Break 2:50pm — 2:59pm)

2. Guam Raceway coral extraction and other payments
Administrative Director Michael Borja — What we have is Guam Raceway, it was
authorized by both Public Law 24-141 and one of the sections in the statute for their lease.
They have approximately 252 acres or over a million square meters of land. The license
agreement was effective in 1998 for a period of 20 years. CLTC according to this is
supposed to be indemnified and there’s supposed to be a $300,000/si ,000,000 insurance
and the use of the property the licensor shall receive 50% of the value of extracted minerals
and materials removed from the property. According to the Public Auditor findings in 2012,
2013, 2014 and 2015 in each one of those annual audits they had a finding that noted the
exact same thing that the coral extraction royalties revenues were not evidenced by an
underlying agreement or documentation of royalty rates and the revenues were not
evidenced by verification of actual coral minerals extracted. The recommended course of
action for this was to establish policy and procedures for documentation and monitoring of
coral extraction and that was from the Public Auditor. Other findings include Public Law 30-
204 established an event admissions assessment requiring an admissions assessment of
10% of the admission price to be paid to the Government of Guam with quarterly reporting
to the CLTC and the Guam Legislature. And also we do not possess any verification of
insurance coverages specified in the license agreement. The recommendation that we
have is that there be a moratorium on all coral extractions until documentation and
monitoring procedures of coral extractions is established. The Guam Racing Federation
provide a validated and certified method of determining topographical terrain variances on a
monthly basis so we can verify the extraction of minerals. Guam Racing Federation provide
a validated and certified method of determining admissions assessment and pay the last
five years of admissions and commence quarterly reporting. Guam Racing Federation
provide insurance certification within 10 days. And provide notice of findings and
recommendation to the Guam Racing Federation via a resolution. Affached to this
document is the license agreement that was generated as well as the public law that
created the Guam Racing Federation and then lastly you have copies of each of the annual
findings from the most recent to the oldest in which this was a continued finding from the
Public Auditor. We had worked in the past to try and come up with a determination of the
coral extraction through some audited reports from Hawaiian Rock however that wasn’t
sufficient in the case of what the Public Auditor had required. They wanted to see for the
total not just for one specific company unless they were the only company doing it. I know I
had some discussions at one point with Hawaiian Rock where I pointed out the fact that
they were able to do some volume reporting on their side of the house with the use of a
drone unit that can verify volume differences through topographical surveys. Regardless on
how we’re (inaudible) either new technology or surveying I mean the fact is that the Office

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

35 I 73



of Public Accountability is requiring that we get these corrective actions in place. And since
this is the fourth consecutive audit report to show the exact same findings it stands that this
is really a very significant thing that we have to accomplish as well as the other findings that
I noted in the admission price and the insurance verification. So I present that and I believe
that the Guam Racing Federation had some items that they wanted to discuss as well
concerning the future use of the facility.

Henry Simpson (GRF) — We didn’t realize that the auditor for the last four years didn’t, that
the Public Auditor didn’t like the response from Ernst & Young as to the amount of coral that
was extracted. Since the beginning of grading that area we knew that there had to be
something in place we’ve been doing it now not for eighteen years but for about fifteen
years because in 1998 when we first got it it took us three years before we got all the plans
and permits and everything in place. We really started in about 2001 with Perez Bros and
at that time we counted trucks and they measured the loads and basically we went through
the process with the CLTC at that time and they were happy but then nobody, we never
heard from the Public Auditor about it at that time. And so as time progressed Perez Bros
stopped taking rock in 2007. Hawaiian Rock started taking the grading, started taking over
the grading there. And so we went through a different process with them for ascertaining
how much material was coming out of there. And actually they made it pretty easy because
they are on leased land where Hawaiian Rock is they lease land from the Bamba family.
And so their lease is audited quarterly by the Ernst & Young company for the Bamba family
because the Bamba family wants to know and gets paid on how much materials are taken
out of their property and how much materials are processed through their plant. So the only
way they can do that is they hired Ernst & Young to verify how much materials are being
used. One of those things that they check is outside materials because the Hawaiian Rock
plant is on the Bamba property the Bamba family gets a small percentage from outside
materials coming in. And that’s where we are the racetrack is the only one that they get
outside materials from and so that number came and so as they explained that to me I
thought that was a really good way of checking how many trucks came in however the
auditing firm decided to check the material. And so they gave me a copy of the audit report
I’ve been giving it in with my when asked how do we do it I’ve given them the Ernst &
Young report. It’s basically only a letter that says Hawaiian Rock has been accounting for
the material coming in in a proper manner and they spot check it and stuff. But I’d like to
introduce the fellows here from Hawaiian Rock and have them explain a little more about
how they do it. This is Frank Atoigue and Peter Errett. Frank is the compliance officer and
has been kind of in charge of figuring out how to make sure that these things are accounted
for properly. So since 2007 except for a very, very short time Hawaiian Rock has been the
only ones that have been taking material out of there. So we’ve been using their
accountability for it and I’d like to have him explain it to you as to how you guys do it.
Thanks Frank.

Frank Atoigue (HRP) — Well it’s pretty straight forward while the Ernst & Young they have
an audit they do their audit on us they come in quarterly to validate and verify that our
checks and balances are still playing or are still you know what it is. In a sense we got a
guy who counts the trucks literally that’s his soul mission in life is to count dump trucks
coming from the racetrack into our yard. Also the dump trucks and primarily our, we use

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q



0 0

rental trucks to bring the material in and they have their own job ticket that shows how many
loads that they are bringing in. They have to or those numbers has to validate or jive daily.
In terms of cubic yardage each truck is carrying Ernst & Young comes and randomly again
quarterly comes and validates that what we’re reporting in terms of cubic yardages is
accurate. There is a margin it’s never ever going to be 16 cubic yards every single time
there’s a variance plus or minus a yard or two maybe. That’s a pretty straight forward
system. Do we think that our rentals could be taking a load elsewhere for the sake of the
audit and not bring it to Hawaiian Rock? They could but it’s not practical. Keep in mind that
the material that they’re taking from the racetrack is literally blasted material. You’ll have
rocks that are probably minimum 6 to 12 inches in diameter you really can’t build anything
with it. So the likely hood of someone diverting it’s there but it’s highly unlikely.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — If I may point out the Public Auditor’s dispute is
not in the accuracy or the (interrupted).

Frank Atoigue (HRP) — Internal mechanism of Hawaiian Rock.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That Hawaiian Rock has with their information
but as Mr. Atoigue had mentioned is that basically they are counting the trucks that are
coming in from the racetrack and what the auditors wants to know are what are the trucks
going out of the racetrack. That’s what they want and that’s what the verification process
has to be. Now if there was just one sole company responsible on that end of the house
you know if it was just Hawaiian Rock that was the only one and they were able to verify the
count going out and it match the count that went in I mean that probably may be a practical
solution and an answer. But again their issue was that there was no verification of actual
coral minerals extracted and that’s what they were looking for. On the other side of the
house where an underlying agreement or documentation of royalty rates I mean that’s
something internal we have to discuss one on one to clear that specific issue under this
finding. But the big one is just the verification of what is actually extracted out and some
methodology that has to be in place that is you know certifiable. That’s what they want to
know. So it’s not to doubt that Hawaiian Rock’s counts of what they received is questioned
it’s just the counts of what are actually being trucked out of the racing track property.

Henry Simpson (GRF) — Well as I was saying since 2007 they have been the only one so
we’ve been basically using their count. I checked a couple of times and say they counted
trucks and then checked on the day because they give us a report how many yards coming
in each day and it checked out and so I basically left it alone especially after we got the
Ernst & Young report. We could probably ask Ernst & Young to do a spot check on trucks
leaving the track as part of this because right now as of this point in time again they are the
only ones that are out there doing any grading for us. They do have a drone system that
measures the ground but the part of what could be difficult for that is that there’s, one of the
minerals that they really like to grade from there is the Marianas limestone is really hard and
so what we’ve been doing is over excavating and they’re taking out that amount and we’re
puffing back a finer material that is suitable for the racetrack area. And so as the Racing
Federation we’ve kind of been stuck since 2007, 2008 once we were chose to be the firing
range everything pretty much stuck for us. So for the last six, seven years we really haven’t

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

37 I 73



been able to do anything out there because it wasn’t until last year on the record of decision
came out that they’re going to go to Andersen. The whole rest of the time they were out
there surveying, counting plants, doing all kinds of stuff and you know we’re going to take
that place from us. They always promised that they were going to build us a new track or
they’re going to you know give us some money. And you know in the beginning for about
the first year or so we really thought that they would take it and build a new track
someplace. And then finally as more public hearings went on and we got to talking to the
right people basically they’re idea of taking care of the racetrack was to give us, give the
Government some money to make us go away and that was how they were going to solve
it. Enough money for them to rent that area from the Government and they didn’t really
care where the racetrack went. So we’ve been under that for about the last six to seven
years. So just August of last year another company has applied to do grading out there and
because we only have two years left on our license we want to get as much done as
possible so we’re working with Smithbridge. But since we weren’t able to do anything for
the last seven years, two years ago the fadang tree became a threatened species so we’ve
been tied up with forestry now for the last eight months on how to protect the fading tree out
at the track and we haven’t been able to move forward even though we’re not under the gun
with military. So it’s been a really challenging situation for us going forward. And so what
we would like to ask is that possibly we talk to Ernst & Young or maybe the CLTC could ask
Ernst & Young or could ask the auditor what should we ask Ernst & Young to make this
something that you’ll be happy with. Because I don’t think that’s the word that’s unhappy
with the accounting of it it’s mainly the auditor but if you could ask the auditor what else
could Ernst & Young do to verify what we’re doing is correct. I’m wondering if that could be
a solution.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well yes I mean we’re going to try and go at any
angle we can to satisfy whatever their needs are but it’s just to date we still haven’t been
able to give them something that they want. I have to defer back to my Program
Coordinator who works directly with them to handle that and figure it out. But we want to
definitely come up with some solution and it’s absolutely important. I think the quicker we
can come up with the solution the better it is for all of us right. So it’s something that we
need to move forward on. But in the interim you know one of the items I put up here is just
as a point is we could just stop everything until we can get this down but that puts the fire
under your seat to make it work and it puts the fire under our seat too because we don’t
want to see a stop in our revenues either. But we need to get this thing cleared up once
and for all. I’ve come from a side of the house where you know just getting a singular
repeat write up the next consecutive year was really very, very bad but for four audits in a
row that’s just not acceptable. The Commission does have to have a course of action. As
Administrative Director I have to have a course of action for these findings so we need to
really move hard and fast on this thing as quickly as we can. I’d be happy to work with you
one on one with this but I needed to apprise the Commissioners as well on where we’re
going to be going on all of this.

Henry Simpson (GRF) — We would ask that you not again not stop basically what we’re
doing there and stop the grading process and (interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 0 38173



0 0

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Can you give some kind of affidavit to note that
the sole extracting company at this time is Company A?

Henry Simpson (GRF) — We can do that.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And then Company A can provide these kinds of
validated certified and audited documentation to show that. That’s a good start to get them
to move forward on at least (inaudible) and you guys don’t have any issues with something
like that. So that they can you know we at least have some presentation of proof that there
is no other and you’re doing it through an affidavit you know that there are no others that
are entering in and coming out with vehicles with loads of material.

Henry Simpson (GRF) — You may see ABAD’s trucking or some of the other trucks going
out of there with loads of coral but they’re hired by Hawaiian Rock to (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So note it in an affidavit that they will only be
solely contracted and again maybe it might even behoove us to have something in some
way you know a listing of the vehicles that are going out that matches with the list of
vehicles that are going in so that there’s some kind of cross check. Or to do it on a random
spot check basis during the highest times of the extraction. We need something that’s
going to be good and whatever we come with we’ll definitely coordinate with the auditor to
determine that that’s going to (interrupted).

Henry Simpson (GRE) — What makes them happy.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — I passed out the maps here of the track. This first one is what
we’re planning to build what we’re trying to build out there. It’s a formula three road race
course it’s the main course with the stock car track, the uproad track and drag racing track.
The second picture is the overlay over what’s been done already so far. Then the third is
actually these spots on here are a plan for maybe windmills out at the track. We would like
to propose a dual use of the area with windmills because they won’t bother the racetrack.
That noise doesn’t bother us, our noise doesn’t bother the windmills and it’ll be a way that
we can generate income in the future and we propose whatever income is generated is split
50/50 with Chamorro Land Trust. And that we maybe even work with solar with solar
panels covering the bleachers and covering the parking lot and things like that where
there’s again another source of income that actually helps the racing group bring more
people out. You got a nice place to sit out of the hot sun to watch the races and you’re
generating power at the same time it could be a real good thing for everybody. The reason
I’m bringing that up now is we’ve gone through the new law for commercial leases we only
have two years left on our license and as I was saying earlier we spent our first three years
getting the paperwork ready and we spent our last seven years fighting off the marines.
And so we’ve had very little time to actually build and work forward with this so we would
like to start the process of renewing our lease or getting a new lease. But we’re not like the,
we don’t fit the commercial lease rules very well. We’re more like a sports foundation like

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

39 I 73



the Hals Angels, like the Rugby Club, like the soccer fields, like the others whose real drop
as a nonprofit group is to build that track and maintain a safe place for people to race.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — As you pointed out and Commissioners you
know this racetrack is a creation of a public law and not a direct creation of the Chamorro
Land Trust Commission and as such something like that would require legislative
authorization to proceed forward. But I think that you know if that’s the case you know we
need to begin the discussions. At this point you know we probably need to have some kind
of discussions there’s only six months left less than six months left in this legislative session
and I would not suggest that we try to get anything done this year except for the details
between ourselves. And that effective January under the new legislative session then we
can be prepared to introduce legislation that authorize your extension but we would have
the details worked out. The reason I say that is that anything introduced that’s not even if it
gets all the way after a public hearing if it’s not voted on it’s going to die so it’s dead in the
water and you got to start all over again. So I don’t want to waste that kind of energy going
through that process and just do it once. What we need to do is the other items that I did
talk about that we do need to definitely make sure that it’s cleared up before we can even
proceed down that line and that’s the other matters that are listed within the license
agreement that talks about insurance and about well the other public law that talks about
the admissions assessment. We’re going to need to come up with some solution to both of
those but most importantly I think on top of all that is the insurance certification because it’s
required and because you did have a recent fatality on one of the past events. We have to
have that in place and we have to have the certification that it is because it’s a requirement
and if it’s not its reason for default.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — No I understand. We have the insurance. Basically every year I
give a copy of the insurance to GEDA. By law all my reporting goes to GEDA.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay we’ll confirm it with them because the
license agreement is with us.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — Yes. In the license agreement is the monthly payments and all
those kinds of things all the other ones fall under GEDA so I have been reporting to GEDA.
We have the insurance. I’d like to tell everybody that we have resolved the accident that we
had up there. The police report came back it was an accident. It was on the last lap the
driver had gotten a checkered flag and a yellow flag. They’re crossed which means end of
the race slow down. He continued and hit one of our safety vehicles. Now the safety
vehicles has to go out and park in front of an incident so that the safety Marshalls can check
the incident. He parked in front of it as they should they got out and they were behind it but
this race driver said he didn’t see and couldn’t slow down he hit the safety vehicle. The
safety vehicle in turn hit our two safety workers. One had internal injuries and passed and
one is recovered now and almost ready to go back to work. But both families and both
people have worked together with us. They are long time volunteers at the race track.
Lester Van Meter had been a racer himself out there and has volunteered for over thirteen
years to help out with the racetrack. He helps mainly with the motorcycles with the kids but
he helped out our main Marshall for the car race this year. And he was training Jesse Salas

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 40173



0 0

the boy that died and it was an unfortunate accident but the families have all come together.
They all want to see the racetrack continue. And so as of this point our insurance policy has
not been called on it’s just been recently renewed. So everything is in place. We’re
working on signing the releases now so that everybody can move forward. We’re going to
name our next race, smoking wheels next year in honor of Jesse Salas and Lester is going
to be the Grand Marshall and both their families are going to be involved in it. So it was
very, very unfortunate but they’re very strong supporters of the races so they want it to
continue on. So I wanted to just give you that that it’s going to go forward.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — My recommendation here is that we just follow
through on this as a resolution to demonstrate our need for the action to take place based
on the repeated write ups we’ve received from the public auditor and the other item such as
the admissions assessment be determined and be made a part of every activity that goes
on over there. It’s required by public law. And it’s not in our license it’s a public law that we
obtain a copy whether through them or through GEDA on the insurance verification. So if I
put that in a resolution I just need you to make a motion to do those things and then I’ll have
a resolution.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Borja, Mr. Simpson is suggesting that we call the auditor
and ask the auditor what he needs. I don’t know how you do it I know you have one million
and one thing so many as Mr. Simpson but how about Mr. Simpson get in touch with the
auditor and tell the auditor that we summon him in in this concern and maybe ask the
auditor as to what you know he has to do to satisfy the auditor’s concern about the
accountability of that.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Can I ask Joey Cruz, Joey do you want to say
something on that? Do you have any specific details? Joey Cruz is our Program
Coordinator who deals with our annual audits and has a working relationship with Deloitte
and Touche.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And also how about, are we talking about only the rocks how
about the total sales of tickets and (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that’s what I’m talking about that’s the
admissions assessment.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — The admission assessment like in the first law I’m sorry I didn’t
get to bring it back with me the other day but it said $2.00 for every (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — $2.00 but then there was a successor that said
10%.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — And then there was another one later on that said 10%. And
actually it’s what we do since we only have one big event per year, Smokin Wheels we
report that to the Legislature and that’s in my compliance report with GEDA so I turn that in
with GEDA. With GEDA, GEDA is the one that’s been doing all the compliance report so

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

411 73



they’ll give me a list of things that I need to do then we comply with it. Turn in our audit,
every year we’re audited, turn in all these things and then we pay them $1,500 for the honor
and then they go and we do it again next year.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay because the law is only general it said pay
Government of Guam. I don’t know who’s supposed to receive it but we’re supposed to
receive a report on it.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — All that reporting has gone to GEDA. I’m working on this year’s
report right now so we should be able to put that together.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Borja are we getting a copy from GEDA on those reports?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No we’re not.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — You’re not?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mr. Simpson.

Henry Simpson (GRE) —We can do that. I would have done it it wasn’t required nobody
told me to so I didn’t.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — You know I was looking at it this is my first opportunity to see
this contract that you have with the Government but if you go back on the record I was the
Chairman of the Guam Land Use Commission that approved whatever we approved for the
racetrack and then that night you people had a big party at the Government House. It’s not
that I was not invited it’s just that I cannot understand why that the contract was so
confidential at that time because I want to really have the opportunity to review you know
what’s really the whole contract between you and the Government but anyway Mr. Cruz.

Joey Cruz (CLTC) — The auditor’s concerns were raised in I think Mr. Borja said in our
initial audit in 2012. At that time there were three companies, Hawaiian Rock, Smithbridge
and Perez Bros I believe if I remember correctly. Then the preceding year it was also the
same three companies. The concern is that we don’t have information to substantiate the
amount of money they’re paying for the extracted royalties. The only way to do that is we
need a starting point. We need to know what was there initially. How are we going to do
that? We have some maps here at Planning that we can (inaudible) then we can work
forward from there. So even if Mr. Simpson suggest that we work with Ernst & Young an
audit is random they’re not going to sit there all day every day to count they just come at the
spur of the moment or they draw from a (inaudible). So if they come today and only 10
trucks they counted tomorrow if there was 11 that won’t be counted but really 12 went out.
So we cannot substantiate really how much extraction went out unless there was like a
topographical survey done or something like that.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 42173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Mr. Simpson is your grading permitted or your extraction
permitted by Public Works?

Henry Simpson (GRF) — Yes.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz - Do you have a site plan or a plan that take the volume up
from that permit?

Henry Simpson (GRF) — Yes.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Or are you permitted as a whole or by phase?

Henry Simpson (GRF) — Well we started as permitted in sections like you see in our
phases 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 and then the over extraction got attention. The over extraction is on
the new drag strip where we will cut in and actually take out more material 30 feet down
because in order to be, in order to be economically feasible to remove they’ll have to drill 30
feet at a time. So you take that 30 foot section, so they took that 30 foot section paid us for
that material and brought in at no cost to us other fine material to fill it back up. And that
works good with us we checked it with our engineers and everything for where our road
race courses are going to go. So while we couldn’t build it was another way of maintaining
and building up a reserve for that area. And that was permitted we went out and
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So by him asking for the volume that was initially there can
we safely say that the permit can predict the total volume that is to be removed because
you have an engineering plan signed by Public Works to be excavated? When you get a
grading or a filling permit you have volumes so by that volume can we safely say Mr. Cruz
can use that as an initial volume to start with? I mean I’m just talking about permitting
excavation extraction.

Peter Errett (HRP) — The problem is the permit we apply for this area for every year and a
lot of time we don’t complete it so we apply for let’s say 200,000 yards and we only do
150,000 so if (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So every time you amend your permit you have a different
volume.

Peter Errett (HRP) — Yes so if you use the permitted volume it would probably be more
than what we actually take out.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s better for us.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — It’s better for Public Works and EPA because we pay on the
volume of that. Let me see how we can just figure out a way to do that because he does
have a drone that can go fly over and measure what is here right now and then what I’m
thinking is we can do that and then the Government has a lidar map of the island are you

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

43 I 73



guys familiar with that lidar map? If that lidar map if we have one of those from before we
started versus where we are right now I think we should come out really close.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I think looking at the audit it’s not only how much was taken
out but it looks also the rate at which were paid. Am I reading it correctly?

Henry Simpson (GRF) —Yes.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Like how are we calculating the rate based on whatever
numbers you’re giving us.

Henry Simpson (GRE) — The rate was set by Monte Mafnas 2007. Initially from 2001
when we started it was 50 cents a cubic yard. And so 50 cents a cubic yard was collected
for the materials coming in or for going out to the, and at that time it was Perez Bros and a
little bit of Smithbridge. And he is right in 2011 for about a year Perez Bros was there
before they bought the property next door. They bought a piece of property next door but
they weren’t taking out some material at that time. Smithbridge only took out boulders so
we had to do boulders based on weight and that’s how figured the volume on their boulders.
But as a steady grading operation it was Hawaiian Rock that had the majority of trucks.
Very small amounts were there by Smithbridge and by Perez Bros. But the figuring out the
amounts and so it was about 2007 Monte came out took a look at it he went through this
whole process to make sure everything was being counted then he said he wanted to do
some price considerations. He went and checked with other people and he came back and
he told us he said your price should be $1.50 and so he gave me a note I showed it to these
guys we raised the price to $1.50 and so (interrupted).

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — When was this?

Henry Simpson (GRF) — This was in 2007 I think, 2006, 2007. What I’d to do is I’ll do a
breakdown of how much we’ve extracted on a monthly basis and how much we paid on a
monthly basis through the whole thing. I can do that from the beginning because the
amount that’s been paid for royalty to CLT is about a million and a half dollars over that
time. Our rent has been about a half million dollars and I can lay that out I’ll lay that out on
a kind of a month by month or year by year basis so you can take a look at that. And then
we can, we make need to do a lidar as of 2001 when we first started and then 2007 when
the price went up as to matching. It should match the volume this one time should match
the volume. You guys are willing to do a shot up there for us with the drone?

Peter Errett (HRP) — Sure but the problem is some areas have been excavated and then
backfilled. So if we survey it now it’s going to show the design elevation and it won’t show
what was removed.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — But at some point we’d like to start at a
(inaudible) you’ll have a starting point like with the drone to have an actual starting point at
least with that so we know where we are based on that survey and we’re all moving
forward. Because that would be one of the things that I’d like to have a discussion on is

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 44173



0 0

that you know is there a way to have that drone to be part of the contract to the ability to
determine what the volumes are. And you know based on the amount of truck loads that
are returned back you can you know do the math and determine that there was a volume
added and there was you know a net change of something.

Peter Errett (HAP) — We can do that. We have the drone it flies about 300 feet. GPS
control and it surveys to I think about half an inch accuracy. We use it for stock pile
volumes so we can (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Right and then it can from my understanding on
our discussions once before it can be crossed check with the truck counts.

Peter Erreu (HAP) — Yes.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And that’s at least a good start to have one of
the major findings to be taken care of.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Do you think we can have that as you said in the drone we
can have some kind of report from them as a start so we can show the auditor that
(interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that’s what yeah that’s what we’re talking
about and to try and work it so it’ll be a continuous thing on a monthly basis, quarterly basis
something like that. I don’t know what the cost of that unit is to operate but it will be based
on cost of the unit is one thing it’s all the other information.

Peter Errett (HAP) — What it does it gives you a photograph and a CAD file. So the CAD
file is used to calculate volume but then you have photographic record of that date so we
can start doing that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So Mr. Simpson you’re going to take care of that and report it
to us.

Henry Simpson (OAF) — Yes I can do that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Thank you because we don’t have money to pay anyway.
Any questions from Mr. Cruz?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No I’m good.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mrs. Pika Fejeran?

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Are we okay with an affidavit on not putting a moratorium?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Sure if you want it to state that that once we
receive that and a certification that Hawaiian Rock is the only one taking it out yeah.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

45 I 73



Chairman Pascual Sablan — Mrs. Santos? Okay so what do we need to do a motion?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — I’d like to get a motion and then we can present
it formally just so we have for the record as a resolution to Guam Raceway Federation to
deal with the items that I recommend.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay the Chair’s ready to hear a motion.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I make a motion pending an affidavit from Guam
Raceway Federation they are to until we get that affidavit there’s a moratorium on
coral extractions and also for the Director to work with you to obtain a validated and
certified, that your insurance certification right we need a copy of the insurance
certification, a certified method of determining admissions assessments and to
determine moving forward how we are going to be calculating and receiving the
royalties and also if you can also copy us on the reports that you provide to GEDA
because we have never seen that.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Does that include also what Mr. Simpson said that he’s going
to go back and give us a breakdown of, oh okay.

Henry Simpson (GRF) — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So a motion has been made, second by Mrs. Santos.
Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Ayes have it unanimous. Thank you Mr. Simpson.

3. CISC fund lockbox
Administrative Director Michael Borja — The CPA finding 2015-04 special fund transfer
they noted that over 2.3 million dollars was taken from the accumulative cash transfer from
Chamorro Land Trust operations fund to the GovGuam general fund in Fiscal Year 2015.
Public Law 32-181 required that any cash amounts that stand to be reimbursed that are
transferred should be reimbursed back from the general fund within 60 days. A
reimbursement did occur within the stipulated time however when it was done at the
suggest height at the major suggestion of our auditor they only put 2 million back into it.
Other findings in May 2016 just last month we found that there were two separate transfers
totaling 2.3 million dollars withdrawn from the Chamorro Land Trust operations fund by the
Department of Administration and attached here is the AS400 record of the withdrawals.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 46173



0 0

My recommendation is that there be a resolution to the Department Administration stating
three things. That no funds shall be transferred from the CLTC operations fund without
concurred notification to the CLTC Commission. Number two, funds transferred from this
operations fund in 2015 were not fully returned and that that must still reimburse the
$360,000. And item 3, Department of Administration provide written notification of transfers
of 2.3 million dollars from the operations fund noting the date of the transfers and for
reimbursement be made within 60 days as required from the public law. The second thing
is another resolution to the Guam Legislature requiring legislation to restrict the use and
transfer of funds from the Chamorro Land Trust operations fund for the explicit use for
Chamorro Land Trust Commission and only by legislative appropriation. And this is just to
ensure that our monies are in place when we need them for the Chamorro Land Trust. It is
again in an effort to have accountability as the public auditor requires us to have and it
came up as one of their findings. So what I would ask is just a motion to approve the
creation of those two resolutions as I stated in the recommendations and they be then to
be signed and presented, resolution one to the DDA and resolution two to the Legislature.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — One motion, resolution to the Department of
Administration not to touch our money without telling us first, to reimburse us for the
$360,000 from last year and to reimburse us for the 2.3 million that was transferred
out in May of 2016 within 60 days. That’s the first resolution. Second resolution is to
the Guam Legislature requiring legislation to restrict the use and transfer of funds
out of the Chamorro Land Trust operations fund that it is only used for Chamorro
Land Trust Commission and by legislative appropriation.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — It’s been moved and second, the motion has been
approved. Everyone says aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay I’ll have that resolution worked up for Mr.
Chairman’s signature later on.

4. Funds for survey
Administrative Director Michael Borja — The next item on the agenda talks about CLTC
surveys and again this is as we have heard there’s a lot of inventory of properties that still
remain un-surveyed and nonregistered. The survey of property lots is a prerequisite for the
issuance of residential or agricultural leases and currently the cost and conduct of the
survey is the responsibility of the proposed lessee. Property lots could be issued and
leases quicker if the lots were already surveyed. Public Law 33-102 provided the CLTC’s
lessees exemption of property tax the 7 year waiver of property taxes be waived if we
survey the properties ourselves. There’s another law that created the infrastructure survey
fund. In 2015 GTA Teleguam commenced with its lease payments for lands it uses and in

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

47 I 73



2015 the CLTC created and the Guam Land Use Commission approved 87 agricultural
master plan subdivisions. So again what I’m recommending is we send a resolution to the
Guam Legislature to support a multi-year funding to survey and register all CLTC properties
utilizing the funds from the CLTC infrastructure and survey fund and the CLTC operations
fund from the annual lease payments made by GTA Teleguam. And then through the
procurement process no less than two surveyor companies would be granted to survey and
register the CLTC properties over a duration of at least three years based on the best
estimate on time required as determined by the Chief of Cadastre for the Government of
Guam and the Survey Division of the Department of Land Management. I have them
currently working as we discussed before on what they would believe would be the best
estimate of what the cost and timeframe would be that’s why I didn’t list an amount here just
yet. But as we work with the Legislature on any future legislation we can come up with an
amount but it could go you know we can still set at using primarily the monies coming from
GTA Teleguam lease payments and have it as an ongoing project for something greater
than three years that’s why I mentioned for no less than three years or at least three years.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That the service is less than three years for the surveyor.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s for at least three years. I mean probably the
first procurement would be a for a three year period and if we need to move on further we’ll
do another three years, try and get legislation for funding for another three year set of
surveys but have it ongoing until we’re done. I don’t want to bite off too much and commit
ourselves too much because other things could change overtime. I don’t foresee any
future income coming into infrastructure survey fund until we begin the actual leasing of any
of our properties for commercial use because that’s by law that’s where the monies are to
go to. I think once long term once all the surveying is done then it can be concentrated on
trying to do some infrastructure. But that’s you know the infrastructure thing is really the
reason I see the need to really build up that fund considerably is because not so we can
horde the money but you can get more bang out of your buck when you do a much longer
count of improvement project for a larger tract of land than you know just piecemeal things
little by little. I believe you can eat the elephant whole.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I seem to remember in the budget there was a line item for
the survey.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — There is.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran - $850,000.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — $850,000 that’s for both surveying and for
registration. And again that’s where I’m you know I want to be prepared to move forward on
this should the budget get cut and that’s just going to be a matter of weeks now before we
know what the outcome of that is going to be. By before the end of August we’ll know so
we got about another two months in this budget approval process actually before the end of
July. So that would be to move forward on and if that money does go through then we can
proceed with doing something based on those funding but if not then you know the

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 48173



0 0

legislation just kind of becomes mute and you can always stop the legislation. But at least
we can get it moving on this process.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — How much are we getting from GTA?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s about $350,000.

Chairman Pascual Sablan - $350,000.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They pay annually every January first week.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — They pay us in lump sum. You know what I would like to see
and of course I’m waiting to come down to the Commissioners’ comments Mr. Director like
for example a resolution or a motion from this Commission you know to specifically mention
that that money that comes in plus maybe other lease revenue should be set aside
specifically for survey and infrastructure.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well right now by law commercial leasing goes
to the survey and infrastructure fund that’s already a requirement that’s already in the law.
But what I see is that the surveying at some point it has an end. The infrastructure I mean
this is a billion dollar project that we probably need to go if we want to put in infrastructure
throughout CLTC and that’s a long term project. But if you have you know several good
leases I use the example let’s just say you know you’re going to rake in 10 million dollars a
year on commercial leasing and they have at least a 30 year term okay you’re already
talking you know 300 million dollars. You can take that to the bank and get a loan on that
you know let’s say go get a bond or something for 200,000 million because you already
have a method to repay. We probably don’t have the bond authority but there’s ways to
work through this process through GEDA or whoever and then you can at least know that
when you have these contracts for long term lease commercial uses with a known income
source coming in you can then borrow against that to begin the process of creating you
know real true infrastructure development throughout our properties to do like was
appropriated for the land for the landless lets say. You put all the underground utilities and
we put sidewalks and streets and let everyone else just work from there and at least you got
something that’s much usable. You already had three people come forward today that all
expressed the desire to move their land and that’s not uncommon okay. We don’t need to
have that anymore. And most importantly since many of our lands are on the aquifer we
got to stop having people have lands with septic tanks or leaching fields or nothing at all.
And so you know we would go in there and at least put the infrastructure to these existing
facilities and we put in the ground it’s their job to hook it up. At least we got that part to
them you know whereas they didn’t have it before. I tell you I’d rather hook up to the sewer
any day than to be on a leaching field. But I don’t have that luxury in my own personal
experience right now so I’m stuck with a leaching field. But that’s what we need to do so
that’s kind of long term things that you know we have to look at. I mean how does the
Commission plan on spending its money well you know you got to really think big and think
long term as much as you can rather than just taking you know letting them think the money
is burning a hole in your pocket.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

49 I 73



Chairman Pascual Sablan — You know also what I would like and of course the
concurrence of the Commission is for us to make a motion and come up with a plan as to
short and long term what do we really want. What are we looking forward to accomplish
and have those things down in black and white.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — You know some manifesto, some goals and
objectives, some vision statements I mean those are the things we should really they
should always be updated and there should be. Maybe as we move along let’s say later on
on your we’re getting close to it but on the agenda is to talk about commercial leasing. It’s
going to eventually happen one way or another sooner or later whatever but there’s got to
be you know a vision on what that money should be used for that’s coming in and it
shouldn’t be for people’s pet projects it should be things for really the true use the need to
ensure that our lands have the infrastructure and our natural resources are protected.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Maybe I’ll take this opportunity and I hope I’m going to be
called out of order because I love to call out of order but I was called in by the Chairman
Senator Ada and I was asked he’s question is what are our plan short and long term plan.
Then we come to the topic of commercial lease why we haven’t referred to them and then
he mentioned even though we send everything to them we still have the option that when
the time comes we the Commission can put a screeching halt on that you know or
reevaluate our position but we have to start doing something. You know submit it to them
let them bless it or the 60 days and then (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well you know just because you approve a piece
of property for commercial use doesn’t automatically mean that it’s up for anyone to grab.
We have to create a procurement, it has to go through the procurement process. The next
big step after that is creating the request for proposal and defining that as specific of what
we think it should be for the use of that land or maybe in general or maybe in some cases to
not even before we even go to the procurement side of the house we go through a request
for information how is the best way to use this land. Let’s get input from the public, get
some ideas and then we can produce an RFP after that. So it’s not you know you approve
something today the Legislature concurs and the week after that you’re signing a contract.
No, I foresee you know that it would be at least a year before you can even get to that point
if things move along well. Because there’s a lot of development that has to be done and
then the procurement development that’s a lot of work to sit down and create so we can do
it the right way.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And even that negotiation you know we could put a RFP
there’s a respondent but when we start talking and we cannot come to term that could drag
on for years you know.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We’re entailed in one of those kinds of situation
right now so we just have to also know that and just know anything that deals with big
money I mean you even have one right now with the school. In that process for example
there was an attorney sitting there the entire time I’m sure there was an attorney to the part
I was involved in there was an attorney sitting there the whole time to make sure everything

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 50173



o 0

was to the letter. And I’m sure during the contractual negotiations the same might have
been occurring too just to kind of avoid these what could sometime be frivolous objections.
But in this case you know here we’re talking about just trying to fund the CLTC surveys. So
the resolution doesn’t mean the bill is going to be introduced next week. There still has to
be a creation on that and the full justification and the writing and going through the process
so that lets say by the time the budget we know what the budget is maybe that proposed bill
doesn’t need to be awarded or needs to be introduced we’re fine with that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — What budget are you talking about?

Administrative Director Michael Borja—The 17 (2017) budget.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Since you mentioned it Mr. Borja I would like the Commission
to I don’t think this is appropriate word privilege I think we have the right to see the budget
before submission.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Sure I mean but it’s already beyond
(interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — It’s okay but on the next.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So on February I’ll provide you with the 18
budget and you know you’ve been in this Government long enough the budget is kind of
drawn up for you in a lot of ways.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I don’t want to be like the gentleman that had a public hearing
the other day that when they asked him question poor guy I don’t have to mention his name
but he’s the first Chamorro (inaudible) put under crystal whatever you call that. That’s so
embarrassing.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I have two questions, if we pass this resolution and start
working the Legislature to get this going would that tell them we don’t need to keep that
$850,000 in the budget anymore?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No, no, I wouldn’t even introduce it until, I won’t
even send it down their way until we know what happens to the budget. But at least I can
begin creating it the resolution would be an attachment to show your approval to move
forward on this so that we don’t have to waste any time. For example it would be
something I would definitely then have introduced so we can get it before the end of the
year and then by the beginning of the next calendar year we can at least begin you know
the RFP process. Because the REP process too is freaking long.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But what is the reason why that you’re going to hold it back?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — I don’t want to have duplication of funding. Right
now I have already put in a request. This is the second consecutive year I’ve made the

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

ElI 73



request. Last year it was just arbitrarily deleted and they just said no put everybody back to
their previous year’s budget and so it was deleted. But this year I want to make sure that
we have a backup plan that in event that there is a dismissal of that money from our budget
then I can at least come in because you know we have the funding source the funding is
available. That’s always the point you know do you have the funding to do this the funding
is there.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Are we on the same page I’m sorry about proposed
commercial lease?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Item 4.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Oh I’m sorry.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We’re talking about funding for surveys.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Whatever we will recover from that commercial lease it’s
going to go to this right?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s going to go to the infrastructure and survey
fund. Right now there’s not enough money to do squat in there it’s being raided. But in the
future it will begin once commercial leasing begins it will begin to grow in its size and that’s
when we then need to sit down and say you know instead of saying oh we got 3 million
dollars in there let’s spend 3 million dollars today. I suggest and this is what we should give
as a long term vision is don’t look at this 3 million dollars look at it as over a course of thirty
years it’s going to be 50 million dollars right and then you can go in and get either a loan on
it or a bond on it and then you pay the bond money or the loan on the rental you’re going to
get. But in the meantime you got up front 50 million dollars so you can go and begin doing
some capital improvement projects in specific areas that have been prioritized as needing
infrastructure.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I was jumping up and down you know when I saw that 2
million dollars but to find out later on that you need that also to budget for salary and wages.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well yeah that’s just the normal stuff that we
have coming in now but that’s the operations fund.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yeah.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Right so they took 2.3 million right out of that
whole thing which is going to be, it has to be put back in there because when the new
budget goes into effect on October 1st we’re going to have to have some money to take
from. I feel it’s going to get put back in there. But on this issue of surveying this is just to
begin the process so that we can actually engage in an RFP to do surveying in the event
they strike it from our fiscal year 17 budget.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 52173



0 0

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Can we add a resolution to this kind of piggy backing to
send to the Legislature about why that line item in your budget is important?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well no see the point is I don’t even want to use
this resolution will be may be unnecessary should the money be allotted. But should the
money not be allotted this resolution will be an attachment to the public law it’ll be an exhibit
attached to the bill to say the Chamorro Land Trust supports this in a resolution.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Right but can we send to the Legislature today telling them
that see this $850,000 this is important because of this, this and this?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah we can do that too.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — And that way they know why that money is there.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They just leave it they don’t touch it.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Right and they don’t touch it and then we still have the OTA
money coming in to be used for other things.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah we can do that too. If you want to do that
propose the resolution and we’ll do it. What you do is just make it as a motion and I’ll write
it up as resolution.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I move to have the Director prepare a resolution to the
Legislature explaining that line item in our proposed budget is important for the
surveys and that we need it in order to fulfill our mission on the Chamorro Land
Trust Commission.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Discussion. Where is that $850,000 coming from?

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — So there’s a line item in the proposed budget for next year
for $850,000 to be used for surveys.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And land registration.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — And land registration and the Director had it in the
proposed budget last year as well but they just slashed it out and said no you’re not getting
that money. So he put it again this year and the resolution I just proposed would tell the
Legislature why that money is important. And then should the Legislature decide to nix that
$850,000 out of our budget our back up plan are these two resolutions proposed by the
Director.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

53 I 73



Chairman Pascual Sablan — It’s our money. The budget you sent down is going to be
funded out of Chamorro Land Trust revenue right?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — For the survey and infrastructure I mean the
surveying and registration.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But for the operation?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No the money is there to do this. I mean look
they just took 2.3 million out of there because there’s extra money. You know the money is
there. What I believe happens is that by the time they get towards the end of the budget
review cycle and they’ve spent a lot of days and hours on the big budgets the real big
budgets you know the hospital, the police, the fire, the schools all those guys when it gets to
some of these smaller ones and we are literally one of the smaller ones it’s just easier to
say just appropriate what you got last year. Because you know I think they already
determined that there’ll probably be some cuts. They made those kinds of comments
publically that they foresee that there’s going to be some cuts in the proposed budget that is
submitted. Where they come from I don’t know but you know that’s an easy one to do. You
didn’t have it last year why do you need it this year. And even though I have in last year I
spoke to many of the Senators to explain that that’s important it remains you know when it
comes down to it it’s not always the Senators that are really doing the work it’s their staff
and it’s easier for some of them to (inaudible). I mean there’s a lot of strength in the staff.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So the motion she’s making for resolution that is something
like a protective shield in the (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah don’t touch that line leave that in the
budget. Now my instructions are that in the event that you know the Governor’s budget
doesn’t include something I wanted and whatever they submit to the Legislature is what I
have to live with and that I should not go running to the Legislature to say you know Joey
Calvo took out 2 million dollars from a project I need to have funded please put it back in.
So you know I’m not going to do that. We’re not doing that either. The Governor’s budget
people have approved our request and they wouldn’t do it unless they knew that the funding
was there either and I’ve had discussions with them on this last year and this year. So it’s
something that you know we have in our budget it’s fundable and all the Commissioner here
is recommending is that we do a resolution to the Legislature to let them know that that
money is absolutely necessary please leave it in the budget. Then if that fails then this
other resolution will then be the backup the supporting document that would say okay now
you got rid of that just appropriate, give us appropriation for a period of at least three years
to fund surveying and it comes out of an operations fund.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Appropriate the money we got.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I’m worried because I think already the hospital needs
another 14 million.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 54173



0 0

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well you guys just finished telling me to go
ahead and send a resolution to say stop taking our money unless it’s for our own use. No
that 40 million is going to come from raising the hot bonds I mean raising the hotel
occupancy tax things like that. Things a million people can help pay for not just and not just
you know 41,000.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Sometimes is fun to be in a committee like that, the end result
let’s raise the tax.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah but it’s not your tax unless you’re staying in
a hotel. I know you have you know a penthouse in the Westin so you never invite us.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — At SPA whenever they need money raise the rate.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — SPA doesn’t, Public Utilities Commissions does
it’s an elected group that does it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So a motion has been made, second by Mrs. Santos.
Discussion, none. Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Unanimous.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And how about the one we’re talking about here
just hold on here until later, we’ll see when the time comes, okay.

5. Conservation easement, Fadian-AAFB
Administrative Director Michael Borja — We were looking to try and come up with what
could be a conservation easement that stretches from Fadian all the way up to Andersen’s
gate in Yigo. We are showing in this map just what an area would look like. We haven’t yet
defined where it’s going to be but basically it’ll be from the beach to about the first plateau
area. Areas where the limestone forest is at and it’s not to be determined until a group of
us gets together with Department of Agriculture, the Preservation people at Parks and Recs
and whatnot to kind of get a general idea of what might look at to us as an area that would
be available. Now what we’re looking at here I think that’s the racetrack and it goes all the
way up here to this area. There are some areas up around here. Margarita, you’re already
saying there’s something in here in this lot?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — That whole lot was already deemed a conservation by the US I
believe that’s what was (interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

55 I 73



Administrative Director Michael Borja — The US dedicated that? That’s who’s land?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Is that 7146? I can’t see.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah it is.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — That’s under Guam Ancestral Lands Commission.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And they dedicated it and gave it back to Guam
Ancestral?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Based on that document.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Then why the hell is US Fish and Wildlife asking
for more land? They already dedicated this.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — And it’s the entire lot.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And the entire lot. So basically what we’re, so
that’s incredible if that’s already been done by the US government because they seem to be
asking more. But I’m not doing this because the US government wants to do I’m doing this
because we need to do some of it for our own legacy you know for the future. But there is a
need as well by the US government but I think that should be a negotiated thing and that for
every amount of space we are in agreement with for them to have as, to count as part as
part of the conservation easement that they provide back this property. They keep talking,
you know I just came from a big federal conference this week with FEMA and a whole
bunch of people and they like to say one Guam and in the writing for this military buildup
two terms are used, “one Guam”, it’s all one Guam this whole thing and “negative”.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — That negative is right.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — And so you know I think our chat should be you
want something? Negative. Seriously every square meter that we say we’re not going to
use for anything else except for a habitat give back 100 square meters.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — What’s the blue outline on that?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That’s the proposed area right?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — Yeah from the coast line up to the first plateau, that’s what was
requested (interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So 46 is not part of that.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No because the entire lot would be (inaudible). So in there it
shows the approximate area of the proposed conservation easement in each of the parcels.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 56173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So for example (interrupted).

Margarita Borja (DLM) — 7164-R5?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Uh huh. Is that the remainder of the racetrack?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No the racetrack goes up to that point.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yeah but is it the same basic lot?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No, no.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I think there’s a yellow line under the blue line that were
not seeing.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So the one further up that 159 acres.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Now the area Margarita that we were talking
about for Lajuna is really right around here right?

Margarita Borja (DLM) —7163 yeah.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So this area too we have to readdress so that in
the future if we’re going to be doing anything up there it will be a portion of. The lot will be
reapportioned so that we’re talking about a more specific area to do rather than
encompassing the entire area.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So 7163-Ri is not part of Lajuna?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — 7163 is a part of?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The 69 acres, is that the remainder of?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No that’s the 69 that is proposed for a conservation easement.
That’s only the area that we’re looking at I think that’s a 400 acre lot if I’m not mistaken.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — We haven’t you know this is just kind of a
general idea to give you guys a pictorial view of what we’re looking at but again we would
still want to sit down and talk with the conservation people the Agriculture, Parks and Recs
and whatever other GovGuam agencies might be of interest. It’s just so we can make sure
we’re covering an area that may be a little bit bigger. I think we were just going along the
ridgeline here?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — You said the first plateau.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The cliff.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

57 I 73



Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah the first cliff.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The blue one.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah so you know it might go a little bit deeper
in on some places just so we can, because like in that one area near 7163 there’s actually a
couple of plateaus, there’s a couple of mesas there and so (interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I know what’s conservation but for who’s that conservation
the Government or Government of Guam or?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — It’s a local.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It just means that it’s not to be used for
development. You can turn it into walking paths, you can have amot farms in there things
like that so long as you’re clearing with a machine that kind of thing.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — So in other words if it’s Chamorro land we cannot give out?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — That’s the intent.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Conservation easement it’s like an encumbered to that lot.
What would it take to remove that easement? Because we’re creating a conservation
easement that’s why I’m asking is 71 (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well I mean see those are the discussions we
could have what is it that we can do you know. Does it last for a certain period of time, is it
for 99 years, is it for perpetuity? Those are the kinds of debates we could have.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s why I asked if that 7163-Ri is the remainder of that
Lajuna basic lot.

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No the 7163-Ri became an Ri because a severance of a road.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Oh a road okay. And the road is coming down right?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — No to provide easement to the (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — But a lot of this you know is kind of really
important in light of the fact that we received a lot of input from a variety of different
members of the public who have expressed its importance and protection of our natural
resources and while not eliminating it all either. But you know as we heard earlier this year
in the public hearings for commercial leasing you know even though I took Lajuna off
because of a dispute everybody’s testimony it was pretty much on that matter. And so you

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q 58173



0 0

know you can’t ignore that kind of comment there that’s being made and in light of that then
perhaps when we take a look at something large we say hey do we really need the entire lot
just because it’s a lot it takes up xx number of acres. But do we really need that or do we
really need 30 or 40 acres and then you subdivide and then you only talk about that specific
area. So you know that’s just this is just one of the starts but again I really need to
emphasize that this is not being done because of a need by the military. The military, I
ended up in a meeting after we had already been talking about doing something like this
and then the military came out and said they want something like this too but it’s for their
benefit. I think if we do use any part of this land and then sign off part of it because I think
once the military gets involved in it you’re going to end up with a conservation easement set
off like this where it was federal properties that was returned back to the Ancestral Lands
Commission as excess lands but with a perpetual easement placed on it a conservation
easement so that they have their habitat but they don’t own it. See so that’s why I’m kind of
surprised they need more. Because the intent is (inaudible) but the intent is to take some of
the property. And then there’s other areas down further towards the south this is down
closer towards Fadian. So you have Fadian down here and then rest of this stuff is all
private until we get to this area just north of the golf course. And you know a lot of this area
too is really not accessible by vehicles because of the cliffs and the rugged terrain. It’s
really you know probably more suitable for other kinds of uses than to have it you know
(interrupted).

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Is Fadian part of Land Trust?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Part of it, part of it but there’s a lot under the
University of Guam. Okay so this is just an information to you guys to let you know that
we’re going to be moving forward on trying to do something like this but there’s a lot more
work involved because we have to definitely coordinate with these different guys. We’ve
already talked to Parks and Recs and I’ve had a brief discussion with the Department of
Agriculture too.

6. International Bridge & Construction Marianas, Inc. lot
Administrative Director Michael Borja — The next item is International Bridge &
Construction, were they going to come?

Margarita Borja (DLM) — They were advised to come.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — The word I got and it came through a phone call
message to the office is that these are the guys that are occupying that piece of land that’s
just north of the Vigo gym and it’s all heavy equipment. We actually, we’ve been trying to
get a hold of them and earlier this week we had a couple of the land agents go up there and
personally make a visit. We got their information, Mr. Toelkes actually gave his business
card and we told him that we wanted to meet with him with the intent of clearing the land,
you know making the land available again. The message I got was that they were going to
be clearing out. So we’ll continue to follow up on that. Once it’s cleared out it can become
available down the road as a possible use for commercial leasing of some kind or another.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

69 I 73



Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s on the list here right?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No it’s not on the list here.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Remind me why are they on there and then now, they’re
default?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No they don’t have a lease. They don’t have a
lease it was one of these hand shake agreements where you need a place to park your
stuff , we need you to build a house, we need you to clear some roads.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — With CLTC?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — What about the amot people are they coming back?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah we got some word from finally from Zita
Pangelinan of their non-profit organization charter so we can start working a little bit on that
now. But you know part of it will come into effect with some of the creating some
conservation areas so that they can use. You know those are the kinds of things you can I
think do but we have to define in this long term thing define what is a conservation
easement.

7. Commercial lease
Administrative Director Michael Borja — The next thing we have to talk about I gave you
a copy of is the proposed commercial leases. What I’ve included here is the cover sheet
that talks about, identifies the specific land itself, an overview of it, a survey map and then
the proposed resolution that would be created to accompany this as required by the public
law. In the first one it’s that area in Tamuning that is next to Nissan. This is Nissan up here
and this is the water tank this is the land that we’ve already assigned over and will be
probably passed this week for Guam Waterworks and this would be the remaining area that
is available and is almost 2 acres of land. That’s also the same area that Mr. Adkins had
been asking for to use and just to give you guys a heads up there’s a bill that’s been
introduced by Senator Barnes to allow the transfer of the property.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Is it the same land exchange?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Exact same thing. So the testimony that I’ll
provide is by resolution, oh what I want to do is just get your concurrence to do up a
resolution based on the motion that we passed so that could be the exhibit for the testimony
which is going to be necessary to show. And if we pass it today this will be further more for
the testimony that we agree to allow for commercial leasing. But anyway this is the piece of
property in here it’s roughly valued at just under a half million dollars but then again that’s
just based on the tax assessed value. So it has access to everything, it’s got a good road
right next to it, it’s just off of Marine Drive. My recommendation is we approve it to be

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 162016

Q Q 60173



0 0

authorized for commercial use for the purpose of engaging in a commercial lease. It’s
currently zoned as P2 and whoever gets it has to go through the zoning process. So what
I’ve explained in the resolutions is that the public law that gave us the authority to do this
and that you passed a motion to have public hearings on a group of lands on November of
2015 and January of 2016 we conducted the public hearing. On January 21st I presented
the public hearing to the Commission and if today you pass it and today you reviewed it and
you reviewed this specific lot and then we resolve that the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission approves the list of land and declares the land to be designated property for
commercial use having been duly publically heard in accordance with Public Law 33-95 and
that we transmit this to the Legislature with its recommendation to approve the property.
And all of them are going to say the exact same thing the only thing different will be the
identification of the property. The second lot is lot is the property up in Yigo to be Tract
10123 and that’s the property that would be for a housing subdivision. There’s currently
about, it’s made up of 30 acres, we’ve master planned about 90 residential lots but with a
housing subdivision development that would include infrastructure the tract can be
reconfigured for approximately 150 house lots. The house lots would be leased only to
CLTC applicants with homes purchased from a developer. They will be affordable homes.
The Marine Corps Drive frontage area may be designed for small scale commercial activity
to be described and approved later. The recommendation is to authorize for commercial
use for the purpose of engaging in a commercial contract with a housing developer to install
infrastructure and build affordable housing to be sold to eligible CLTC applicants or existing
CLTC residential or agricultural leaseholders who have not yet developed their leased
properties. The map is there showing it again it’s across the street directly across the street
from the Yigo gym and it fronts one of the Paradise Subdivisions in the back. There’s going
to be some major changes to that intersection that goes into that road where they’re going
to be increasing or improving the turn lanes. And that’s going to be something that’s going
to come from Paradise Subdivision development people who are still expanding.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Where is Paradise?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They would be located back in here, they’re the
ones back in here and then the road comes actually comes in right here this is the road that
comes here.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — So this lines up with what they’re doing.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Why would a company want to come in and do this?
They’re going to be paying rent to us.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No they’re not going to be paying rent. This is
really to commercially, we have to enter into a commercial agreement with a developer
which is just saying you can, gives them authorization to have the land so they can develop
it. They can get all the permitting and everything and then when they go through they’re
going to have to a new subdivision plan there that I believe goes to the Land Use

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

611 73



Commission anyway and gets approved and then they can begin building homes and put in
the infrastructure. When you do something like this with about 150 homes you can make
the infrastructure much more affordable. A full suite of infrastructure between 25-30,000
dollars is what our estimates were in the past. To enter into something like this once we get
this land approved what the plan is to go in and have an PR. Call in a bunch people who
can sit down and talk what is required to do this, what are the technical aspects that need to
be identified in an REP that they can talk freely about because we requested for the
information they can then be able to go and submit proposals if they want. Then we’ll
engage and create an RFP and it’ll go through the whole REP process and then once we
finally identify a developer they’ll be assigned the land to do what they need to do and the
cost of the infrastructure would be borne by the owner of the home that’s going to buy it, the
lessee of the land.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — But those developers would be able to sell the houses
right? I mean I’m just that’s what they (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yes they sell the houses with the cost of the
infrastructure added to it and the emphasis would be for affordable homes. Now some of
the things that these kinds of developers could take advantage of would be things like
SUTA loans the low interest loans that are designed for infrastructure development. They
can take part of that (interrupted).

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Similar to the farmers home loan right?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well the SUTA loan it’s not for the individuals it’s
for the developer. He can get a source of his money can be from this loan that’s you know
1% or something like that and he builds the infrastructure. As the homes are sold you know
the cost of the infrastructure is paid he can pay off this loan so that by the time he’s done
with the entire development then the infrastructure should be paid for and he can hand over
the infrastructure to the utility companies and it’s now their responsibility. But if you know in
the case of the CLTC we went into a SUTA loan it’s not a grant a lot of people keep thinking
it’s a grant it’s a loan a very, very low interest loan we’d have to front the money build the
infrastructure and pay for it. If no one else pays us to pay it off we have to. What source of
money do we have to pay for it? That might be a way to approach it if we’re going to do
some major infrastructure development where we get a 50 million dollar loan we can get
because we have long term leases then we can do that and do that kind of stuff and then
we can pay the loan that way. But that’s the reason why you have to have you know
forethought the ability to have long term repayment so you can enter into these capital
improvement projects to create this kind of infrastructure because it’s not cheap. It’s not
cheap at all and then you know you vary it as well. The emphasis would be sewer but do
we need to put sidewalks in some of these places probably not. You know pave the road,
the power lines may already be there but just put above ground power. Actually what GPA
wants to see now is things like Talofofo Village and there’s several other places where the
utilities are underground you actually have to hook up. And that way you know there’s very
little disruption in the event of a storm. The fourth one again is actually across the street it
is across the street it’s the place where IBC is at. So across the street and that’s roughly

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 62173



0 0

around 12 acres of land and it’s a pretty big lot. So again once we get it back depending on
the condition and what we get it cleaned up to be we can either issue it out for some kind of
even subdivide it where we can at least take the lot and have it commercially used. Right
now you can see they’ve already got some commercial stuff around there. You got a GPA
substation right there, you got a gym and a bus depot back there so you know it could be a
mini industrial park of some kind. And Yigo is turning into that kind of place where there
could be some kind of activity where you have some kind of little mall over here or
whatever. Yigo is growing big. Just across the street where we’re going to propose this
development there’s not only Paradise there’s a whole other subdivision. There’s a lot of
housing that’s being built right there in this area. Just to let you know this area right back
here that’s unregistered property but it’s CLTC.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Going back to that lot since the company is moving out
could we request whoever is monitoring the removal of this equipment to get EPA
investigate or (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that’s what we’re going to try and do to
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So that we don’t inherit any contaminated (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Right that’s what we’re going to try and do is
figure what kind of environmental assessment we can do but if he’s a bankrupted company
I don’t know how far along we’re going to be able to go with something like this.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — No but with EPA’s input.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah sure. Because it was really used like a
light industrial Ml.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Staging or heavy equipment?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It had heavy equipment I don’t know if they did
any kind of work with oil you know that could be it not you know some surface
contamination hopefully not even deeper than that. But you know part of the requirement
for anybody to do a commercial leasing is that they have to do an environmental site
assessment anyway which means they have to get a cursory look of what the condition is
before they use it.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Yeah but since we’re getting it back we want to
(interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — You want to make sure we know what it is.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — We don’t want to use that as a negative or (interrupted).

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

63 I 73



Administrative Director Michael Borja — So you have attached to this the survey map of
the area and also the proposed resolution. And then finally the last one I put down here
and you know you guys can give it for consideration or not is Oka Point and it’s only for the
one parcel of property that does not include the tiny portion off closes towards the hospital
called just -6.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Just R6.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Just R6.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — This old Guam Memorial property is down the cliff too.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well you know it was explained to me in one of
the hearings that area of land by the Hilton is not really a steep drop it’s more gradual. But
over here as you get towards the topside it is much a steeper drop. So those are the four
properties that I’m asking for your consideration today. There’s a few others but you know I
want to deal with those on a case by case basis depending on how we need down the road.
As was told to us by Senator Ada the land Chairman in your public hearing confirmation
hearing you know he asked all we want is this resolution you know it’s for information give it
us and say that you guys have done your due diligence and declared it now ready for use
and we’re just here to receive it for information. Hopefully that’s the way it goes but I think
these are not so bad pieces of property to start off with the one next to Nissan, the property
across from Yigo. The one in Vigo is really kind of I think really important it’ll be our first
stab at trying to do a housing development for Chamorro Land Trust because if it’s really
successful and really does work out and we want to do it the right way the first time
because it doesn’t have any kind of stigma later on but we want to make sure it works for
the people too. It will be the first chance that they, you’ve seen we got a bunch of people
who want to build houses but they got land that’s no good. But here you at least have a
place that might be good. And one of the things too about these housing subdivisions we
can set an established covenants and I think that’s also a very important factor because
that would be one of the things let’s say we have the developer help us create. But you
know there’s a lot of sources of where there’s ways we can get different kinds of covenants
you know we can use GHURA as a model. We can do a number of things and it’s
perpetual because its government land there’s no need for homeowners association that
kind of stuff. If our land agents are doing their job they would make the run around and
determine who is in violation. And you know the terms of agreement on their land lease
would be a little bit different you know with stipulations on what they can and can’t do. For
example you know I would put a stipulation and I think I’m thinking about it if you guys if you
have any issues with is that every leaseholder must demonstrate and provide us with a
copy of their contract with the Waste Management company that they’re paying their tipping
fees. Because I’d rather see these guys you know showing that they’re not dumping the
trash in the back yard as we have heard today. They’re digging holes and burying the trash
you know the hazardous stuff. I mean come on how hard is that you know. But I’ve been to
some of these places and I don’t know I guess they’re hoarders extraordinaire because they
really neatly stack up these things and then they have to drive by it every day to look at it.
Why are you doing this? So those are the kinds of things we can do with these covenants.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

Q Q 64173



0 0

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — So going on this four listing or four parcels that we have all
these four were addressed during the public hearing (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — All of it nothing is new. All four are part of the
package. The only one that’s being modified is this very first one in Marine Drive. We
talked about the entire lot originally but since then we’ve chopped it almost in half just
because we granted Waterworks.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Can your secretary let us know when is the public hearing
say for example the bill does come up for public hearing?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — For which one?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — On Adkins.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Oh yeah, yeah.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Please let us know.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — On another matter I recall that we did approve a model
homes, where are we at with that? Where we hired, a contractor was awarded to build
samples.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah one is completed and what we’re trying to
do right now and in fact that contractor has already got a number of clients he’s building
homes for in other locations as well. But we’re trying to I think we already identified a
purchaser a qualified applicant who is willing to purchase the home and we need to do that I
mean the contract said they got a one year model home show. I think there’s probably 2 or
3 other houses right now that are under construction. But there were some delays on some
them and because it took a long time you know there’s some auditees going on between
Guam Housing and us and finally we got it off the ground. But yeah that contractor is
turning out to be pretty helpful in at least being you know it’s serving him well too because
other people are seeing it as a sample and they’re building their homes elsewhere. In fact
some of the people we approved just recently on home loan guaranties their homes are
being built based on that model home. So it’s almost 5 o’clock I know the bell is going to
ring pretty soon. I’d prefer if you do a motion on lot by lot.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz— Motion to approve 5075-REM-A-NEWR1, Tamuning to
be on commercial lease.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I second.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

65 I 73



Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Ayes have it, it’s approved.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I make a motion to approve the resolution for Tract
10123, Vigo.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Ayes have it.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Motion to approve 7054-R5, Yigo.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Second by Mrs. Santos, those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan - Okay.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I do not make a motion to approve this resolution for
this property that Oka Point.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — I move to not approve.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I move to not approve.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — I second it.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — So then it’s moot.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

0 Q



0 0

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Those in favor say aye.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Aye.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Aye.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — Aye.

Chairman Pascual Sablan - I guess ayes have it.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Oh to disapprove okay.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — To disapprove.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay alright thank you very much
Commissioners it was good long meeting today.

VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
1. Revenue collection report for May2016
Administrative Director Michael Borja — You all got a copy of the revenue collection.
Again this is just a listing of, what you see down towards the bottom the sale of Government
lands these are the remnants of people still paying off and still coming in to pay land for the
landless lands and then the rest of the other items in here are commercial properties and on
the top people are still coming in with the application fees. As far as the other, Joey didn’t
do the rest of the stuff here but we’re still pretty much on track.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — The accounts receivables.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — On the accounts receivables. You know what I’ll
get something put together and I’ll email you all. I would wish I could have like the
Chairman’s email address because he’s consistently is asking for 50 pages of documents
and you know that’s a waste of paper.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Since you brought that up aH I’m asking is the proposed rules
and regulations on (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Oh yes the one I sent over but it’s this thick.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — No the one that you transmitted to the AG.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — It’s this thick the package. I can give what the
rules were.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — That’s all, the rules.

cuc Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

67 j 73



Administrative Director Michael Borja — But the package that was transmitted was
(interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — The hearing and all those things no I don’t want that.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — It’s already done.

Teresa Topasna (CLTC) — I already sent it to him already.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — You sent him the whole thing?

Teresa Topasna (CLTC) — Yes back to back.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Okay so she gave you the paper right.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yeah.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — I know I had to harvest three tangantangan trees
for that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay so we’re done with the revenue okay.

VIII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS
Chairman Pascual Sablan — What I would like is to see a proposed we could say plan of
short and long term goals as to what we’re going to do for the next we could say one or two
years down the road. We need to have some kind of you know plan. So golly if we go
before the Legislature and say what have you done or what is your plan I don’t want to be
like the last individual that went through confirmation hearing.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Hey but I think you’re on track for being passed
as being confirmed.

Commissioner Amanda Santos — You’re confirmed?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Not yet.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They’re going to vote tomorrow but you know
you’re on the list as recommend to confirm.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Senator Ada I found him to be a very good Senator. He
called me in we sat down for two hours and he asked me questions left to right and I said
something that he really likes I think you know (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah you’re going to keep Mike Borja in check.

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

68 I 73



0 0

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Oh yes I mentioned (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — He likes to hear that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I mentioned I thank Mr. Borja and the staff for all the well
done job. Remember what John, President Kennedy said ask what your country can do for
you, ask not what your country but ask what you can do for your country. But I said I’d
rather lose my job for doing my job than to lose my job for not doing my job. He asked me
to repeat that at the public hearing.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yeah that’s exactly right.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Chairman I full heartedly agree with you. You think maybe
we can have that maybe like a visioning session, work session outside of the Commission
(interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Vision statements and (interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yeah we come up with something.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Long term goals short terms goals.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Good idea because those kinds of things go into
a very important document that gets published on the Public Auditor’s website and the
GovGuam website called citizen centric that’s a pretty good thing to do.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — And also you know in that I would like to include also what
are our plans to address the concerns of the auditors which is we’re doing it already. One
thing ladies and gentlemen you know we’re receipt of a copy of this Jacqueline Taitano
Terlaje response in reference to what we did the last time and the resolution according to
him should be nullified because it’s erroneous. I don’t know maybe the legal counsel can
tell us whether what we did is correct. Or this is one of the auditor’s semantic? Have you
seen this letter from Jacqueline?

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — The protest is that what you’re talking about?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yeah.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — This is the second one that’s the one that’s to GEDA.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yes.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — So they’re going to have to respond to that.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — What?

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

69 I 73



Legal Counsel Kristan Finney - GEDA would have to respond.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — GEDA would have to respond. It’s GEDA’s
action.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — So GEDA did take our resolution.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Yes.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But even though we can terminate the RFP.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — GEDA was the issuer of the RFP.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — I’m sorry?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — GEDA issued the RFP not us.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Yeah but we have that right to terminate that RFP.

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — Well GEDA had to terminate it because GEDA’s
(interrupted).

Chairman Pascual Sablan — No we have the right to tell GEDA to terminate right?

Legal Counsel Kristan Finney — Right yes and that happened and so then GEDA
terminated it and then they countered.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — They protest so it’s in that process right now. So
as long as it’s there you now I won’t even touch we can’t touch the Lajuna thing.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — When the new budget comes out can we also have a
working session to really look at the budget and see how everything has been
appropriated?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Sure, Of course the biggest part of the budget is
just the (inaudible) and we’re working through this process right now we’ve actually
elevated a few people. Mrs. Topasna got promoted in the process so she’ll be handling a
few more of the activities of the financial side. Joey Cruz was recently promoted to
Program Coordinator Ill think or Ill. Those two positions were the initial requirements by
the Public Auditor to have in place in order to ensure financial stability in the whole process
so that there’s two people that can cross check each other. You know both sides do
different entries but both sides can also cross check. So that’s an important step for us
right now to get those positions filled so now that they’ve been tilled there’s ways to fill the
vacancies. One of the things I just had done today is to take one of those positions and
convert it to a land agent position so we can get another land agent in place for CLTC.
Down the road what we have to look at here and I really need to work on the budgeting side

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

70173



0 0

of it is just some of the tools that these guys need. The vehicles are significantly aging and
they need vehicles that can enter some pretty rough terrain so that’s going to be one of the
priorities. There’re no vehicles that’s really very new. The two newest vehicles are tiny little
sedans which are great for just driving down the roads and making deliveries to things. But
for getting into the deep jungle in some cases they have to go, shoot we got my truck
washed for an inspection and then no sooner we get it washed someone drove it down to I
don’t know Ija and then the truck came back all muddy again. But you know it’s necessary
for them to do it. We’re already in the process of replacing computers so that’s probably
lower end on the priority but you know we’ve always marked up our budgets for those kinds
of things and request those but when it comes out from the Governor’s budget people they
reduce us down. So we’re looking that if we have any kind of end of year kind of monies
that might be available for non-expenditure we’ll try to find ways to pay for at least one
vehicle. Because between survey division who do a lot of work for us and then just the land
agents all our vehicles are aging and we don’t have any federal grants. And we’ll never get
federal grants for Chamorro Land Trust but we’re always trying to find ways to do it for the
other parts of the Department.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — The budget for surveying and registering the Government
land is that going to be added into the vehicles because (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well that’s what we’re looking that’s one of the
things we have to do because there’s a lot of work required in that kind of stuff. Serving the
notices and stuff I mean there’s a lot so that’s why of the $850,000 it’s $500,000. Now
that’s to pay for a lot of legal stuff as well and all the costs of postage and serving but also
we’re looking to try and have some of that money to provide for the tools that are needed
for the agents. Nobody can do the job if they don’t have the tools to do the work.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — One last question Mr. Borja really I’m very disappointed on
this Rugby and Football there’s a lot of missing documents. Let us not repeat this. Of
course it’s not during your time, not during our own time. We were not even born at that
time but how can we (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — If you look at that minutes, Terese correct me if
I’m wrong probably the minutes of that meeting was like this thick right. I mean it was
hostile, extremely hostile.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — But how can we prevent these things from happening? Even
Joe Borja at that time he was the Director or rather there’s a lot of notation that there’s no
document found in file. Golly if you were to really investigate this and establish an audit trail
you’re lost because of the missing document. Who would be on your staff would be
responsible?

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well we recently recruited a new Records
Management Officer and this individual is really under the Chamorro Land Trust and to take
care of all our filing systems a person whose job it is to deal with the records. But he’s
going to have the greater job of not only Chamorro Land Trust records but also the

CLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

711 73



Department of Land Management’s records which is already in pretty good shape as it is
but in the monitoring and the care of the records for the Chamorro Land Trust we’re trying
to get to the next step. I’m giving him some time to get settled again to get moving because
he’s basically pretty new to the job. We’re already making some headway on doing a few
things to get him order. He got stolen away for almost over a month for FestPac assistance
so he’s back on line again and we need to get his feet wet again back and just to do
primarily maintenance of our records. Because we did have an individual prior and you
know there were some difficulties there and I guess he was like one of the first casualties of
me coming in to the job. I asked him to do something else and he said I’m retiring so you
know I said okay then good luck. But like you said I’d rather lose my job doing something
right than lose my job doing something wrong. So that’s what we’re trying to do we are
working and a lot of these things the computer digitalization of our records is very important
and it’s one of the things I need to keep up on speed but it’s an ongoing work in process.
There’s been some headway along the way it was a whole lot different two years ago than it
is today. So we’re making a lot of headway along the way.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Going back to the creation of this commercial list being that
it requires public hearing is there a way we can work something out where we send a
courtesy letter to the mayors of that particular (interrupted).

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well you know I think you guys have requested I
think the Chairman even said it in his hearing that he would like to have the hearings to be
held at the municipality. So you know if that’s the request of the Commissioners that’s what
we’ll do even though it’s not in the law but you know that’s what we’ll do. So you know I’m
not coming up with proposing anything new right now there’s nothing really more than that
(interrupted).

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — Because that was the issue on the first public hearing that
we ever had.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Well you know I think people are just digging just
like the way they were for the Pago Bay bill.

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — That’s all I have.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — I’m off-island next month all next month.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — Who’s not here next month?

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Joe again?

Vice-Chairman Joseph Cruz — I got to go get my grandkid.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Okay.

cLTC Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2016

cC) () 72173



0 0
Administrative Director Michael Borja — So don’t think you guys can have a meeting
next month and Liberation Day falls on our next meeting.

Commissioner Pika Fejeran — Okay so I’m not going to miss it.

Administrative Director Michael Borja — No so there will be no meeting. Thanks that’s for
getting it taken care of a lot of this stuff because this is a lot of work here.

Chairman Pascual Sablan — Thank you too Mr. Borja.

IX. ADJOURNMENT
Commissioner Pika Fejeran moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Amanda Santos
seconded the motion. Meeting adjourned at 5:11pm.

Transcribed by: Teresa Topasna, Administrative Assistantflbtt0.(a

Approved by Board motion in meeting of: 2- /8/

Michael J.B. Borja, Administrativy t :ttdluf / Date:

Pascual Sablan, Chairman:___________________ Date:________

CLTc Meeting Minutes
June 16,2016

73 I 73



CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

Actions Taken on Agenda-June 16. 2016

1. Guam Hals Angels Football Lot Easement:
a. Scheduled to meet with Rugby Association to inform them of board’s reversal on

previous decision easements

2. Guam Racing Federation
a. GRF given Resolution No. 201 6-06 stating CLTC’s position
b. GRF provided copy of insurance and certified documents of extracted material
c. GRF agreed to conduct routine measured topographical updates to verify

extractions

3. CLTC Fund Lockbox
a. Sent Resolution No. 2016-09 and letter to Department of Administration regarding

use of CLTC funds

4. Funds for Survey
a. Resolution No. 201 6-08 to Guam Legislature declaring the Commission’s position

on the budget request for survey and registration of CLTC properties

5. Conservation easement, Fadian-AAFB
a. Action on hold for the moment due to introduction of Bill No. 362-33 that creates

conservation easements in Inarajan and Mangilao

6. International Bridge
a. Met with Mr. Tolkes of IBC and they concur to move from the site. Equipment is

currently being removed and expected completion is February 2017. CLTC is
scheduled to do a site inspection soon to determine condition of the area

7. Commercial lease
a. CLTC Resolution Nos. 2016-10, 2016-11, & 2016-12 that designated land lots for

commercial use were transmitted to the Guam Legislature on June 24, 2016. The
sixty day review period ends on August 23, 2016

8. Attached are copies of the approved resolutions

CHAMORRO LAND TRU5T COMMISSION
AGENDA 061616 ACTIONS 1



________________

ON
VCLTC

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-06

Declaration and Position on
Guam Racing Federation

License Agreement Provisions

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC), engaged

in a Ucense Agreement, dated June 1. 1998, with the Guam Racing Federation

(hereafter GRF), for Lot Number 7161-RI, Yigo, Guam, consisting of approximately

1019,844 square meters (252 acres) of undeveloped land as authorized by Public Law

24-141, and

WHEREAS, GAF has engaged in mineral extraction from the identified lot with

the intent of the CLTC to receive fifty percent of the value of the extracted material, and

WHEREAS, Office of Public Accountability (hereafter OPA), in four successive

audits of the CLTC (2012, 2013, 2014, 2015), identified as a Finding that revenues

generated from mineral extraction were not evidenced by an underlying agreement or

documentation of royalty rates, nor were revenue rates evidenced by a verification of

actual coral materials extracted, and

WHEREAS, GRF has not provided to the CLTC any verification of insurance

coverage as required by the License Agreement, and

WHEREAS, Public Law 30-204, Section 6, established an Event Admissions

Assessment requiring ten percent of admission price be paid to the Govemment of

Guam.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners, pending an
affidavit from Guam Racing Federation identifying the companies receiving

material extracted from the licensed lot, places a moratorium on all coral
extraction from Lot Number 7161-Ri, Vigo, Guam.

2. Guam Racing Federation must provide a validated and certified method of
determining actual coral materials extracted and the information must be reported
to the Chamorro Land Trust Commission at least quarterly.

3. Chamorro Land Trust Commission and the Guam Racing Federation engage in a
Memorandum of Agreement regarding royalty rates.

4. Guam Racing Federation provide a validated and certified method of determining
admissions assessment and provide a report for the last five years of admissions
fees collected to the Chamorm Land Trust Commission.



cJ

Chamorro Land Trust Commission
Resolution 2016-06

Page 2

5. Guam Racing Federation provide insurance certification to the Chamorro Land
Trust within ten days and upon each renewal. Terms of the insurance coverage

shall be no less than the requirement stated in the License Agreement.

6. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this
Resolution to the Guam Racing Federation.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST
COMMISSION THIS DAY OF JUNE 2016.

___________________

Date: 4/a,/i%

PASCUAL A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

_______________________

Date:_________
MICHAEL . BOR A, Administrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission



N,

a r%

_____

U

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-07

Declaration and Position on
Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-RI, Municipality of Tamuning

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTCJ controls
and administers Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-Ri, Municipality of Tamuning and that this
lot is partitioned from the original lot known as Lot No. 5075-REM-A-NEW, Municipality
of Tamuning, and

WHEREAS, East-West Rental Center (hereafter EWRC,), in a letter, dated April
27, 2016, requested the CLTC consider an acquisition of Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-Ri,
Municipality of Tamuning in a value-for-value exchange with Lot No. 154-1, Municipality
of Yona, assumed to be owned by EWRC, and

WHEREAS, at the CLTC regularly scheduled monthly meeting in May 19, 2016,
EWRC verbally submitted their proposal for a value-for-value land exchange to acquire
Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-RI, Municipality of Tamuning, and

WHEREAS, the CLTC Board of Commissioners in their May 19, 2016 meeting
moved in a unanimous decision to disapprove the EWRC offer to acquire CLTC property,
and

WHEREAS, the Guam Legislature, in June 3, 2016, introduced Bill No. 331-33,
an act to transfer portions of Lot 5075, Municipality of Tamuning owned by the CLTC to
Decha Farms, Inc., a company with the same ownership as EWRC, in a land exchange,
and

WHEREAS, at the CLTC regularly scheduled monthly meeting in June 16, 2016,
the board of commissioners directed a resolution memonalizing their May 19, 2016
decision regarding Lot No 5075-REM-A NEW-Ri, Municipality of Tamuning.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOL VED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners rejected the
direct request for Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-Ri, Municipality of Tamuning, to be
transferred from the CLTC land inventory or to be sold.

2. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners, in their
November 19, 2015 meeting approved Lot No. 5075-REM-A NEW-RI,
Municipality of Tamuning, to be made available as a property for commercial use
in accordance with Public Law 33-95.

3. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners does not support
Bill No 331-33.



Chamorro Land Trust CommTssion
Resolution 2016.07

Page 2

4. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this

Resolution to the Guam Legislature.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST

COMMISSION THIS l6 DAY OF JUNE 2016.

__________________

Date:_______

PASCUAL A. SABLAN, Chairman ‘ ‘

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

________________________

Date:_6

MICHAEL J.(BORJ , Administrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission



Ia_.

a
W L4ic.

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-08

Declaration and Position on
Funding for Land Surveys

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTc), controls
and administers almost a third of Guam’s land for the purpose of administering residential
and agricultural eases to native inhabitants of Guam, and

WHEREAS, CLTC lessees are responsible for surveying properties assigned to

them often at costs they cannot bear, and

WHEREAS, CLTC also has numerous parcels of land yet to be registered and

cannot be used until they are formally registered, and

WHEREAS, CLTC has included in its Fiscal Year 2017 budget request an amount

of $850,000 for the purpose of surveying and registering Chamorro Land Trust

Commission lands, to include individual lots so they can be assigned to new lessees,
and

WHEREAS, the mass surveys to be conducted are financially and methodically

more efficient.

NOW THEREFORE BE if RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners entreats the

Guam Legislature to support the budgetary request to fund the services to survey
and register Chamorro Land Trust Commission lands.

2. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this
Resolution to the Guam Legislature,

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST
COMMISSION THIS 16 DAY OF JUNE2016.

_____________

Date: frA V’i
PASCUAL A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

_____________________

Date:
MICHAEL .1. ObJA, qdministrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission



0
_1! C

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-09

Declaration and Position on
Special Fund Transfers

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC) is funded from the
Chamorro Land Trust Operations Fund, and

WHEREAS, The Office of Public Accountability, in their 2015 audit of the CLTC, declared
CPA Finding No. 2015-004 Special Fund Transfer which stated the following condition:

Outing the year ended September 30, 2015, cumulative cash transfers of $2,360,000 were

effectuated from the Chamorro Lend Trust Operations Fund to GovGuam’s General Fund.
Public Law 32-181 requires that aft cash amounts from Special Funds be promptly
reimbursed to the Special Fund from which it was withdrawn within s14’ (60) days after

receipt of transferred cash amounts by the General Fund. Reimbursement has not occurred

within the stipulated timehna Instead, a $2,000,000 reimbursement occurred on April21,

2016.

WHEREAS, on May 9,2016 and May 31,2016, $600,000 and $1,500,000, respectively
were transferred from the Chamorro Land Trust Operations Fund.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners wants no funds
transferred from the Chamorro Land Trust Operations Fund for non-appropriated
purposes without concurrent notification to the CLTC.

2. The outstanding balance of the special fund transfer in 2015 for the amount of $360,000
be reimbursed immediately, in accordance with Public Law 32-181.

3. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners request the Department
of Administration provide written notification to CLTC of the two separate May 2016
special fund transfers totaling $23000,000 from the Chamorro Land Trust Operations
Fund and for reimbursement to be made within sixty days as required by Public Law 32-
181.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
This l6 DAY OF JUNE2016.

_______________

Date: fr4 ‘Ak
PASCUAL A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust CommIssion

1&2f’9Ø9 . Date:________
MICHAEL J.BORJA.Administrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Oommission



p t- p
VCLTC

I ——

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-10

Declaration and Designation of

Land for Commercial Use

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC), pursuant to

Public Law 33-95, may declare and designate certain lands for commercial leasing or

licensing to the general public. CLTC shall conduct a public hearing for the proposed lands

and the commissioners shall approve by resolution the proposed lands. The resolution shall

then be forwarded to I Liheslaturan Guahan within thirty days for review; and

WHEREAS, the CLTC board of commissioners at their November 19, 2015, regularly

scheduled meeting passed a motion for the CLTC Administrative Director conduct a public

hearing of proposed lands; and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, at 6:00PM, the CLTC conducted a public hearing

for the proposed lands at the Dededo Senior Center, Dededo Guam; and

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly
scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the public hearing comments on the

proposed lands for commercial use; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly

scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the following parcel:

Lot 5075-REM-ANEW-Ri, Tamuning. SIze: i .9 acres. Zone: R2. Survey
Map: 172FY2012 & 057FY2016 Sketch. Tax Assessed Value: —$471,583.
Potential use for commercial activity conducive to its size and locatIon.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners approves the listed

land and declares this land to be designated property for commercial use having been
duly public heard in accordance with Public Law 33-95; and

2. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this

Resolution to I Liheslaturan Guahan with its recommendation to approve the property
identified in this Resolution.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
THIS l6 DAY OF JUNE 2016.

________________

Date:________

PASCUAL V.A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

— Date:_6
MICHAEL Jf BORJ4, Administrative Director
Charnorro Land Trust Commission



‘ZL9N

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-11

Declaration and Designation of
Land for Commercial Use

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC), pursuant to

Public Law 33-95, may declare and designate certain lands for commercial leasing or

licensing to the general public. CLTC shall conduct a public hearing for the proposed lands

and the commissioners shall approve by resolution the proposed lands. The resolution shall

then be forwarded to I Lmeslaturan Guahan within thirty days for review; and

WHEREAS, the CLTC board of commissioners at their November 19, 2015, regularly

scheduled meeting passed a motion for the CLTC Administrative Director conduct a public

hearing of proposed lands; and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, at 6:00PM, the CLTC conducted a public hearing

for the proposed lands at the Dededo Senior Center, Dededo Guam; and

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly

scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the public hearing comments on the

proposed lands for commercial use; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly

scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the following parcel:

Lot 7054415, Yigo. Size: 12 acres. Zone: A. Survey Map: 167F193. Tax
Assessed Value: WA. Currently being used as light industrial and
potential to be used for any commercial or multi-residential activity
conducive to its size and location.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOL VED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners approves the listed

land and declares this land to be designated property for commercial use having been

duly public heard in accordance with Public Law 33-95; and

2. The Charporro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this

Resolution to I Liheslaturan Guahan with its recommendation to approve the properly

identified in this Resolution.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

THIS I6 DAY OF JUNE 2016.

______________

Date: 4
PASCUAL V.A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

___________________________

Date:_________

MICHAEL J. . BORJ , Administrative Director
Chamorro Land Trust Commission



/33N

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-12

Declaration and Designation of
Land for Commercial Use

WHEREAS, the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (hereafter CLTC), pursuant to Public Law

33-95, may declare and designate certain lands for commercial leasing or licensing to the general
public. CLTC shall conduct a public hearing foc the proposed lands and the commissioners shall
approve by resolution the proposed lands. The resolution shall then be forwarded to I Lihes!aluran
Guahan within thirty days for review; and

WHEREAS, the CLTC board of commissioners at their November 19, 2015, regularly
scheduled meeting passed a motion for the CLTC Administrative Director conduct a public hearing of
proposed lands; and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, at 6:00PM, the CLTC conducted a public hearing for the
proposed lands at the Dededo Senior Center, Dededo Guam; and

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2016, the CLTC board ot commissioners at their regularly
scheduled meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed the public hearing comments on the proposed lands
for commercial use; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2016, the CLTC board of commissioners at their regularly scheduled
meeting, Tamuning, Guam, reviewed The following parcel:

Tract 10123 (Lot 7128-REM), Vigo. Size: 30 acres. Zone: A. Survey Map:
229FV76. Tax Assessed Value: $2,666,037. This tract is master planned for
about ninety one-third acre residential lots to include some road frontage
commercial use. Potential use to engage In a commercial contract with a
developer to install infrastructure and build approximately one hundred fifty
allDrdable homes to be sold to eligible CLTC applicants or existing CLTC
residential or agricultural leaseholders who have not yet developed their leased
properties. Marine Corps Drive frontage area may be designed for small-scale
commercial activity to be described and approved later.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,

1. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners approves the listed land and
declares this land to be designated property for commercial use having been duly public heard
in accordance with Public Law 33-95; and

2. The Chamorro Land Trust Commission Board of Commissioners transmits this Resolution to I
Ltheslaturan Guahan with its recommendation to approve the property Identified In this
Resolution.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED BY THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION THIS
DAVOF JUNE 2016.

______________

Date:_______
PASCUAL V.A. SABLAN, Chairman
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

______________________

Date:____________
MICHAEL JS. B JA, Admi7lstrallve Director
Chamorre Land rust Commission



0 Q

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

Mark A. Duenas — Request to Decline Leased Land

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 5402-RSNEW-17-3, Mangilao. Survey Map, prepared by Frank L.G. Castro, P.L.S. No.19, L.M.

No. 046 FY2013

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,858+7- square meters, Residential Lease

c. Lease Instrument Number: 862536

d. Field Description: No access to get into area — CLTC team went out to visit the area and found an easement
to get to the property, however, a wood/tin home sits on the easement belonging to Raymond C. Cruz and
family.

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 11, 1995 at 2:26pm
b. April 1, 2008: NOIA Issued — S.A. issued for Lot 5402-RSNEW, Mangilao. Documents signed by CLTC

and acknowledged by Mr. Duenas
c. May 19, 2008: Survey contract between Mr. Duenas and TG Associates submitted to CLTC
d. March 5, 2014: Residential lease signed by Governor Eddie Baza Calvo
e. March 10, 2014: Residential lease recorded with Land Management, Inst. No. 862536

3. RECOMMENDATION FROM CLTC:

A. Based on our inspection of the area, the access point to the Duenas’ area is blocked by a single wood
and tin house with surrounding junk cars and debris owned by Raymond C. Cruz and family.

1.Family currently living on the area does not have a lease, however, the person living in the home
has a CLTC application and his father is an LUP holder—Jose Bias Cruz #727. LUP holder is
deceased but his son, Raymond C. Cruz is occupying on the same area along with his family.
Family is aware that they must move off from the easement and locate a different location for
the family based on their LUP standing. CLTC would like to move them from their original
location to L4, 81, T15344 Mangilao (former lot is L5402-R5-NEW-16) to an open area within
their current location.

2.The easement is recorded as a 60’ Public Access and Utility Right of Way Document No. 11527
3. Mr. Duenas can be relocated to a different area given that he incurs the cost of the survey of the

new lot placement. CLT would need to locate a property for the Duenas family within the
available CLT properties.

EXHIBIT A: Pictures of area blocking access for the Duenas family

EXHIIBT B: Aerial map of location for the Duenas family and home sitting on the easement

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
DECLINE OF LEASED LAND — MARK A. DUENAS



C

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

Cindy D. Terlaje — Request to Decline Leased Land

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 5402-R5NEW-17-6, Mangilao. Survey Map, prepared by Frank L.G. Castro, P.L.S. No.19, L.M.

No. 046 Ff2013

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,858+1- square meters, Residential Lease

c. Lease Instrument Number: 862539

d. Field Description: No access to get into area — CLTC team went out to visit the area and found an easement

to get to the property, however, a wood/tin home sits on the easement belonging to Raymond C. Cruz and

family.

2. CHRONOI.OGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 9, 1995 at 3:42pm, Numerical Code:
b. March 31, 2008: NOIA Issued — S.A. issued for Lot 5402-RSNEW, Mangilao. Documents signed by

CLTC and acknowledged by Ms. Terlaje
c. January 23, 2014: Residential lease signed by Governor Eddie Baza Calvo
d. March 10,2014: Residential lease recorded with Land Management, Inst. No. 862539

3. RECOMMENDATION FROM CLTC:

A. Based on our inspection of the area, the access point to the Terlaje’s area is blocked by a single wood
and tin house with surrounding junk cars and debris owned by Raymond C. Cruz and family.

1.Family currently living on the area does not have a lease, however, the person living in the home

has a CLTC application and his father is an LUP holder—Jose Bias Cruz #727. LUP holder is

deceased but his son, Raymond C. Cruz is occupying on the same area along with his family.
Family is aware that they must move off from the easement and locate a different location for
the family based on their LUP standing. CLTC would like to move them from their original

location to L4, B1, T15344 Mangilao (former lot is L5402-R5-NEW-16) to an open area within

their current location.

2.The easement is recorded as a 60’ Public Access and Utility Right of Way Document No. 11527
3.Ms. Terlaje can be relocated to a different area given that he incurs the cost of the survey of the

new lot placement. CLT would need to locate a property for the Duenas family within the
available CLT properties.

EXHIBIT A: Pictures of area blocking access for the Duenas family

EXHIIBT B: Aerial map of location for the Duenas family and home sitting on the easement

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
DECLINE OF LAND LEASE — CINDY D. TERLAJE



C

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

Stephanie A. Duenas - Decline of Leased Land and Transfer of Lease

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 5402-RSNEW-17-5, Mangilao. Survey Map, prepared by Frank L.G. Castro, P.L.S. No.19, LM.

No. 046FY2013

b. Lot Size / Lease Type: 1,858+!- square meters, Residential Lease

c. Lease Instrument Number: 850528

d. Field Description: No access to get into area — CLTC team went out to visit the area and found an easement

to get to the property, however, a wood/tin home sits on the easement belonging to Raymond C. Cruz and

family.

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 9, 1995 at 4:28pm, Numerical Code: 1701
b. March 31, 2008: NOIA Issued — 5.A. issued for Lot 5402-R5NEW, Mangilao. Documents signed by

CLTC and acknowledged by Ms. Duenas
c. May 19, 2008: Survey contract between Mr. Duenas and TG Associates submitted to CLTC
d. December 17, 2013: Residential lease signed by Governor Eddie Baza Calvo
e. February 17, 2014: Residential lease recorded with Land Management, Inst. No. 861737

3. RECOMMENDATION FROM CLTC:

A. Based on our inspection of the area, the access point to the Duenas’ area is blocked by a single wood

and tin house with surrounding junk cars and debris owned by Raymond C. Cruz and family.

1.Family currently living in the Duenas’ designated area does not have a lease, however, the

person living in the home has a CLTC application and his father is an LUP holder — Jose Bias Cruz

#727. LUP holder is deceased but his son, Raymond C. Cruz is occupying on the same area along

with his family. Family is aware that they must move off from the easement and locate a

different location for the family based on their LUP standing. CLTC would like to move them

from their original location to L4, 81, T15344 Mangilao (former lot is L5402-RS-NEW-16).

2.The easement is recorded as a 60’ Public Access and Utility Right of Way Document No. 11527

B. Ms. Duenas requests to transfer her application rights to her daughter due to her obtaining a private

home, however, Ms. Duenas has not fulfilled her 7-years to retain the lease based on Section 75114 of

21 Guam Code Annotated. CLT recommends that upon the approval of transfer by the board, that her

daughter start paying Property Taxes right away, starting 2016. Ms. Duenas also acknowledges that

upon transferring to a different property that they will incur the cost of survey for the new lot

designation.

EXHIBIT A: Pictures of area blocking access for the Duenas family

EXHIIBT B: Aerial map of location for the Duenas family and home sitting on the easement

cHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
DECLINE OF LEASED LAND AND TRANSFER OF LEASE - 1
STEPHANE A. DUENAS





r
z
.’

c
4

1
p

60
’

Pu
bl

Ic
E

as
em

en
ta

nd
U

tI
lit

y
R

ig
ht

of
W

ay
D

oc
.

N
o.

11
52

7

4
r ••

—
I

s
X

4

Fa
m

ily
of

R
ay

m
on

d
C

.C
w

z
si

tf
ln

g
o
n

pu
bl

ic
ea

se
m

en
t

l&
sl

g
n
aw

d
lo

ts
fo

r
D

ue
na

s
Fa

m
ily

V
W

ith
in

T
ra

ct
15

34
4

M
an

gU
so

(I
or

m
el

iy
)

L
ot

54
02

-R
5N

E
W

47



cm 0
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST

Board of Commissioners Meeting
August 18, 2016

AMPARO K. GUERRERO— REQUEST FOR LOAN GUARANTEE FOR THE AMOUNT

OF $140,000.00

1. FACTS:

a. Location: The Subject Lot is located in the Municipality of Barrigada, Lot 22NEW,
Block F, Tract, 9.

b. Field Description: The site presently has a approximately 75 citrus tree in planters,
and several that are in the ground, there are also several palm tree in planters and in
the ground as well with utilities available within one hundred feet from the site.

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 2, 1995, 4:48pm numerical designation
000697.

b. June 6, 2016 Applicant recorded her Addendum to lease under Document no.
893383.

c. June 30, 2016 Guam Housing Corporation Pre-Approved a loan for the amount of
one hundred forty thousand dollars $140,000.00.

d. July 6, 2016 Applicant submitted a copy of a Building Construction Contract from
Haung’s Construction.

e. July 8, 2016 Applicant submitted a copy of her floor Plan.

3. Recommendations: Amparo K. Guerrero, has been pre-approved by Guam
Housing Corporation for the amount of $140,000.00 to construct a home on her leased
Chamorro Land Trust property. Without the approval of her loan guarantee request Guam
Housing Corporation will not be able to finalize the loan. We therefore recommend approval of
her loan guarantee in the amount of one hundred forty thousand dollars $140,000.00.

Attachments: Guam Housing Pre-Approval etter
Floor plans
construction contract from Huangs cotrtion

MAUHEW LEON GUERRERO 1

AMPARO K. GUERRERO



0 0
GHC
• GUAM ETOUS1NG CORPORATION

1 0 Thv3 157 Has’ t?7, Gi’um 96932

CUA\ HOUSING CORPORAl ION

Kotporasrnn Gmima’ Gun’ han

June 30, 2016
Amparo K. Guerrero
Jade S. Cnn
135 Mansanita Court
Sinajana, Guam 96910

Dear Ms. Guerrero and Ms. Cruz

The Board of Directors of Guam Housing Corporation is pleased to inform you that your application for a
mortgage home loan has been pre-approved. The Construction Loan will be made available to you subject
to the following terms and conditions:

PROGRAM: Six Percent Program (RLF) (4.00%)

PURPOSE: Construction

LOAN AMOUNT: $140,000.00

TERM. 30 years

CLOSING FEE: $10,454.80 (Estimated)
DOWN PAYMENT:
CONDITIONS:

1. Pending receipt of Preliminary Title Report subject to a clear title.
2. Pending receipt of Appraisal Report subject to adequate Appraisal value.
3. Provide proof of Closing Cost.
4. Pending Loan Guaranty from CLTC.

The loan approval constitutes a commitment by Guam Housing Corporation to fund your purchase
contract with the above conditions. Proof of compliance with these conditions shall be submitted within
two weeks from the pre-approval date, which date is July 14,2016.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please call your loan officer at
647-4143.

Sincerely,

Michael 0. Martinez
Acting President

590£ Marine Corps Drive, Sta 514 ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 96931
Telephone Number (671) 647-4143/46. Fax Number (671) 649-4144



W) HUANG’S
e....’ CONSTRUCTION
P.O. Box 7751, Tamuning, Cu 96931
Tel: (671)482-1666
Fax: (671)632-3690

Building Construction Contract

THIS AGREEMENT, is made this 26th day of January 2016, between AMPARO K. GUERRERO &
JADE J. GUERRERO CRUZ hereinafter called Owners, whose address is 135 Mansanita Court
Sinajana, Guam 96910 and HUANG’S CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, License No. 7290, hereafter
called Contractor, whose address is P.O. Box 7751, Tamuning, Guam 96931.

In consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Contractor agrees to construct and complete in a good, workmanlike and substantial manner,
upon the real property hereinafter described, furnishing all labor, materials, tools and equipment
therefore, a 4 BEDROOM, 2 BATHROOM, APPROXIMATELY 1200 SQFT OF LIVING
AREA, and 300 SQFT OF COVERED PORCH, home upon the following described real
property:

LOT 22, BLOCK 2, TRACT 9, BARRIGADA, GUAM

2. The structure is to be constructed and completed in strict performance with plans and
specifications have been filed with the DEPARTMENT OF LAND MANAGEMENT OF GUAM,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, and GUAM HOUSING CORPORATION, Hereinafter
referred to as Lien Holder, if no First Lien Holder is named herein all reference to same in this
contract is to be disregarded.

The structure is also to be constructed and completed in strict compliance with all laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of competent public authority, and Contractor is to apply for and
obtain all required permits, paying all fees therefore, and all other fees required by such public
authority.

3. In consideration of the covenants and agreements hereof being strictly performed and kept by
Contractor, including the supplying of all labor, materials and services required by the Contract,
and the construction and completion of the structure, Owner agrees to pay to the sum of
$140,000.00 in installments as follows:



1st Increment 20% Upon Completion of Foundation & Pouring of Foundation $ 28,000.00

Upon Completion of Pouring of floor Slab, Electrical and
2nd Increment 20% . . $ 28,000.00

Plumbing Rough-ins

3rd Increment 15% Upon Completion of Erection 1/2 Walls $ 21,000.00

4th Increment 20% Upon Completion of Roof Slab & Electrical Rough-ins $ 28,000.00

5th Increment 25% Upon on Receiving Occupancy Permit $ 35,000.00

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $ 140,000.00

4. The Contractor agrees to commence work hereunder within 15 days or within reason after receipt of: (I)
written note from the owner to commence work, (2) Building Permit, and (3) Notice to Proceed from
owner’s financial institute verifying that funds are available in the owner’s name to fund the stated project
(unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by the two panics); to begin said work thereafter diligently and
continuously to completion, and in any and all events to complete the stated work within 275 days after
the actual date of commencement of work, subject to such delays as are permissible under paragraph 10
herein below. Jn no event shall the contractor commence said work or place any materials on the site
thereof prior to receipt of such notice from the owner. $50.00 per day will be paid to the owner for each day
the project has not completed after the expiration of the stated time frame to complete the project has
lapsed with maximum penalty amount of $2000.

5. Contractor shall pay promptly all valid bills and charges for material , labor or otherwise in connection with
or arising out of the construction of said structure and will hold Owner of the property free and harmless
against all liens and claims of lien for labor and material, or either of them, flied against the property or any
part thereof, and from and against all expense and liability in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to court costs and attorney’s fees resulting or arising there from. Should any liens or claims or lien
be filed for record against the property, or should Owner receive notice of any unpaid bill or charge in
connection with the construction, Contractor shall forthwith either pay or discharge the same and cause the
same to be released of record, or shall furnish owner with proper indemnity either by satisfactorily
corporate surety bond or satisfactory title policy, which indemnity shall also be subject to approval of First
Lien Holder.

6. The plans and specifications are intended to supplement each other, so that any works exhibited in either
and not mentioned in the other are to be executed the same as if they were mentioned and set forth in both.

7. Should the owner at any time during the progress of the work request any modification, alterations or
deviations in, additions to, or omissions from, this contract or the plans or specifications, he shall be at
liberty to do so, and the same shall in no way affect or make void this contract; but the amount thereof shall
be added to or deducted from the amount of the contract price aforesaid, as the case may be, by a fair and
reasonable valuation, based upon the actual cost of labor and materials plus 15% profit to the Contractor.
And this Contract shall held to be completed when the work is finished in accordance with the original
plans as amended to modified by such changes, whatever may be the nature or extent thereof. The rule of
practice to be observed in fulfillment of the paragraph shall be that upon the demand of either the Owner or
the Contractor, the character and valuation of any or all changes, omissions or extra work shall be agreed
upon and fixed in writing, signed by the owner and the Contractor, prior to creation. Where the alterations,
deviations, additions, or omissions from the said plans or specifications require the written approval of the
“First Lien Holder”, the Owner will secure said written approval. Provided however that the Contractor is

Page 2 of 5

0 0



0 0

not deemed to have waived his nght to compensation for extra work if the same is not provided for in
writing

8 Should Contractor, at any time during the progress of the work refuse or neglect to supply sufficient
material or workmen for the expeditious progress of said work, Owner may, upon giving three days notice

in writing to Contractor, by registered mail, (a copy of which should be furnished to aforesaid “First Lien
Holder©, pro’ide the necessary material and workmen to finish the said work and may enter upon the
premises for such purpose and complete said work, and the expense thereof shall be deducted from the said
contract price, or if the total cost of the work to Owner exceeds the contract price, contractor shall pay to
Owner upon demand the amount of such excess in addition to any and all other damages to which owner

may be entitled In such event Owner may take possession of all materials and appliances belonging to
Contractor upon or adjacent to the premises upon which said work is being performed and may use the
same in the completion of said work

9. The time during the Contractor delayed in said work by (a) the acts of Owner or Ins agents or employees or
those claiming under agreement with or grant from Owner, or by (b) the Acts of God which Contractor
could not have reasonably foreseen and provided against, or by (c) the acts of Owner or his agents which
necessanly delays the work or by (d) any strikes, boycotts or like obstructive actions by employees or labor
organizations and which are beyond the control of Contractor and which he cannot reasonably o’vercome,
shall be added to the time for completion by a fair and reasonable allowance

10 The Contractor shall not be responsible for any damage occasioned by the Owner or Owner’s agent Acts
of God, earthquake, or other causes beyond the control of Contractor, unless otherwise herein provided or
unless he is obligated by the terms hereof to provide insurance against such hazard or hazards It is
understood and agreed that contractor, before incurnng any other expense or purchasing any other materials
for this work shall proceed with the foundation work and that if, at the time of excavation therefore, the
Contractor finds that extra foundation work is required he shall so notify the Owner, and Owner shall at
that time have the right and option to immediately cancel and terminate the within contract or to deposit the
estimated cost to the required extra foundation work with the Lending Agency, if there be one named
herein, or add such amount to the contract funds wherever same are at that time deposited, it being agreed
that in the event of a cancellation the Contractor shall be paid his actual costs of the work done to the time
of cancellation In computing said costs building permit fees, insurance and such financing and work done
to the time of cancellation In computing said costs building permit fees, insurance and such financing and
title charges are as not refundable shall be included, but supervision time, office overhead and profit are to
be included

11 No payment hereunder nor occupancy of said improvements or any part thereof shall be construed as an
acceptance of any work done up to the time of such payment or occupancy, except such items as are plainly
evident to anyone not experienced in construction work, but the entire work is to be subject to the
inspection and approval of Owner at the time when it shall be claimed by Contractor that the work has been
completed At the completion of the work should there be any minor items in question, or to be adjusted,
i e., items not of a substantial nature, Owner may withhold from the payment then due a sum equal to twice
the fairly estimated amount of money required to cover said items or involved by such adjustments, and
shall pay the difference to the Contractor It is understood and agreed that the acceptance of any works by
the Owner shall not be construed to be an acceptance by aforesaid “First Lien Holder” who is not a party
hereto.

12 Owner agrees to sign and file for record within ten days after the completion and acceptance of said work a
notice of completion (a copy thereof to be deposited with aforesaid “First Lien Holder” at least forty-eight
hours prior to such recording), and Contractor agrees upon receipt of final payment, to release the said

Page 3 of S



work and property from any and all claims that may have accrued against same by reason of said
construction. Jf the Contractor faithfully performs the obligations of this Contract on his part to be
performed, he shall have the right to refuse to permit occupancy of the structure by the Owner or Owner’s
agent until Contractor has received the payment, if any, due hereunder at completion of construction, less
such amounts as may be retained pursuant to mutual agreement of the Owner and Contractor under the
provisions of the preceding paragraph hereof. Said “First Lien Holder” has the right to make its own
decisions as to the completion of any work, independent of the parties hereto.

13. Contractor agrees to procure at its own expense and prior to the commencement of any work hereunder fire
insurance with course of construction clause and waiver of fallen building clause attached in a sum equal to
the total cost of said improvements as set forth in paragraph 3 hereof, with loss, if any, payable to any
mortgagee or beneficiary, such insurance to be written to protect the Owner and the Contractor, as their
interests may appear.

14. Contractor shall at Ins own expense carry all workmen’s compensation insurance and public liability
insurance necessary for the full protection of Contractor and Owner during progress of the work.
Certificates of such insurance shall be field with Owner and with said “First Lien Holder” if Owner so
requires, and shall be subject to the approval of both of them as to adequacy of protection.

15. As between the parties hereto, all questions as to the rights and obligations arising under the terms of the
contract, the plans and specifications are subject to arbitration, In case of dispute either party hereto may
make a demand for arbitration by filing such demand in writing with the other. One arbitrator may be
agreed upon, otherwise there shall be three, one named in writing by each party within five days after
demand is given and a third chosen by the two appointed. Should either party refuse or neglect to appoint
said arbitrator or to furnish with any papers or information demanded he or they are empowered by both
parties to proceed ex parte. If there be one arbitrator his decision shall be binding; if there be three the
decision of any two shall be binding. Such decision shall be a condition precedent to any right of legal
action, and wherever permitted by law it may be filed in Court to carry it into effect. The Arbitrators, if
they deem that the case demands it are authorized to award to the party whose contention is upheld such
sums as they shall deem proper for the time expense and trouble incident to the appeal, and, if the appeal
was taken without reasonable cause damages for delay. The arbitrators shall fix their own compensation,
unless otherwise agreed upon, and shall assess the costs and charges of arbitration upon either or both
parties. No one shall act as arbitrator who is in any way financially interested in the contract or in the
business affairs of either Owner or Contractor. The action or decision of any arbitrators do not affect any of
the rights of, and are not binding upon, the aforesaid “First Lien Holder”.

16. Should either party hereto bring suit in court to enforce the terms hereof any judgment awarded shall
include court costs and reasonable attorneys fees to the successful party.

17. Upon the completion of the work the Contractor agrees to remove all debris and surplus materials from
owner’s said property (including used area of structure) and leave said property in a neat and broom clean
condition.

18. The Contractor shall not assign or transfer this contract without first obtaining Owner’s consent in writing.

19. The aforesaid “First Lien Holder” is not a party to this Contract and is not bound or obligated by or under
any of the terms hereof.

20. Time is of the essence of the Contract as to both parties hereto. Borrower will not be penalizing for
unforeseen delays not controlled by borrower relating to regulatory government agency delays.

Page 4 of 5

0 0



0 0

21. The Owner is responsible for providing electricity, water and toilet facilities at the construction site and all
expenses incurred related to such. In situations where utilities are not already within the property and easily

accessible, it is the owner’s responsibility to make it so at the owner’s expense.

22. If no significant action regarding this project is taken within 60 days of the signing of this contract then this
contract is deemed void.

23. Ceramic tiles throughout the house (living area only).

24. 220 volt outlets for each bedroom, kitchen, and living room, French windows for each window.

25. Should buyer cancel contract, buyer will pay for blueprint, building permit and bond (if applicable).

26. Wood used is the property of the contractor. Clearing of lot wiLl be for the area needed to construct the
home and the septic tank and leaching field (if applicable). Obstructions to such clearing will be at owner’s
expense. Removal of debris from clearing will also be owner’s responsibility. if owner elects to remove it.

27. Concrete sidewalk and driveway are NOT included in this contract.

28. Air conditioner and any appliances are NOT included in this contract.

29. The following are material allowance for each item. Any amount that exceeds the price will be paid by
Owner. (If Applicable)

• Toilet - 5100.00 per set
• Lavatory- $200.00 per set
• Shower Head- S 100.00 per set
• Kitchen Sink and Faucet- $200.00 per set
• Light Fixtures- $30.00 per set
• Ceramic Tiles- $1.00 per sqft
• Exterior door - $250 per set

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties hereunto set their hands the day and year first above written.

Contractor - HL’kNG’S Construction LLC Owner — Amparo K. Guerrero

Date Owner - Jade J. Guerero Cnn

Page S of S



C S
.,

-o 0 0 z

0 > -U 0 -1
-T

i

0 z H m r
0
0

0
0

C
a
0

ro

C 6



CR SORRO LAND TRUST COMMISS I
Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

FRANCISCO P. SAN NICOLAS — REQUEST APPROVAL ENTERING INTO A PROJECT WITH THE U.S. FISH &
WILDLIFE SERVICES IN OUTPLANTING SERIANTHES NELSONII. AN ENDANGERED SPECIES TREES, ON A SMAI.L

PORTION OF THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION’S PROPERTY

1. FACTS:

a. Location: Lot 10119-10, Municipality of Dededo

b. Lot Size/Lease Type: 40,449± s.m., Agricultural Lease

c. Lease Instrument Number: 842127

d. Field Description: Flat

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Residential Application Date and Time: December 7, 1995, at 10:30 a.m., Numerical Designation

0000173

b. October 09, 2002: Applicant was interviewed by CLTC staff

c. September 26, 2002: Applicant writes to CLTC seeking approval for agricultural lease. Mr. San

Nicolas has been pasturing horses and cows, raising livestock such as pigs and chickens and

planting minimal fruit trees.

d. January 21, 2004: Received letter from Robert S. Lizama, Mayor of Yigo, writing in behalf of Mr.

Francisco Perez San Nicolas application for Chamorro Land Trust Commission for Agricultural

purposes.

e. january 23, 2004 at 3:35 p.m.: Commission approves Agricultural Lease for (1) acre until further

notice

f. February 13, 2004: CLTC authorizes Francisco P. San Nicolas, portion of Lot 10119-R15, Yigo, to

apply for building permit and clearing permits.

g. February 16, 2004: Ground Lease between Chamorro Land Trust Commission (LESSOR) and

Francisco P. San Nicolas (LESSEE). A portion of Lot 10119-RiS, Yigo, containing an area of not

more than one (1) acre subject to survey.

h. April 7, 2004: Authorization to initiate survey

i. December 19, 2007: Receipt letter dated December 15, 2007, from Francisco P. San Nicolas

regarding preparation of a Ground Lease Agreement involving a portion of Lot No. 10119-RiS,

Municipality of Dededo, Guam.

j. September 09, 2009: Receipt letter dated December 15, 2007, from Mr. Francisco P. San Nicolas.

Ref: Ground Lease Agreement involving Francisco P. San Nicolas and Chamorro Land Trust

Commission for a portion of Basic Lot No. 10119—RiS, Municipality of Dededo, Guam. Survey

prepared by: Frank Castro. Boundary Survey Map of Lot No. 10119-19, Municipality of Dededo,

Guam. Map Ref: DLM No. 145FY2004.

GLENN EM 1

FRANCISCO P. SAN NICOLAS



k. September 09, 2009: Receipt letter dated December 15, 2009 from Mr. Francisco P. San Nicolas.

Ref: Ground Lease Agreement involving a portion of Lot No. 10119-RiS, Municipality of Dededo,

Guam

I. April 13, 2010: Letter receipt from Mr. Francisco P. San Nicolas, Ref: Amend the description of the

property to read, “Lot No. 10119-19, Municipality of Dededo, Guam, containing and area of 40,449

s.m., ten (10) acres”. Survey prepared by: Frank LG. Castro, Professional Surveyor No. 19, Pursuant

to an Authorization to initiate survey by Chamorro Land Trust Commission.

m. September 19, 2011: Memorandum of Lease

n. September 26, 2011: Agricultural Lease between Chamorro Land Trust Commission (Lessor) and

Francisco P. San Nicolas (Lessee). A portion of lot 10119-R20, Dededo containing an area of not

more than ten (10) acres subject to survey.

o. Septmber 26, 2012: ADDENDUM TO AGRICULTURAL LEASE RECORDED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF

LAND MANAGEMENT, OFFICE OF THE RECORDER ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2011, UNDER INSTRUMENT

NO. 826913, BETWEEN CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION (LESSOR) AND FRANCISCO P. SAN

NICOLAS (LESSEE). Lot 10119-21, in the Municipality of Dededo, containing and area of 40,449±

square meters, L.M. No. 166FY2004.

p. July 18, 2016: Letter receipt from Francisco P. San Nicolas to request approval from the Director of

Land Management/Chamorro Land Trust Commission entering into a project with the U.S. Fish and

Wildlife Services.

3. STAFF ANALYSIS: Mr. Francisco P. San Nicolas would like to request approval from Chamorro Land

Trust Commission entering into a project with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services. With the guidance of

U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Mr. Francisco would like plant Serianthes Nelsonii, an endangered species trees,

on a small portion of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission’s leased property.

GLENN EAY . 2

FRANCISCO P. SAN NICOLAS Q



n
-C...

July 18, 2016

i,fi’¼1 t
JULfl 2016

To: Michael J.B. Borja, Director 11me

Department of Land Management

P. 0. Box 2950

Hagatna, Guam 96932

From: Francisco P. San Nicolas

209 Juan Jacinto Road

Yigo, Guam 96929

Subject: Approval request.

This is to request approval from the Director of the Department of Land

Management! Chamorro Land Trust Commission for my entering into a project

with the U. S. Fish and Wildlife Services in out planting SERIANTHES NELSONII, an
endangered species trees, on a small portion of the Chamorro Land Trust

Commission’s property.

First of all, I would like to mention that I, Francisco P. San Nicolas, am the Lessee
of a parcel of land in Vigo under a Tong term Agricultural Lease Agreement with

Chamorro Land Trust Commission, the l.essor. Said parcel is Lot No. 10119-21,

Municipality of Yigo, Guam.

Several months ago, I was approached by an employee of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (Fish and Wildlife Services) to see if I would be interested in

participating in a Habitat Improvement Project of out planting some SERIANTHES



NELSONII trees on a small portion of the premises. SERIANTHES NEISONII trees is

a critically endangered tree species endemic to Guam and Rota.

The project would require a Partnership Agreement involving myself, (the

Leaseholder of the premises), the University of Guam, Guam Plant Extinction and

Prevention Program (Guam PEP program/GPEPP), and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Services (USFWS) pursuant to authority of contained in the Partners for Fish and

Wildlife Act (109-294), and the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 U. S. C. 661

et seq.) and the Fish and Wildlife Act of 1956 (16 U. S. C. 742a-j), as amended.

Funding for the project will be provided by U. 5. Fish and Wildlife Services.

For your review, a copy of the Agreement ( PARTNERS FOR FISH AND WILDLIFE

PRTOGRAM AGREEMENT) is attached.

Should you have any questions, I can be reached by calling 653-2458.

Thank you for your kind attention on this matter.

Sincerely,

Francisco P. San Nicolas

00



o0



N
ChMMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSi,jN

Board of Commissioners Meeting
August 18, 2016

Linda R. Perez — Complaint on Application Process

1. FACTS:
a. Location: 5382N-1, Municipality of Barrigada
b. Lot size/Lease Type: 3 acre/No lease (pending Gov’s signature)
c. Lease Instrument Number: NA
d. Field Description: Flat lands

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS
a. Residential Application Date & Time: 12/7/95 at 10:47 am, Numerical Designation 00240.
b. On Dec. 5, 2002, applicant was interviewed by CLTC Staff
c. On March 29, 2004, First lot assignment 10171 for3 acres.
ci. On August 5, 2004 was approved for only one (1) acre by the Director.
e. On Feb. 9, 2006, Applicant turned in change form to change from R to A, APPROVED
on Feb. 10, 2006.
f. On Aug 1, 2007, Applicant was shown Lot 5380 Barrigada, 5402-R5NEW & 5401 N
Mangilao, Lot 10171, Dededo & 272 Umatac.
f. Aug. 9, 2007 Survey authorization, NOIA & UT was issued but was not picked up
until July 16, 2008, SA was issued for Lot 5382N Barrigada for 3 acres.
g. On June 22, 2016, Applicant was advise to change application type from R to A,
APPROVED June 28, 2016.
h. On July 13, 2016, Applicant signed her Agriculture Lease.

3. STAFF ANALYSIS: CLTC staff has analyzed the chronological facts in the processing
of Applicants CLTC Application No. 240, and has found that it has taken twenty-one (21)
years for the applicant to receive her lease.

a. Seven (7) years to interview applicant (1995 — 2002)
b. Two (2) years to issue a lot assignment (2002 — 2004)
c. Three (3) years to be issued a Survey Authorization (2004 —2007)
ci. Nine (9) years to obtain an approved map (2007 — 2016)
e. One (1) Month to obtain a lease. (2016)

LORRAINE NEDEDOG

LINDA R. PEREZ



ChAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSiON
Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

VERONICA BLAS CAMACHO — Agricultural land increase

1. FACTS:

a. Agricultural application to lease
a. Y2 acre Minimum

b. Applicant is requesting CLTC approval to lease, for agricultural purposes, 2 acres of
available CLTC agriculture land

c. Applicant is currently not occupying CLTC lands for application purposes

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 09, 1995 at 9:49AM

b. Letter of Request dated July 15, 2016
i. Requesting 2 Acres of agricultural land.

1. Farm plan attached

3. RECOMMENDATION: Request approval for change of beneficiary based on the submitted
affidavit. Allow for 1 acre of agricultural land with consideration to increase to not more than 2
acres after a minimum of one year compliance.

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION —

AGRICULTURAL LAND INCREASE TO 2 ACRES
VERONICA BIAS CAMACHO



()

AGRICULTURAL PLAN -2 ACRE

KIND OF FARM OPERATION:
Will plant similar crops in separate groups: citrus plants (calamansi, tangerine, grapefruit..in one
area, mango and avocado groves in another, separate bush plants such as guava, sineguellas,
marongai, laguana, Ates, starfruit, mulberry, pickle, mansanita; banana, papaya, and lemai frees.
Smaller scale of planting will include hot peppers, eggplant, tomatoes, okra.., short term
production... Low maintenance plants to grow organically. Also plan to include raising a few
livestock such as pigs, chickens for eggs, goats or a couple of cows.

EXPECTED MARKETS:
Marketing is available within the village every week as well as other day/night weekend flea
markets, or local market stands. May have other opportunities with local stores and at the new
Guam Flea Market in Dededo during the weekends. Plan to network with supermarkets on a
seasonal basis. The agricultural land is also an opportunity to live off the land with the rising
costs... i.e. vegetables becoming expensive as fish and chicken. All agricultural land trust
recipients marketing theft fruits and vegetables will hopeffilly aid in price reduction if
competitive. Don’t believe marketing our produce will guarantee a stable income but hopeflilly
enough to buy fertilizers and other items needed to maintain healthy plants.

MANAGEMENT:
It will be first time planting on a larger acreage. We grew up exposed to farming with most
families over a century ago including the present. Managing backyard gardening including
growing various fruit trees is an experience enough to expand my horizon. Goal is to continue
cultivating agricultural plants to replace those aging or destroyed by typhoons. Will reserve
square footage for a nursery in starting up more seedlings to continue with the planting cycles,
and/or market out to others in need.

LABOR:
First thing to do is cultivate the land and hire for that purpose. Once the land is cleared, planting
will take place. We have some collection ofplants ready to be placed on the ground and
searching more, including seeking seedlings with the Dept of Agriculture. Planting most plants
on the agricultural list will not be as strenuous as planting a half acre of beans. Getting all the
family involved to kick off the project(s) will be fin. Of course, when it’s time to pick all the
fruits and, coconuts especially, will be laborious so will pay any family or friend to help, or hire
by the hour if need to.

EFFECT UPON THE ENVIRONMENTAL:
Environmental effects such as typhoon, flood, or pest infestation will have a serious effect on
production. Plant coconuts and beetlenut all along the boundary to serve as wind breaker for
other plants within the property. Another strategy is to consistently plant seeds of fruits and
cuttings cultivated to plant again. Will work with the agency providing financial help to restore
the land. Also comply with agricultural regulations in using pesticides.

(gfc z)



7i15/2016 AGRICULTURALPLANTING1.xlsx

(na’/ 3)

WPPOF PLANT 0
Coconut and Beetlenut,
marongai, achote, mancinita 22,262
Avocado, Mango, bananas 22,262
Lemai, guava, mulberry 11,131

Citrus (calamansi, grapefruit,
lemon china, orange) 11,131

Laguana, Ates, bilimbinis,
Phillipine starfruit 11,131
Starfruit (Phillipine)
Pigs, chickens, goat 633

Miscellaneous: hot peppers,
tomatoes, eggplant, green
onions, ect) 9,500
Facility/plant nursery 1,000

TOTAL SQ FT 89,050

A121 .1 .E38.http%3A%2F%2FUerl%3Fid%3Ds06BF7A3848B... Ill



Q Q .

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
Board of Commissioners Meeting

August 18, 2016

Daniel S. Babauta — Request for Extension on Survey Authorization

1. FACTS:
a. Location: Master Plan Map Description - Lot 8-33-10, Inaralan
b. Lot Size! Lease Type: one half (.50)! Residential Lease
c. Lease Instrument Number: Lease in file was not recorded
d. Field Description: No infrastructure in area of development

2. CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

a. Application Date and Time: December 4, 1995 at 8:29am

b. Survey Authorization extended on January 08, 2015

c. Survey Authorization extended on April 22, 2015

d. Mr. Babauta submitted request to extend survey authorization on July 12, 2016

e. Director Michael J.B. Borja request Mr. Babauta explain the reason the need for the third
extension on Survey Authorization

3. RECOMMENDATION FROM CLTC:
Mr. Daniel S. Babauta is an employee of the Department of Corrections. His work schedule makes it
difficult to meet with potential surveyors. The surveyors that he met with do not want to survey
Chamorro Land Trust property. We recommend extending his Survey Authorization to order to secure a
Surveyor.

LYDIA ESPANGEL TALEU

DANIELS. BABAUTA



0• 0
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Board of Commissioners Meeting
August 18, 2016

Bill Nos. 360-33 & 361-33: Land Transfer to GPA

1. FINDINGS:

a. Bill No. 360-33: CPA needs administrative transfer of land in Talotofo it currently uses
with an existing power substation
(1) Lot 427 was never transferred to CPA
(2) Lot 427 is unregistered land and is approximately 3,243 square meters

b. Bill No. 361-33: CPA needs administrative transfer of land in Talofofo to expand its
existing substation for the purpose of constructing and installing an energy storage
system fed by an existing solar farm
(1) A portion of Lot 421-R26, also identified as LPortion 421 -77 is the requested land

and sits adjacent to Lot 427
(2) This portion of land is part of a larger tract that is unregistered land and is

approximately 2,100 square meters

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

a. Both bills should include the following:
(1) CPA is responsible for survey of the land and to create a land registration survey

map
(2) In Bill No. 361 -33, CPA responsible for surveying entire basic lot and getting it

registered prior to subdividing it into the portion needed in this bill
(3) CPA is responsible for obtaining the necessary appraisals to determine the fair

market value of the properties which shall be payable to the CLTC
(4) Both bills must include a “Reversionary Clause” that the properties must be used

within 5 years or it must be returned to the CLTC
b. Resolution to the Guam Legislature requiring the items listed above be included in the

language of the bill for the concurrence of the CLTC

S

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
BII.L NOS. 360-33 & 361-33: LAND TRANSFER 1
TO GPA



0 0

I MINA ‘TRENTAJ TRES NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2016 (SECOND) Regular Session

Bill No. 5C L c.

Introduced by: TX. Ma_

AN ACT TO TRANSFER LOT 427, MUNICIPALITY OF
TALOFOFO WITH AN AREA OF 3,243± SQUARE
METERS FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE JURISDICTION
OF THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION TO
THE GUAM POWER AUTHORITY FOR THE PURPOSE
OF EXPANDING THE TALOFOFO SUBSTATION.

1 BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE TERRITORY OF GUAM:

2 Section 1. Legislative findings and intent. I Lih&aturan Guâhan finds

3 §8203 of Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated provides that the Guam Power

4 Authority (GPA) is authorized to acquire lands for the purposes of constructing.

5 improving, equipping. maintaining, repairing. reneing. replacing and reconstructing

6 the electrical system of GPA.

7 1 Lthe.s/aturat, Guthhan finds that the Guam Power Authority (GPA) has

S identified property, under the administrative jurisdiction of the Chamorro Land Trust

9 Commission (CLTC), for the purpose of e\panding the Ta/ofofo Electrical Substation.

10 preparing the site for the future construction of an Energy Storage System. These

11 improvements are essential in meeting current and future growth demands for

12 electrical generation and distribution to the Island Wide Power System (IWPS).

1



1 1 Lthes/aturan Guâhan finds that the Guam Power Authority has commissioned

2 a 25.65 MW solar farm through NRG Energy (independent power producer) and a 275

3 KW wind turbine renewable energy as pail of its integrated resource plan; and

4 1 Lilies/a/upon Gnôhan finds that the construction and installation of an Energy

5 Storage System facility at the selected site will provide significant power output

6 stabilization from the Dandan Solar facility and wind turbine, thus firming the net

7 power output.

8 1 Lilies/aturan Guàhan finds that considering the present and future ability of

9 GPA to operate the Island Wide Power System, GPA desires to include Lot 427,

10 Municipality of Ta/ofbfb for the Talofàfo Electrical Substation Expansion and it

11 desires that the CLTC convey to GPA, and such action is deemed in the best interest

12 of both parties and necessary for the Land Registration.

13 Section 2. Authorization to Transfer Land to the Guam Power Authority

14 (CPA). Notwithstanding any other provision of law, rule or regulation, I Liheslaturan

15 Gulihan authorizes the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC) to transfer the

16 existing Ta/oföfo Electrical Substation property containing an area of three thousand

17 two hundred [hity three (3,243) square meters, more or less, Lot 427, Municipality oF

18 Talofhfo, as shown on the Land Registration survey Map of Lot 427, Municipality of

19 Ta/n/h/h prepared by TG Engineers, filed under instrument No. 806752 (See exhibit

20 A) for the construction of a new Energy Storage System (1355 Parcel). GPA shall.

21 upon acquiring the Conditional Grant Deed, submit to the court the Land Registration

22 of the property and all Land Registration expenses shall be borne by GPA.

23 (a). GPA shall pay for the appraisal of the property by two different

24 appraisers certified to do business on Guam, which shall he selected by the

25 Administrative Director of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission.

2

0 0



0 0

I (b). GPA shall have the property surveyed and registered at its own

2 expense.

3 (c). GPA shall work with the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC)

4 to determine an appropriate compensation for the property to include preferably

5 hut not limited to purchase at fair market value, in-kind service exchange of

6 equal value or a combination of options to be approved by GPA, the

7 Consolidated Commission (CCU) and the (CLTC). GPA and CLTC will have

8 one hundred and eighty (180) days to finalize the compensation agreement.

9 Section 3. Proceeds. All proceeds made from the sale of Lot 427 shall be

10 deposited into the Cliamouro Land Thus! Infrastnwture and Surve Fund, identified as

11 Department of Administration Revenue Account Number 3669-57001.

12 Section 4. Rezoning. Lot 427, Municipality of Ta/ofofo, is hereby

13 rezoned from Agricultural (A) to Public Facility (PF) for the purpose of expanding the

14 Talofofo Substation and constructing the Energy Storage System.

15 Section 5. Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon enactment.

16 Section 6. Severability. If any of provision of this law or its application to

17 any person or circLllllstance is found to he invalid or contrary to law, such invalidity

18 shall not affect other provisions or applications of this law, which can be given effect

19 without the invalid provisions or applications and to this end the provisions of this act

20 are severable.

3



—
i7

E
xh

ib
it

A
B

N
IN

o.
?i

t
@

)
F

P
p
A

p
ro

1
0
t

sA
IJ

sr
A

cT
o

p
r

TO
4

If
l

A
P

P
1
0
0
E

I
FT

/

u
i

,W
T

•
0
g

P
F

IF
A

fl
;r

O
,.

A
IC

•F
fl

O
W

D

-

-

-
*

i
A

-
i1

i:
!

i
t
&

’
!
%

4,-

e

L
M

O
R

E
O

IS
W

T
)O

N
J
R

f
l
H

o
r

LO
T

42
7

rI
.[

O
T

.T
F

M
C

t
4

‘A
IA

IT
rn

ro
PO

W
E

R
E

U
B

T
IO

T
10

0}

j
0

0
1

2
,0

—
ry _

2
O

L
T

Q
B

O
N

m
O

S
PC

-

TP
B

-Z
to

J_
5

FO
T

E
.

/ /

.t
R

cz
‘
‘

t/
Z

1
4
c

to
c

W
Il

t

/ I
10

1
42

7
rc

Il
a
E

L
o

to
o

T
I

B

R
E

01
00

0T
C

IS

I / / / /

F
’

/ /
z
r
-
.

—
c1

-
—

-
—

—
—

I -
4
,-

-
-

-
-

-
-
-
-

7
-—

.
-

N

1

—
s

-
—

—

—
-
I

W
I

a

/

0 -o
4

-

IL

C
0
0
r
t

S
C

IL
E

-r
=

IS
B

fl
E

P
O



I MINA ‘TRENTAI TRES NA LIHESLA TURAN GUAHAN
2016 (SECOND) Regular Session

Bill No.’(OI”’2_I&Vfl

Entroduced by: T. C.Ada

C

AN ACT TO TRANSFER A PORTION OF LOT 421-R26,
TENTATIVELY IDENTIFIED AS “LPORTION 421-77”
MUNICIPALITY OF TALOFOFO WITH AN AREA OF 2,100±
SQUARE METERS FROM THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST
INVENTORY TO THE GUAM POWER AUTHORITY FOR
THE PURPOSE OF EXPANDING THE TALOFOFO co
SUBSTATION.

I BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE TERRITORY OF GUAM:

2 Section 1. Legislative findings and intent. / Liheslaturan Guàhan finds § 8203

3 of Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated provides that the Guam Power Authority (GPA)

4 is authorized to acquire lands for the purposes of constructing. improving, equipping,

5 maintaining, repairing, renewing. replacing and reconstructing the electrical system of

6 GPA. I Liheslaizuvn Gz,ôhan finds that the Guam Power Authority (GPA) has identified

7 property. under the administrative jurisdiction of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission

S (CLTC). for the purpose of expanding the Talofofo Electrical Substation, preparing the

9 site for the future construction of an Energy Storage System. These improvements are

10 essential in meeting current and future growth demands for electrical generation and

11 distribution to the Island Wide Power System (IWPS).

12 1 Liheslatw’an Gitfihan finds that the Guam Power Authority has commissioned a

13 25.65 MW solar farm through NRG Energy (independent power producer) and a 275 KW

14 wind turbine renewable energy as part of its integrated resource plan; and

I



1 I Liheslulurun Guts/ian finds that the construction and installation of an Energy

2 Storage System facility at the selected site will provide significant power output

3 stabilization from the Dandan Solar facility and wind turbine, thus firming the net power

4 output.

5 Section 2. Authorization to Transfer Land to the Guam Power Authority

6 (CPA). Notwithstanding any other provision of law, rule or regulation, I Ltheslatumn

7 Guts/ian authorizes the Charnorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC) to transfer

S approximately two thousand one hundred (2,100) square meters (0.518 acres), more or

9 less, which is a portion of Lot 421-R26, tentatively identified as “LPortion 421-77,”

10 Municipality of TaIofbJb, as shown on the Agricultural Subdivision Master Plan of Lot

Ii 421, prepared by Department of Land Management, filed under instrument No. 880748

12 for the construction ofa new Energy Storage System (ESS Parcel). (See exhibit A)

13 a) GPA shall pay for an appraisal of the ESS parcel by a certified Real

14 Estate Appraiser licensed to do business on Guam. which shall be selected by the

15 Administrative Director olihe Chamorro Land Trust Commission.

16 h) GPA shall have the Talofofo Electrical Substation Expansion

17 property surveyed and registered by a Professional Land Surveyor licensed to do

iS business on Guam and the land survey registration survey map, parceling map, and

19 consolidation survey map shall be approved and recorded by the Department of

20 Land Management.

21 c) GPA shall work with the CLTC to determine an appropriate

22 compensation solely for the ESS parcel to include preferably, but not limited to

23 purchase at fair market value, in-kind service exchange of equal value or a

24 combination of options to be approved by GPA, the Consolidated Commission on

25 Utilities (CCU) and the CLTC. GPA and CLTC will have one hundred eighty

26 (180) days to finalize the compensation agreement.

2

0 0



CD •• 0

1 d) CLTC grants right of entry’ immediately for GPA and or its

2 contractors to the ESS parcel to complete required geotechnical survey,

3 topographic survey, archeological studies or other required testing for the design,

4 permitting and construction of the Energy Storage System project, while both

5 parties are finalizing compensation and the Conditional Grant Deed is recorded.

6 e) GPA shall, upon acquiring the Conditional Grant Deed, submit to the

7 court the Land Registration of the property and all Land Registration expenses

S shall be borne by GPA.

9 Section 3. Proceeds of sale. All proceeds made from the sale of Lot 421-R26

10 tentatively identified as “LPortion 42 1-77.” shall be deposited into the Chamorro Land

Ii Trust Infrastructure and Survey Fund, identified as Department of Administration

12 Revenue Account Number 3669-57001.

13 Section 4. Rezoning. The Portion of Lot 421-Rio. tentatively identified as

14 “LPortion 42 1-77,” Municipality of TalofoJb for the ESS, is hereby rezoned from

15 Agricultural (A) to Public Facility (PF) for the purpose of expanding the Thlojbfo

16 Substation and constructing the Energy Storage System.

17 Section 5. Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon enactment.

15 Section 6. Severability. If any of provision of this law or its application to any

19 person or circumstance is found to be invalid or contrary to law, such invalidity s/ia/i not

20 affect other provisions or applications of this law, which can be given effect without the

21 invalid provisions or applications and to this end the provisions of this act are severable.

3



E
xh

ib
it

A
Bi

ll
N

o.
3
(p

1
r3

3
(C

O
R

)

0

N
O

T
IC

E
5

‘o
q
,,
w

a
q
u
K

rc
N

SL
R

r
C

S
L

S

a
—

u
F

.2
..

t,
M

c
I,

E
.;

C
’U

ii
n
IS

c
r

f
t
L

5
f
l
c

v
E

M
&

F
Ü

R
R

S
V

O
’d

R
O

A
I?

F
R

U
V

S
L

IF
S

G
u

*
lj

C
n

F

L
A

’A

0

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

SU
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
SK

E
T

C
H

I
F

G
R

IC
L

tI
JH

A
U

S
’J

R
E

S
JI

Z
O

U
U

A
S

IE
R

P
IJ

H
Z

C
L

O
T

E
2I

D
C

C
ID

S
rI

a
b

2
m

a
R

S
C

S
1
R

A
T

C
N

S
U

R
V

E
Y

U
A

P
C

F
L

O
T

4
2
7

0
C

C
[D

C
6
7
S

2

3
L

A
N

D
R

E
C

:S
IR

A
T

IO
F

I
S

U
R

V
E

Y
L

P
O

f
IC

r
.S

D
CC

N
O

33
01

C
5

O
F

PO
R

T
IO

N
O

F
L

O
T

42
1

-7
7



0 0
CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

Board of Commissioners Meeting
August 18, 2016

Bill No. 362-33: Designate Land in Mangilao & lnaraian as Biodiversitv

Conservation Easements for “Hatdin Amot Chamorro”

1. FINDINGS:

a. Designates the following properties as biodiversity conservation easements
(1) Block 3 Tract 1722, Mangilao, approximately 40 acres. This land is registered.
(2) Lot 354-4-R2, Inarajan, approximately 61,461 square meters. This land is

registered.
b. Bill modifies 21GCA §75121 “The Establishment of Hatdin Amot Chamorro” by

designating the parcels of land for this purpose and classifies this land as a
“Biodiversity Conservation Easement.”

c. Haya Foundation, a non-profit organization is designated to consult the CLTC to
establish criteria, application and operational procedures of the Hatdin Amot
Chamorro.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

a. The following are recommendations to be incorporated into Bill No. 362-33
(1) Each parcel of identified property should be encircled by an interior buffer zone

no less than 10 feet wide and no more than 30 feet wide for the purpose of
protecting from encroachments of neighboring lots. Buffer zone may be used as
a perimeter trail, for the erection of a fence line or other demarcation.

(2) Any and all criteria and procedures shall be approved by resolution by the CLTC
board of commissioners

(3) CLTC shall be the issuer of any parcels used by applicants
(4) Lessees shall not assign, transfer, sublease

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
BILL NO. 362-33 BIODIVERSITY EASEMENTS 1



0• C

I MINA ‘TRENTA! TRES NA LIHESLA TURAN GUAHAN
2016(SECOND) Regular Session

Bill No Icor

Intioduced by

T. C. Ada
Judith T. Won Pacd.D.&/
T. P.. Muna Barnes
N. B. Underwood, Ph.DP—
Mary’ Camacho Torres 1ee(
Tommy Morrison .2

AN ACT TO AMEND § 75121 TO CHAPTER 75 OF
TITLE 21, GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, RELATIVE TO
DESIGNATING BLOCK 3 TRACT 1722,
MUNECIPALITY OF MANGILAO AND LOT 354-4-R2,
MUNICIPALITY OF INARA JAN, AS BIODIVERSITY
CONSERVATION EASEMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE
OF PROVIDING LAND FOR ‘HATDIN AMor
CUAMORRO’

1 BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:

2 Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. I Liheslaturan Cud/ian finds

3 that the 30th Guam Legislature recognized the need to support efforts to preserve

4 and perpetuate the practice of the Chamorro Medicinal Healing Arts, through the

5 passage and enactment of Public Law 30-32.

6 1 Liheslaturan Guâhan finds that Block 3 Tract 1722, Municipality of

7 Ma,igilao as shown on Land Management Instrument No. 880762 and Lot 354-4-

8 R2, Municipality of Inara/an as shown on Land Management Scheme No. M06-

9 002 are uniquely suited for the purposc originally identified in P.L. 30-32. More



I specifically, the Ha/din Ainot Chamorro will become an invaluable tool Ibr

2 cultural preservation and conservation efforts, housing the many indigenous herbal

3 species of flora used for medicinal purposes.

4 1 LthesIaiurai Guáhan finds that the designation of a Biodiversft’

5 Conservation Easement and its use for Hatdi,, Amot C’hwnorro will protect this

6 land from commercial and residential development. Furthermore, the designation

7 will assure the presen’ation of Guam’s pristine Eastern Coastline and Limestone

S Forest.

9 1 Lihes/afura,, Gnâhan therefore intends to authorize and allow the

10 Chamorro Land Trust Commission to designate two parcels of land: Block 3 Tract

I 1 722, &Iunicipalitr of Mangilan and Lot 354—4—R2, Minikipallir of huiraJan, (IS’

12 Biodi;’ersity (‘onsen’ation Easementc for the purpose of establishing fluid/n Ainot

13 Chamorro — Gij’a b’adian and Ilatdin Ai;zot Chamorro — Gnu As—Agas

14 respective/v. And to allow the /14w, Fotuidation, which focuses on preserving,

15 perpetuating and promoting the indigenoLls practices of traditional healing through

16 medicinal plants, access to said lots in order to transplant, cultivate and perpetuate

17 native flora used for traditional healing.

1$ Section 2. § 75 121 of Chapter 75 of Title 21, Guam Code Annotated, is

19 amended to read:

20 “ 75121. The Establishment of ‘Hatdb, Anita Chaniorro ‘.

21 (a) The Chamorro Land Trust Commission, in consultation with the

22 Department ofAgriculture and the UOG Cooperative Extension Scn’icc,

23 shall identify suitable land; and the Chamoio Land Trust Commission shall

24 designate and make availabLe two (2) tracts parcels of land of approximately

25 thur thousand (4000) square meters each, one (I) in the northern part ofthe

26 island, and one (I) in the southern part of the island. Roth parcels shall be

27 designated as a Biodiversiti’ Consenvtio,, Ease,nent for the purpose of

0 0



0 0

transplanting, cultivating herbal plants and establishing a Hate/in Amot

2 Chamorro. The Chumorro Land Trust Commission shall-divide the

3 designated tracts into four (4) parcels or into parccls of onc hundred (100)

4 feet by one hundred (100) fect, with aceess to each lot, for the establishment

5 of the Hatdin Jmot Chamorr&.

6 (b) Block 3 Tract 1722, Municipality of Mangilao as shown on Land

7 Management Instrument No. 880762 (Exhibit A) shall be the site for the

8 northern part of the island.

9 (c) Lot 354-4-IC. Municipality of Inara/an as shown on Land

10 Management Scheme No. M06-002 (Exhibit B) shall be the site for the

IT southern part of the island.

12 (h d)The Charnorro Land Trust Commission, in consultation with the

13 Ilava Foundation (a non-profit organization dedicated to the preservation of

14 the Charnorro healing arts), is hereby directed to establish the criteria,

15 application and operational procedures of the Hate/in Ainot Chamorro. The

16 procedures shall establish the parameters An applicant must submit a

17 proposal for the usage of the parceled lots and a list of plants to be

18 cultivated. To qualiflv to use a parcel of the Hate/hi Ainot clianiorro, the an

19 applicant must be an individual eligible for lease ofCharnorro Land Trust

20 land, and either:

21 (1) Be An member or officer of a non-profit organization

22 registered with the Department of Revenue and Taxation, whose

23 Charter includes the advancement of Chamorro traditional healing or

24 medicine, or the advancement of Chamorro heritage and culture; or

25 (2) Must be a Sunthana or Suruhanu, or an apprentice, or

26 student of traditional Chamorro medicines.

27 Preference shall be given to an applicant who meets more than one (I)

3



-.
•
‘
‘
•

4
t
%

#
’

;
, :
7
,
,

\
I
c
’
l
.

L
L

IU
’

L
4

7
H

/
:
n

T
R

A
C

T
1

7
2

2
1F

O
R

M
E

M
L

Y
L

O
T

S
5

4
0

)-
I,

S
4
0
3
’

-R
*
.

$
4
O

4
’H

3

4
£4

O
-H

S

-
‘,

U
’

‘
“
“
f
’

—
4

.

3

U
L

’B
J(

C
r

‘
p

’

5
4
a
,

W
4
4

f
tA

1
ta

‘‘2
‘
t
&

’

a
m

,
r,

,D
A

,T
If

Ia
J*

M
CH

IE
F

,,
m

n
E

c

A
D

R
IC

U
L

T
U

R
A

L
S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
M

A
S

T
E

R
P

L
A

N

T
R

A
C

T
1

7
2
2

-.

U
.

4
4

M
r

It
t

C
O

A
L

t

‘U
’-

’

:7

E
xh

ib
it

A
Si

ll
N

o.
5(

j2
?2

(C
or

z)

‘4
,’
‘/

-
.
i
4

.
‘

/
n
’ V

-
‘
‘
m

a
4
a
;

L
U

,,
,?

’

4
,

-
‘U

‘
r
;

•
‘

n
n

.L
F

2T
1S

—
.
t
’
f
l
U

’
’

-
H

L
•

-
“

,
‘

z
r

t”

•
f
l
J
E

w
t
t
t
y

-
-

I
S

A
tC

a

A
G

R
IC

U
L

T
U

R
A

L
S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
M

A
S

T
F

R
P

L
A

N

T
R

A
C

T
1

7
2

2

H
U

T
)

-
j
•

-
—

-
-
-

T
m

L
.
L

:z
:E

r
;g

z

-
•&

L4
,4

‘
M

t
—

•L
S

•

L
O

T
4
I

n
M

p
A

C
’

LW
L

*
S

M
C

)

t
B

L
O

C
K

IR
*
C

T
1
fl

2

7



-
-
-
-
-

—
-

-

•
—

1

:
-
.

-
‘
—

-

-
-

v
a
-
n

o
-
in

fli-frv
-flC

1
0

1

T
m

W
L

S
U

f
lJ

iiN
O

!W
O

A
3
tS

IS
a
lc

r
n

n
o

W
O

N
r
I
d

s
m

n
.

,-v
lv

d

n
:
s
;
r

N
t
t
s
t

1
0

fl

1
0
0
H

S
S

H
9

(H
H

D
IN

n
r

N
V

E
V

N
V

N
I

t-V
S

E
1
0
1

-4

K
W

T
W

i
t
.
I
a
n

-
w

a
J
a

I
I

IflflN
iI

N
J.
V

f
l
f
l
T

W
I
flU

-S
3

IO
N

1
V

I3
d
S



0 0

Fr9 0

HAYA
FOUflDATIOfl

August 10, 2016

Pascual Artero
Chairman, &
Members of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission

Michael Borja,
Director,
Department of Land Management

Hafa adai Chairman Pascual and Mr. Borja:

On behalf of Naya Foundation, enclosed please find our proposed plans for the Inarajan Property, more
specifically Lot 354-4-4-R2 as part of our efforts to protect, promote, perpetuate our traditional healing
practice and as outlined in the resolutions adopted during our 2012 Amot Conference. This will include
developing the apprenticeship program, developing the curriculum for Chamorro cultural studies and
educating the public and to bring awareness and appreciation of this tradition to aid in improving the
health and well-being of the people of Guam.

Our plans for Block 3 Tract 1722, Municipality of Mangilao will be further developed to ensure the
preservation of the “halom tano” to protect the medicinal plants in its natural habitat and provide for
healers to:

1) Access the plants for their use
2) Use and access for learning by our apprentices and the general public in learning about our

medicinal plants
3) Further development of our Biodiversity Conservation Program in consultation with the University

of Guam and the University of Pittsburgh.

The development of this plan will be submitted once we have access and approval of the lease in
order to engage our network.

Un da,kulo na Si Yu’os Ma’ase’l

ZITA 6. P4NJELINAN
Presidej



H
Y

A
F

O
U

fl
D

A
T

IO
fl

Te
l:

74
7-

A
M

T
E

(6
6
3
)

E
m

ai
l,

ha
ya

fo
un

d.
iI

on
6T

l@
gn

aI
l.

ca
m

/
.n

ra
i

‘f
l

r
S

I

H
ay

a
F

ou
nd

at
io

n’
W

ay
F

or
w

ar
d

2
0
1
6
T

0
20

26
M

is
si

on
:

To
en

ha
nc

e
th

e
w

el
l-

be
in

g
of

ou
r

pe
op

le

e
/

I
,

I
L

!e
il

j

E
co

to
ur

is
m

a
n

d
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
P

ro
pe

rt
y

pl
an

s
fo

r
F

oo
d

as
M

ed
ic

in
e

P
ro

gr
am

E
co

to
ur

is
m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
P

ro
gr

am



*

V
II \1

V

H
ày

a
F

o
u
n
d
at

io
n

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

a
To

re
-e

st
ab

li
sh

th
ro

ug
h

a
co

m
m

un
it

y
of

be
li

ev
er

s
to

pr
om

ot
e

an
d

p
er

p
et

u
at

e
ou

r
T

ra
di

ti
on

al
H

ea
lin

g
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

an
d

co
m

m
un

it
y

ou
tr

ea
ch

A
pp

re
nt

ic
es

hi
p

of
T

ra
di

ti
on

al

a
E

st
ab

lis
h

ou
r

ed
uc

at
io

na
l

H
ea

lin
g

pr
og

ra
m

s
in

th
e

ed
uc

at
io

na
l

sy
st

em
an

d
in

st
it

ut
io

ns
of

hi
gh

er
le

ar
ni

ng

0 0
a

To
fu

rt
h

er
st

ud
ie

s,
co

ll
ab

or
at

e
an

d
pr

om
ot

e
tr

ad
it

io
na

l
he

al
in

g
w

it
h

Pa
ci

fi
c

In
di

ge
no

us
H

ea
lin

g
C

on
so

rt
iu

m



4
;‘\

\
1

t, k
\/

I

S

H
ày

a
F

o
u
n
d
at

io
n

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

1.
A

cq
ui

re
p
ro

p
er

ti
es

fr
om

C
h

am
o

rr
o

L
an

d
T

ru
st

(N
ot

e:
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
id

en
ti

fi
ed

,
fi

el
d

w
or

k
co

m
p
le

te
d

an
d

n
o
w

in
th

e
p

ro
ce

ss
of

fi
na

l
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n

to
G

u
am

CL
T

an
d

w
or

ki
ng

on
L

eg
is

la
ti

on
w

it
h

S
po

ns
or

s
of

th
e

Bi
ll

a
2

C
o
n
ti

n
u

e
to

st
re

n
g
th

en
ou

r
ne

tw
or

k
an

d
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

to
ac

h
ie

v
e

ou
r

g
o

al
s

3
S

ec
u

re
fu

nd
in

g
an

d
in

v
es

tm
en

ts
to

d
ev

el
o
p

p
ro

g
ra

m
s

th
at

w
ill

g
e
n
e
ra

te
fu

n
d
in

g
af

te
r

th
e

g
ra

n
t

C C C C C C C



• OHS DRAFt 0 0

Recording Requested By
and When Recorded Return To:

Orrick, Herñngton & Sutchffe LLP
405 Howard Street 1
San Francisco, CA 94105 t

Attention: John Wang, Esq

FIRST AMENIMENT TO GROUND LEASE

betieen the

CW4MORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION,

and

GUAM EDUCATION FINANCING FOUNDATION, INC.
a Guam nonprofit corporation,

(Original Ground Lease Dated as of September 1, 2006)

This First Amendment Dated as of August 1, 2016

OHSUSA 765602505.1



FIRST AMENDMENT TO GROUND LEASE

This First Amendment to Ground Lease, dated as of August 1, 2016, amends, and is
made under the authority of Section 17 of, a Ground Lease (the “Original Ground Lease”), dated
as of September 1, 2006, by and between the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (the “Ground
Lessor”), as ground lessor, and Guam Education Financing Foundation, Inc., a Guam nonprofit
corporation (the “Ground Lessee”), as ground lessee;

W I T N E S S B T H:

WHEREAS, the parties to the Original Ground Lease desire to amend its terms pursuant
to this First Amendment to Ground Lease to reflect that the Lease Agreement, dated as of
May 25, 2005, as originally executed and as previously amended (the “Original Lease
Agreement”) is being replaced by a new Lease Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (as the
same may be amended from time to Lime, the “New Lease Agreement”), in connection with the
execution and delivery of those certain Guam Education Financing Foundation Refunding
Certificates of Participation (Guam Public School Facilities Project), Series 2Ol6A and Guam
Education Financing Foundation Refunding Certificates of Participation (Guam Public School
Facilities Project), Series 2016B (collectively, the “2016 Certificates”), the proceeds of which
will be applied, in part, for the purposes of prepaying the obligations of the Guam Public Schçol
System, Government of Guam, under the Original Lease Agreement;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6 of the Original Ground Lease, and in connection with
the execution and delivery of the 2016 Certificates, the Ground Lessee wishes to obtain the
consent of Ground Lessor to enter into an Assignment and Security Agreement, to be dated as of
August I, 2016, between Ground Lessee, as assignor, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
assignee (the “New Assignment Agreement”), in substantially the same form as the Assignment
Agreement approved by the terms of Section 6 of the Original Ground Lease (the “Original
Assignment Agreement”), and Ground Lessor wishes to provide such consent;

WHEREAS, the parties hereto agree to refer to the Original Ground Lease as amended by
this First Amendment to Ground Lease as the “Ground Lease;”

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
meanings set forth in the New Lease Agreement or in the Trust Indenture (as defined herein);

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED as follows:

SECTION 19. Relationship of this First Amendment to Original Ground Lease.

All of the terms and conditions of the Original Ground Lease, except as may be expressly
amended by this First Amendment to Ground Lease, are reaffirmed and agreed to remain in fuJi
force and effect. The Original Ground Lease included Sections 1 through 18, and therefore this
First Amendment to Ground Lease begins with Section 19.

1
OHSUSA:765602505. I

0 0



0 0
SECTION 20. Lease Agreement.

The parties hereby agree that all references to the Original Lease Agreement in the
Original Ground Lease are amended hereby to mean and refer to the New Lease Agreement.

SECTION 21. Assignment Agreement.

The parties hereby agree that all references to the Original Assignment Agreement in the
Original Ground Lease are amended hereby to mean and refer to the New Assignment
Agreement.

SECTION 22. Certificates.

The parties hereby agree that all references to the “Certificates” in the Original Ground
Lease shall henceforth mean and refer to the 2016 Certificates and any Additional Certificates
executed atid delivered on a parity with such 2016 Certificates under that certain Trust Indenture,
dated as of August 1, 2016, by and between U.S. Bank National Association and the Ground
Lessee, as the same may be amended or supplemented (the “Trust Indenture”).

SECTION 23. Execution.

This First Amendment to Ground Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all together shall constitute but one and the
same amendment. It is also agreed that separate counterparts of this First Amendment to Ground
Lease may separately be executed by the Ground Lessor and the Ground Lessee, all with the
same force and effect as though the same counterpart had been executed by both the Ground
Lessor and the Ground Lessee.

[Tue remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]

2

t%s4

OHS US k765602505 . I



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Ground Lessor and the Ground Lessee have caused this
lease to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and
year first above written.

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

By

_________________

Michael Borja
Administrative Director

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

(NOTARIAL SEAL)

5-1
0HSUSA:765602505.l

0 0



0 0
GUAM EDUCATION FWIANCLNG
FOUNDATION, INC.

By:_____________________
Richard B. Inman. Jr.
Chairman

ATTEST:

(SEAL)

By:
Michael J. Alvarez
Secretary

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

(NOTAMAL SEAL)

S-2
OHS US A:765602505 I



THE CHAMORRo LAND TRUST COMMISSION
HAGATRA, GUAM

RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING
GROUND LEASE OF PROPERTY TO

GUAM EDUCATION FINANCING FOUNDATION, INC.

WHEREAS, the CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION (“Commission”) has been
established and exists under the provisions of Chapter 75, Title 21 of the Guam Code Annotated;

WHEREAS, the lease of parcels of property subject to the Commission for the design,
construction and maintenance of schools is accomplished pursuant to Chapter 58, Title 5 Guam
Code Annotated, and other applicable law;

WHEREAS, by Resolution adopted March 4, 2005 the Commission authorized the leasing
of the following described real property, all situated within Guam. to the Guam Education
Financing Foundatiorn Inc., a Guam nonprofit corporation (the “Foundation”):

(1) the Adacao Mangilao Elementary School Site
Western Point of Lot 5402-R5NEW-R5, Mangilao;

(2) Astumbo Dededo. Middle School Site
Lot 10125-11-2, Dededo; and

(3) Wettengel (Ukudu) High School Site
Western Point of Route 3, Lot 10120-Rt9, Dededo;

WHEREAS, by Resolution adopted March 7, 2005 the Commission authorized the leasing
of the following described property, situated within Guam, to the Foundation:

(4) Liguap Terrace Dededo Elementary School Site
Parcel 1A, Tract 100, Dededo

WHEREAS. Section 22, Chapter II, Part 1, of Public Law 28-68 (September 20, 2005)
authorizes the lease of the property described therein for the purposes described in Chapter 58,
Title 5, Guam Code Annotated;

WHEREAS, Joseph M. Borja, the Acting Administrative Director of the Commission,
executed and delivered on behalf of the Commission a Ground Lease of the four parcels described
above to the Foundation (the “Ground Lease”) which sets forth as Exhibit “A” a more detailed
description of such property (as described in said Exhibit “A,” the “Property”);

WHEREAS, the Ground Lease was recorded with the Office of the Recorder, Department
of Land Management, Government of Guam, on October 19, 2006 under Instrument Number
744489 (the “Recorded Ground Lease”); and

4c



)

RESOLUTION OF THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

RATIFYING AND APPROVING GROUND LEASE OF PROPERTY TO

GUAM EDUCATION FINANCING FOUNDATION, INC.

PAGE2OF3

)

WHEREAS, each of the Commissioners has examined the Recorded Ground Lease

including the description of the Property attached as “Exhibit ‘A” thereto;

WHEREAS, on November 22, 2006, during the regular meeting of the Commission, the

Commission duly authorized and approved the adoption of this Resolution, subject to circu’ation

and review of the written resolution by the Commission members;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission as follows:

Section 1. The lease of the Property to the Foundation pursuant to the Ground Lease is

hereby finally ratified, authorized and approved.

Section 2. The form of the Ground Lease set forth in the Recorded Ground Lease and

reviewed by the each of the Commissioners is hereby approved and the execution and delivery by

the Commission of the Ground Lease in the form of the Recorded Ground Lease is hereby ratified,

authorized and approved.

Section 3. All actions heretofore or hereafter taken by the members of the Commission and

its officers and agents with respect to the negotiation, authorization, execution, delivery and

recordation of the Ground Lease and conveyance of a leasehold interest in the Property thereunder

are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 4. This Resolution is intended to be and shall be effective with respect to the

Ground Lease as of the date of such lease, and with respect to all actions ratified hereunder, as of

the date or dates such actions are taken. Furthermore, this Resolution supplements and supersedes

the Resolutions of the Commission adopted on March 4 and 7, 2005. To the extent otherwise set

forth in those previous Resolutions, the Commission does not require thither review or approval by

another governmental authority within the Government of Guam in connection the Commission’s

ratification, authorization, or approval of the Ground Lease or of actions taken in connection

therewith and consequently ratified, confirmed, and approved by virtue of this Resolution.

Date: i—iT—v7

Date: / —
77-07

‘q tJ

-

a - C -

OMMISSION:

U
Chairman

ANNIE R. PEREZ
Commissioner



)

RESOLUTION OF THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
RATIFYING AND APPROVING GROUND LEASE OF PROPERTY TO
GUAM EDUCATION FINANCING FOUNDATION, INC.
PAGE 3 OF 3

Date: 1-17-CT
DA’JIñ’J. MANTANANE
Commissioner

Date:

- ‘-

IL
w

if

p.

.;‘-

‘

_____

-—------—-

11

A. CALVO
.ssioner



11:, s”: 1• •‘——‘•—

DI
:sO0

GROUND LEASE

between the

(‘1W Wrti lqjqotrnn U

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION,

and

GUAM EDUCATION FINANCING FOUNDATION,
a Guam nonprofit corponllon,

Dated us of September 112006

-o

1O.-27-2gg5 13:29 FROM: ) ‘‘+B714775297 P..3’le

-

.fl

-r ..

Recording Requested By
and \Vhen Recorded Remrnto::

Orrick. KerringTon & Sutciiffc LLP
105 Koward Screet
San rmcisco,CA 4iO5
Attenliori: flroke Abola

•:P!
No.

2 t:



• NUV-ë1-EØtS 13: FROM: I c:+S7i4T?5297 P.4’12

C C

GROUND LEASE

This lease. dated as of September 1, 2006. by and between the Chamarro I_and Trust
Commission (the “Ground Lessofl, as ground lessor, and Guam Education Financing
Foundation, a Guam nonprofit corporation (the “Ground Lessce’, as ground lessee;

WITNESSETH:

WhEREAS, the Ground Lessor is the owner in fee of certain real cstatc parcels located in Guam
and described in Exhibit A (collectively, the “Sites”):

WHEREAS, the Ground Lessor is willing to lse the Sires, ansi the Ground Lessee desires to
hire the same from the Ground Lessor, upon the terms and conditions and for the purposes set
forth in this lease (the “Gmund Lease”);

WHEREAS, the Ground Lessee desires to sublease the Sites, and lease certain school facilities,
including two clcmentmy schools, one middle school and one high school, to be constructed and
Installed on the Sites (collectively, the “Facilities’ and certain equinent to be located primarily
on the Sites (The “Equipment.” and, collectively with the Facilities aid such subleasehold interest
in the Sites, the “Project”) to the Guam Public School System, Govmiuncnt of Guam (The
“Gocmment of Guam”), and the Government of Guam desires to sublease and lease the same
from the Ground Lessee, pursuant to and as fiinhcr described in the Lease Agreernern (the
“Lease”). dated as of May 25, 2005, by and between The Ground Lessee, as lessor thereunder,
and the Guam Public School System, Government of Guam, as lessee thereunder:

WHEREAS, the Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee intend that die leasing by the Ground Lessor
to the Ground Lessee of the Sites shall not effect or result in a merger of the Government of
Guam’s leasehold estate pursuant to the Lease and thc Ground Lessor’s fee estate is lessor under
this Ground Lease, and the Ground Lessee shall continue to have and hold a leasehold estate In
said Sites pursuant To this Ground Lease throughout the term hereof and the tent of the Leasc:
and

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings
set forth in the Lease;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT [S HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED as follows:

SECTION I. Sires.

The Ground Lessor hereby leascs to the Ground Lessee and the Ground Lessee hereby hires from
the Ground Lessor, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the real property described
In Exhibit A attached hereto and made a pan hereof, subject, however, to any conditions,
reservations, and easements of record as of the date hereof (herein collectively called the
“Sites”).

OIlS WntIQSDó.I)



• t(3-27-2ã06 13:29 FRErI: )

SECTION 2. Imi1

The resin of this Ground Lcase shall commence on the Certificate Closing Date or upon the date

of recodaclon of this Ground Lease in the Department of Land Managcmcnt. whichever is later,

and shall end a! midnight on the date 20 years after such commwicement. unless such term is

extended or sooner terminated as hereinafter provided.

If on the date 20 years after the date of commencement of the term of this lease, the Certificates

shall not be fully paid, then the term of this Ground Lease shall be extended until ten (10) days

afler the Certificates shall be (lilly paid, except that the cain of this Ground Lease shall in no

cvent be extended beyond the date which is 30 years Lifter the date of commencement of the term

of this Lease. If prior to the daft 20 years after the date of commencement of the Wnn of this

Lease, the Certificates shall he Silly paid, the tenn of this Ground Lease shall end ten (10) days

rifler such payment in Ml or ten (10) days after written notice by the Ground Lessor to the

Ground Lessee (if such payment in fiIi has by then occurred), whichever is enrlier.

SECTION 3. Rental,

The Ground Lessee shall pay to the Ground Lessor as and for renLal hereunder the sum of One

Dollar ($1.00).

SECTION 4. Use of Sites: Relefting of Sites bvQrpund lessee.

(a) For the term of thc hzsc, the Gwund Lessee shall use the Sires solely for

the purpose orconstmction and tinancing ofthe Project and the Facilities thereon and leasing the

Sites, the Project and the Facilities to the Government of Guam pursuant to the Lease and for

such purposes as may be incidental thereto.

(b) In the event that the Lease is terminated, the right of the Ground Lessee to

sublease the Sites Is subject to the following terms and conditions:

(I) the pemilited use of the Sites under the sublease shall be limhed to
purposes consistent with the nature of the futilities and the neighborhood;

(II) the sublessec shall agrcc to indcmni& and hold harmless the
Government of Guam and the Ground Lessor against any and all claims, actions, suits,
judgments, damages and liabilities arising out of the sublessee’s use of the Sites;

(iii)thes ublease shall be a ‘net-nct-net” lease, and shall contain
provislon requiring the sublessee to py all taxes, to maintain the Project and to provide
insurance covering such hazards and in such amounts as is commercially reasonable for

similar buildings;

(iv) the sublease shall contain covenants ofthe sublessec rcgarding
hazardous materials which arc substantially the sanie as the covenants contained in
Section 12.01 of the Lease;

flhISWcstI95g 615
2

0 0



, i_I cJQ w..Jts mull. T147T529?

(v) the sublease shall provide that the Ground Lcsscc shall have the
right to tenuinate the sublease following a material breach by the sublessee of any of the
terms and provisions required punuantlo clauses CD, (ii). (iii) or (lv) above; and

(vi) following a material breach by the sublessee of any of the temis
and provisions of the sublease required pursuant to cIaucs (I) through (v) above, the
sublease shall be subject to termination at the written direction of the Government of
Guaim

SECtiONS. Owner in Fee.

The Ground Lessor covenants that it is the owner in fee of the Sites, as described in Exhibit A
hereto. The Ground Lessor further covenants and agrees that if for any reason this covenant
proves to be incorrect, the Ground Lessor will either institute eminent domain proceedings to
condemn the property or institute a quid title action to clanf’ the Ground Lessor’s title, and will
diligently pursue such action to completion.

SECTION 6. Assignments and Subleases.

The OrDund Lessee shall not assign its rights under this Ground Lease or sublet the Sites, except
pursuant to the Indenture, the Assignment Agreement and the Lease, unless Ci) the Ground
Lessee shall havc obtained the written consent of the Ground Lessor, or (ii) the Government of
Guam shall be in defzult under the Lease or the Lease shall have been terminated pursuant to its
provisions, and any such assignment or iblease shall be subject to the terms and conditions of
SectIon 4 hereof.

Guam Education Financing Foundation shall have no liability for the Trustee’s actions or the
exercise by the Trustee of any rights under this Ground Lease. By its execution below, Ground
Lessor expressly approves of the above-referenced financing and MsignmcntAgttement

SECTION 7. R jht of Bnzn’.

f he Ground Lessor reserves the right far any of Ks duly authorized representatives to enter Upon
the Sifts at any reasonable time to inspect the same or to make any repairs. improvements or
changes necessary for the prnscn’ation thereof.

SECTION 8, Termination.

The Ground Lessee agrees, upon the tcnnination of this Ground Lease, to quit and surrender the
Skes in the nate good order and condition as the same were in at the time of commencement of
the temi hercunder, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and agrees that any permanent
improvements and structures existing upon the Sites at the time of the tenuhiation of this Ground
Lease shaTl remain thereon and title thereto shall vest In the Ground Lessor.

Upon the exercise of the option to purchase set forth in Section 14.04 of the Lease and upon
payment or the Purchase Price required by said section, the term of this Ground Lease shall
terminate.



1.3:30 FRU’l: .3 ‘JS714V529? P.7.’12

SECTION 9, DyIiult.

In the event the Ground Lessee shall be in default In the performance of any obligation on its part

to be performed under the terms of this Ground Lcas. which default continues for thirty (30)

days following notice and demand for correction thereof to the Ground Lessee, the Ground

Lessor may exercise any and all remedies granted by law, except that no merger of this Ground

Lease and of the Lease shall be deemcd to occur as a result thereof, provided, however, that the

Ground Lessor shall have no power to terminate this Ground Lease or the rights of enUy granted

herein by reason of any default on the pan of the Ground Lessee if such temilnation would affect

or impair the e?ercise of any tights or remedies assig3ied to the Trustee puiluanL to thc

Assignment Agreement or any assignment or sublease orall or any pail orthe Sites then in effect

bcLween the Ground Lessee and any assignec or tubtenant of the Ground Lessee (other than the

subtenancy created under the Lease); and provided Iwthu. that so long as any Certificates are

outstanding and unpaid in accordance with the terms of the Indenture, the panics acknowledge

and understand that the Rentals or any pan thereof payablc to the Trustee pursuant to the

Indenture (by the terms of the Lease or such other assignment or sublease) shall continue to be

paid to the Trustee. So long as any such assignee or subtenant of the Ground Lessee shall duly

perform the terms and conditions of this Ground Lease and of its then existing sublease (if any),

such assignee or subtenant shall be dented to be and shall become the tenant of the Ground

Lessor hereunder and shall be entitled to all of the rights and privileges gnntd under any such

assignment or sublease; provided firnher, however, that, so long as any Certificates are

outstanding and unpaM in accordance with Ike terms of the Indenture, the panics acknowledge

and understand that the entals or any pad thereof payable to the Trustee pursuant to the

Indenture (by the germs ofsuch assignment or sublease) shall continue to be paid to the Trustee,

SECTION 10. Ouiet Enloyment.

The Ornund Lessee at all times during the tent of this Ground Lease, subjcct to the provisions of

Section 9 hereof, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy all of the Sites.

SECTION II. Taxes.

The Ground Lessee covenants and agrees to pay any and all assessments of any kind or character

and also all taxes, including possessory interest taxes, levied or assessed upon the Sites

(including both land and improvements), if any.

SECTION 12. Eminent Domain.

In the event the whole or any pan of the Sites or the Project (including all or any pad of the

Project) is taken by eminent domain proceedings, the interest of the Ground Lessee shall be

recognized and is hereby detennined to be the omounL of the then unpaid or outstanding

Certificates attributable to such pan of the Project and shall be pat d to the Trustee to be applied

us Foded in the Lease and in the Indenture.

SECflON 13. Partia’ Invalidity,

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, covenants or conditions oftbis Ground Lease shall to

any extent be declared invalid, unenfoneable, void or voidable for any reason whatsoever by

I)

0 0



W-27.agge 13:30 FR’1: C:’

court of competent jurisdiction, the firing or order or decree ofwhich becomes flnai, none of

the remaining teams, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Ground Lease shall be affected

thereby, and each provision of this Ground Lease shall be valid and enforceable to the flillest

e’dcnt permitted by law.

SECTION 14. NotIces.

AU rzaticcs, stawmen$, demands, consents, approvals, authorizations. offcn, designations,

requests or othcr communications hereunder by either pany to the other shall be in writing and

shall be sufficiently given and served upon the oUter party If delivered personally or if m&Jed by

United States registered or certified mail, return receipt TCqUCSted, postage prepald. addressed as

set forth below, or to such other addresses as the respective parties may from time to time

designate by notice in writing:

If to the Ground Lessee:

Guam Education Financing Foundation
do Mr. Richard B. Inman, Jr.
3060 Peachtree Road
Suite 1700
Atlanta Georgia 30305
Telephone: 404/504-2772
FacsImile: 4041504-2790

with a copy to:
- Lawrence Raniseb

Parsons Beble & Latimer
201 South Main Sweet, Suite 1800
Salt Lake City, Utah 8411
Telephonc; 80l1532-l234
Facsimile 80l1536-6L II

If to the Ground Lessor:

The Cbwnono Land Trust Commission
P.O. Sax 2950
HagAtia, Guam 96932
Telephone: 67114754292
Facsimile: 671(477-8082

SECTION IS. Section HeadIngs.

All sectIon heading, contained herein are for convenience of reference only and arc not intended

to define Or limit the scope of any provision of this Ground Lease.

OtIS Well I9S%U&Il



UU-27-2eG 13:31 FROi’l: ) - F6714775297 - P.’12

SECTION 16. Applicable Law.

This Ground Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Organic Act of

Guam and laws ofGuain.

SECTION 17. Amendments.

This Lease may be amended In writing as may be muftal ly agreed by Ground Lessor and Ground

Lessee, subject to any restrictions contained in the Indenture, and subject to any applicable

limitations of Guam law,

SECTION 18. Exccutipn

This Ground Lcnsc may be executed in any number of countcrpan, each of which shall be

deemed to be an original, but all together shall constitute but one and the same lease. It Es also

agreed that separate counftrparrs of rids Ground Lease may separately be aecuted by the

Ground Lessor and the Ground Lessee, all with the same force and effect as though the same

counterpaft had been executed by both the Ground Lessor mid the Ground Lessee.

0115
6

0 0



NUJ-27-26 13:31 FROM:

C z):+6714775297 P. 1Ø”lR

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Ground Lessor and the Ground Lessee have caused this lease to
be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first
above written.

c’1: wce.?$t&flz.
Notary Public

My Commission Expires;

CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION

By

flasuTjopasm.
TARY MaX

fri bcUSA
II Casia, E’fl .k4 23, fl

d

Director

dw!cj



k)-27-2egs 13:31

GUAM EDUCATION FTNANCING

FOUNDATION

Richard . nman, Jr.
Chalinan

AnEST;

(SEAL)

Br “M1LUSA IName:
Tile; — S!CRETAU

CALWKIIS MUiDW(4

My Commission Expires: N&rA*T MiMiC

uv reaawJnit. men

TMIJSIO.GUN3 q&9I

(NOThRTAL SEAL)

0 0



‘ ttj-avg 13:31 FROt j:+6n4n5297

EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of Sites

Lot $u’i,Ocr 53©2J15r.EW4, ManlIo liwmeily Garrigadal, Sian, Subuitan. is nd
Lol 3 ,J.wCto .n mit Sutdv’smn Suny Map ci Lol 540Z•RSNEW.R5. as etnni al
brawr Nuwbl: ‘4.051691. as LU. Chick Mjn9eg 23S Fr 2005, orn a? August 2006
4,d reco’an an 10 Octabef 2006 .mt Inainimini No. 743341 ci Uit Management.

For lnicm,aiix& purpos.. vrdy, the about rsii.,nc.d map indicate, the pivp.ity ccntai’n
an area ci 62.77Th squat. meirI or 15.609r sail.

.ict CarIWaw ci nfl Ncjnbar 33001 ‘ Goflln,nnl ci Guam ii to BalIc 1.01 Number
5402. Estate Number 212601.

Law’a rvwaorounarM?sacc

Lot 264.4, Oiock 4.0th 3A. Trw 100, Dedflo, Guam. Suburtan, a n tot is dewslbed
n mat Consobdation Sunry Map of tot A, Utod 4, Unit 2, Tmcl 100. Lot 6. Block & Unit

2A, Tract tOO aM Rimnfl Prnflon ci lust 100 haD tot 251, 8IO& 4, Unit M, Trad
tOQ, as shqwii an Drawing ?ôjr.b.r 14-05T692, .i L,hL Otick Numb., 015 F? 2006.
dated 04 Augual 2000 and r,cccdld or, 10 Qdcr 2006 uier Insirumant No. 743942 Cl
Uz%d Manaçamorl.

Per iNarmatlciial anpae.. on, the aboua re(unnced map indicacee the pap.ñy a’ntalne
an on. ci 47,761. eqm,ari main cli ?JOi corn.,

siuso owwotEsaca

‘Blgck 26.NEW.2, Tact 240. Dada Guam. SubiNbin, U aid i.om Ii diecibid In trial
Re;SitdMe,cn Sunq Map aTTract 240 Bbck 26-NEW, a ahown on OrWng Number
14-061St, ci UL Chick Nflar 253 F? 20w. tad 22 Augusi 2006 and mccedsd a’
10 Dcloon ;ooc unda. irninuani No. 743939 ii two Manag.manL

F inkrmailcnal pwpoxe. only, iha nova niarnocad map Indicates ihe papery a’nln
an Oral at 93,219, squire mel,!. OS 2303a lam..

Lial CanIficuf, ol Till. Number: 350B5 . Goyenun.nI of Guam (a a Basic Lot 10125).

uajoo F*’aHSa-$.

Tract Number 11406, 0.d.ój, Stan, Subuutan, a said 14 a dasaibed in Wit
CcnaciiOoIlcr, Suiny Map ci La4 10lZ0’Z1NEW.12 and Lot 1Di20-2INEW-R12 Into

r0CI 11406. 3; $bciwi on Oawin Numb., 1406T.GN, a Lid. Chfl Number 254 FT
2005, Uai.d 17 ALgus 2O6 and reccruid a’ II August 2006 under inetnjmart ic
741343 at t.0nd Managimant.

Sct U’IXmaIWrCI ptupaws only, ml’. above reinneed map uWcale. ha pttp.ny contains
an area ci 776,918, square main, a On acre..

I oflirmfl ol jilip Numb.,, 1e094 . Qogagimeni of Satin (a. to Beak tel Number
10120: Estate Number esaosj.



o
MICRONESIA
COMMUNITY 1
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

March 31, 2016

Pascual Sablan
Chaimrnn
Chamorro Land Trust Commission
590 5. Marine Corps Drive, Suite 733
ITC Building
Tamuning, Guam 96913

Re: Joint Development of Chamorro Land Trust Residential Lots for House and Lot Purchase

Hafa Adai Mr. Sablan,

Our organization is a registered non-profit with the Internal Revenue Service as a 501 (C) 3
entity and also registered at the Department of Revenue and Taxation as a local non-profit
organization. We have been qualified by the United States Department of Agriculture to have
access to three separate housing and infrastructure grant and loan programs for site development
and housing. These programs are as follows:

1. United States Department of Agriculture, Section 523 Mutual Self Help program,
2. United States Department of Agriculture’s Rural Utility Services (RUS) Water and

Waste water program which includes Substantially Underserve Trust Area (SUTA)
and,

3. United States Department of Agriculture, Sections 523 and 524 site loan program.

In addition to the three USDA programs, the Native American Veterans Housing program is tied
to USDA’s SUTA program. Our organization is also able to offer homeownership technical
assistance via the Veterans Affairs program — which is administered by the Guam Housing
Corporation.

The three programs mentioned above are key programs aimed at helping ongoing efforts to
finally develop Chamorro Land Trust lands for potential qualified land trust recipients who are
still awaiting land leases for homeownership. Our goal is to develop a “Memorandum of
Understanding” or “Joint Venture” to coordinate CLTC’s land resources to identify properties
within its inventory that are suitable for home construction — with appropriate infrastructure in
place. We would also like to work closely with the CLTC to identify other properties that may
require infrastructure (water, power, sewer, cable, telephone, pave roads, and sidewalks) utilizing
one of USDA’s programs as described above. In addition, we can start prequalifying families

Suite 108
176 Serenu Avenue

Tamuning, Guam 96913

Office: 671-989-1638 Fax: 671-969-1639



that meet the requirements of the USDA Mutual Self-help Housing Program or Native American
Veterans Loan Program.

In order to carry out the aforementioned tasks, we are hoping to accomplish two goals: either
create an MOU with CLTC and MCDC; or, develop a joint venture. One of the mechanisms
provided by Guam law is identified within the Guam Code Annotated — specifically Article 5,
Chapter 5, relative to Guam’s procurement regulations. This particular section of Guam law
provides that:

‘Guam Code annotated Ar ic/c 5, CM. 5 GUAM PROCUREl1ENT LA B’

5217. Procurement from Nonprofit corporations.

A contract mcxv be ai’arded for a supply or service viithout

competition iihen the contractor is a nonpro fir corporation employinq

sheltered or handicapped workers. As a condition of the award of the

contract the contractor must certift’ that labor on the project will be

perfonnecl by handicapped persons except that supen’ison personnel do

not have to be handicapped. A contractor awam-ded a contract pursuant to

tins Section shall not be required to post any of the bonds m-equired under

Aricie 5 of this Chapter.”

MCDC will try to meet one of the aforementioned conditions — which involves the provision of
employment for “Sheltered or Handicapped worker”, as described above. MCDC seeks your
assistance in clarifying this statute with the Attorney General’s office and requesting the
guidance from the Attorney General’s office for solutions to fulfill this mandate as stated in the
statute.

In the event we do not meet any of the requirements stipulated in the existing statute, we stand
available to be part of a competitive “Request for Proposal” process to deliver these programs for
CLTC and its constituents.

If we meet the spirit of the law, then our working parameters under an MOU or joint venture will
be as follows:

Services MCDC will provide include:

A. Land with Available Infrastructure (Ready to Build)

0 0



0 0
MCDC will prequalify potential families to see if they meet the income and credit
guidelines of USDA Section 523 Mutual self-help housing program

• MCDC will provide technical assistance in getting families to coordinate sweat equity
participation in building their homes

• MCDC will coordinate the financial closing requirements with approved families and
USDA

• MCDC will coordinate and provide Architectural and Engineering services for
families when designing their homes (This cost is recovered in the loan proceeds
borrowed by family)

• MCDC will coordinate permitting house plans with Government of Guam regulatory
agencies (permitting fees are to be pan of the Applicant’s expenses)

• Once families are qualified and receive a ‘Certificate of Eligibility” from USDA. then
families must provide ground lease agreements between CLTC and each family; to be
signed at financial closing

• MCDC will not receive any fees from CLTC

B. Land ‘vith no Infrastructure

• MCDC, as one of the qualified entities, will apply for the Infrastructure loan program
assuming the CLTC has authority to pay for such infrastructure loan program

• MCDC will work with the CLTC board and the legislature’s chairman on matters
involving the CLTC current statute relating to providing infrastructure to
undeveloped land and amending statute to utilize USDA’s Rural Utility Services
(RUS) Water and Wastewater program especially SUTA

• Once CLTC statute allows access to USDA’s Rural Utility Service (RUS) Water and
Wastewater especially for CLTC undeveloped lands under SUTA than MCDC, as a
qualified entity, will apply for USDA’s Rural Utility Service programs such as SUTA
and or in combination of utilize USDA Section 523 and 524 site loan program to
provide pad ready lots for CLTC constituents

C. Chamorro Land Trust Commission will coordinate the following:

• Provide Memorandum of Understanding or Joint Venture agreement with MCDC
• Work diligently with Attorney GeneraL’s Office to confirm if MCDC meets GCA

Article 5, ChapterS
• Work with Legislative Chairman to provide legislation to accomplish infrastructure

development of lands that require infrastructure
• Access to its waiting list so MCDC can prequalify families for housing
• Provide lot ready properties with infrastructure for home construction
• Provide properties that require infrastructure development

We have reviewed the existing CLTC statute and the recently adopted commercial rules. And,
we are also working with Senator Tom Ada’s office to make some clarification or additions to
the statute relating to “Infrastructure”.



In the event an amendment to the statute is required to meet the underwriting criteria set forth by
utilizing one of USDA’s Rural Utility Services (RUS) Water and Wastewater programs than
MCDC will work with CLTC Board in coordinating legislative efforts to accomplish such goals.

At no time will MCDC have control of any CLTC lands. And if the lands are pad ready and
ready to build, MCDC win only provide technical assistance in getting these families qualified
for one of the housing programs. The families will have access to the lands via a Signed lease
with CLTC.

If we have to develop lands with no infrastructure, it will be CLTC or MCDC applying for this
infrastructure loan program. This is where we will work with Senator Tom Ada’s legislative
committee to amend existing CLTC statutes to allow for these infrastructure loans and grant
programs from the United States Department of Agriculture to be accessible for undeveloped
lands.

I am attaching for your committee’s perusal the following:

1. USDA Mutual Self-Help Housing Fact sheet:
2. USDA Section 523 and 524 Information:
3. USDA SUTA Fact Sheet:
4. Native American Veterans Loan Program:
5. MCDC’s Award as a Mutual self Help Grantee; and,
6. USDA’s letter showing we are one of the qualified entities for USDA’s infrastructure

loan program

I look forward to a formal meeting with your board. I am also available to address, preferably
through a work session, questions or concerns you and/or other commission members may have
regarding this matter.

Sincerely,

V. Camacho
Executive Director

CC Mr. Mike Borja CLTC, Administrative Director

0 0



USDA

0

FACT SHEET
USDA Rural Development — Section 523

Mutual Self-Help Housing Program

0

evsto
Introduction
The Self-Help Housing program provides grant funding
to eligible entities to support families who cooperatively
build each other’s homes. For more than 40 years, U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA) and its grantees have
implemented this program, resulting in home owner
ship for more than 25,000 low-income families in
rural America. In addition, the program stimulates local
economies, provides job training and community service
skills, and instills a deep sense of communin:

Program Benefits

For families
• Provides affordable home ownership with

minimal out-of-pocket expense
Teaches construction skills
Instills pride and a sense of ownership
Families work together for a common goal to
build strong communities

• Works with the 502 Loan Program to pro
vide low-interest mortgage loans subsidized
to as low as 1 percent interest

• Defers mortgage payments during the con
struction period

• Reduces the purchase price of the home
through sweat equity

• Can be used with other funding sources for
even greater family savings

For organizations
• Offers a source of hard-to-find administrative

grant dollars to run the program
• Provides a predevelopment grant to help cover

expenses during final application preparation
• Provides free technical assistance to help you

apply for, set up and run the program
• Is an excellent vehicle for meeting the

mission and goats of housing entities and
nonprofit organizations

• Can create additional revenue lot non
profit organizations willing to undertake
property development

• In some cases, funds can be used as a leveraged
match, to attract additional dollars

For your communities
• Increases and maintains affordable

housing stock
• Can be used to build new or rehabilitate

existing housing
• Boosts local economies through purchase of

building materials and hiring subcontractors
• Stibilizes communities by giving residents

safe, decent and affordable housing

Grant Criteria
Qualified local entities or “grantees” receive an
administrative grant for up to two years to build a
specified number of homes. Grant size is based on the
number of homes built and the comparable contrac
tor cost for a similar home in the area. Roughly 15
percent of the comparable contractor cost or the dif
ference between the comparable contractor cost and
the amount of the Self-Help mortgage, minus S1,000
is used to set the upper limits of the administrative
grant. To determine the grantsize, the amounts derived
from these calculations are multiplied by the number
of homes to be built. For example, in an area with
an average comparable contractor built home cost of
5200,000 and a Self-Help housing cost of 5175,000,
USDA could provide a grantee 524,000 to $30,000
per home built in the program. For an organization
building 14 homes, that could mean a 5576,000 to
5720,000 grant. Many organizations have successfully
renewed their grants for more than 30 years.

Nonprofit organizations, tribal entities and units of local
government may apply. The administrative grant pays

for salaries, office space and
other program costs directly
related to supervising families as
they build their homes. Many
groups provide developed lots
and modest house plans for
their families. The grantees
manage the construction sites,
including purchasing materials
through an on-site construc
tion supervisor.

S

S

-



Mortgages — USDA
Section 502
Each participating family
qualifies for an individual
mortgage, which is used
to purchase the land and
materials, and pay closing
costs and subcontracted labor. Typically, a USDA
Section 502 loan is used in tandem with the Section
523 program. In some areas however, conventional
loans or other public loan sources are used in part
or in full ro provide construction and permanent
loans to the families. Regardless of the source, all
families participating in the 523 program must be at
80 percent median income or below. The Self-Help
housing program criteria requires that of the families
served, 40 percent must be at or below 50 percent of
the median income. Given the favorable terms of the
502 loan and the lower loan amount resulting from
the family’s sweatequity, the Self-Help program is one
of the few ways very-low income families can afford
home ownership.

The Section 502 Direct Loan program has several
unique features:

• Self-Help loans receive priority processing
with 502 funds set-aside on both national and
state levels.

• Participating households benefit; the loan is typi
cally amortized for 33 years (up to 38 in some
cases) and the payments are subsidized, with the
lowest payment possible, based on a 1 percent
interest payment. The mortgage subsidy is the
difference benveen what the household is ex
pected to pay and the payment at full note rate.
The subsidy is subject to recapture and is repaid
if the house sells, there is a change in use, the
borrower refinances or in any way title transfers
to a third party. Repayment of the subsidy varies,
depending on how much has been granted, the
length of time the borrower has lived in the home,
and original equity in the property.

• A one-step construction loan converts to a per
manent loan at the end of construction. There
are no interest payments during construction,
but the interest accrued during construction is
added to the original loan amount and payments
are based on the original amount of the note plus
accrued interest.

• The self-help 502 does not require a down pay
ment, and the applicant has very few out of pocket
expenses at time of loan closing. Typically, the credit
reporting fee, hand tools and homeowner’s insur
ance are the only expenses required.

0

Construction
The Self-Help program
can be used for both
new construction and
rehabilitation. Under
the new construction
guidelines, house plans
must meet the Modest
Housing loan limits established by each USDA Rural
Development state office. In addition, the family must
complete a substantial portion of the labor. Typically,
this means that the family performs 65 percent of the
identified labortasks. The local grantee establishes the
labor tasks and weekly time commitments for each
household. Under the new construction program, the
families must work on each other’s home.

The program guidelines for rehabilitation are
negotiable in construction tasks and amountofflinding,
but the applicant must demonstrate a cost savings.
The labor may be either mutual or each homeowner
may complete it individually. The units may be
owner occupied or vacant and include acquision.
The rehabilitation construction funding comes from
a variety of sources, including but not limited to
the RD 502, 504 or the 533 programs. The grantee
secures the construction funding directly or partners
with another agency that can provide the construction
funds. Proposals are reviewed on a case-by-case basis,
but still use the same application process and forms.

Application Process
Generally, the application is a two-step process. The
pre-application determines the need and demand for
the program, eligibility of the grantee, and the likely
success of the program proposed. If approved, the
grantee can secure a 510,000 (tribal entities havebeen
awarded S15,000 in the past) predevelopment grant
to support development of the full application. This
application includes finalizing house plans, securing
lots and qualifying families for their mortgages. The
application process generally takes about a year to
complete, but is open year-round to applicants on a
first—come, first—served basis.

For More Information
USDA local offices in each state take responsibility for
both the grantand the mortgages. USDA contracts with
Rural Community Assistance Corporation (RCAC) in
the West to provide information, assist in program
development and support program management. Call
RCAC at 916/447-2854 or go to www.rcac.o;g for
more information.

0
9/29/2010



0 0
USDA Rural Housing Site Loan Program
(Sections 523 and 524)

Housing Assistance Council June 2008

Section 523 and 524 Rural Housing Site
Loans are made to provide housing sites
for low- and moderate-income families.
The programs are operated by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture’s Rural
Development Housing and Community
Facilities Programs office (RD).

Purpose

Section 523 loans are made to acquire and develop
sites only for housing to be constructed by the self-
help method. Section 524 loans are made to acquire
and develop sites for any low- or moderate-income
families. Low income is defined as between 50 and
80 percent of the area median income (AMfl; the
upper limit for moderate income is $5,500 above the
low-income limit.

Ellgibfflty

Section 523 loans are limited to private or public
nonprofit organizations that will provide sites solely
for self-help housing. Section 524 loans are made to
private or public nonprofit organizations. Section 524
sites may be sold to low- or moderate-income
families utilizing RD or any other mortgage financing
program that serves the same eligible families.

Terms

Loans are for two years. Section 523 loans bear 3
percent interest. At the discretion of the borrower,
Section 524 loans bear the market rate of interest
either at the time of approval or at the time of the
loan closing.

Standards

The site development standards and polides in
Instructions 1g24-A and 1924-C apply.

Regulations

The Section 523 and 523 programs are governed by
RD Instruction 444.8 7 (CFR Part 1822 Subpart G)
and Instruction 1924-C.

Additional Information

For additional information on site loans and RD,
contact the National Office, 1400 Independence
Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250; 202-690-
1533, or your Rural Development State Office, which
can be identified at
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/recd map.html or
contacted by telephone through 202-720-4323. RD
regulations and handbooks are available online at
http://rurdev.usda.gov/reqs.

a
HAG

Housing Assistance Council

Founded in 1971, HAc is a national nonprofit corporation
headquartered in Washington, D.C. that helps local
organizations build affordable homes in rural America by
providing below-market financing, technical assistance,
research, training, and information services. HAC’s
programs focus on local solutions, empowerment of the
poor, reduced dependency, and self-help strategies. HAC
is an equal opportunity lender.

1025 vermont Ave., NW.
Suite 606
Washington, DC 20005
202-842-8600
ha c@ rural home. org
http://w’.ws.ruralhomeorg



0
USDA

United States
—_-—-— Department of

Agriculture

0
USDA Rural Development

Rural Utilities Programs

Infrastructure Funding for Substantially
Underserved Trust Areas
The Rural Utilities Service (RUS), an agency within
USDA Rural Development, was given new tools
through the 2008 Farm Bill (the Food, Conservation,
and Energy Act of 2008) to finance improvements in
electric, teecommunications. and water and sewer
infrastructure in substantially underserved trust areas —

land held in trust by the United States for Native
Americans. This pad of the 2008 Farm Bill is known as
the Substantially Underserved Trust Area (SUTA) provi
sions.” The provisions are designed to make RUS inira
structure financing more accessible to, and affordable
for, Native Americans in trust areas because those
areas, historically, have had difficulty receiving Federal
assistance.

Benefits of the SUTA Provisions

Under the SUTA provisions, USDA has the flexibility to:

• Offer loan interest rates as low as 2 percent;;
• Waive certain documentation requirements regarding

non-duplication of service;
• Waive the matching funds or credit support require

ments for loans;
• Extend the time period in which loans are repaid; and
• Provide the highest priority for funding to eligible

projects that will serve trust areas.

RUS published a final rule in the Federal Registerin
June 2012 that provides detailed information about how
it is implementing the SUTA provisions. Additional SUTA
resources, including the final rule and a questions and
answers document, are available online at: www.rur
dev.usda.gov/Al ANHome.html.

What Does “Substantially Underserved”
Mean?

A substantially underserved’ trust area is a community
in a trust area that the Secretary of Agriculture deter
mines has a high need for assistance. ‘Underserved’ is
defined as an area or community tacking an adequate
level or quality of service. This can include areas where
an existing provider has not, or will not, offer an ade
quate level or quality of service (normally, USDA cannot
fund projects that are considered to duplicate existing
services through another provider in the same area).

Which Programs Are Included?

The following USDA programs can offer benefits
through SUTA to qualified applicants:

• Rural Electrification Direct and Guaranteed Loans:
• High Energy Cost Grants;
• Water and Waste Disposal Direct and Guaranteed

Loans;
• Water and Waste Disposal Grants;
• Broadband Direct and Guaranteed Loans;
• Distance Learning and Telemedicine Grants; and
• Telecommunications Infrastructure Direct and

Guaranteed Loans.

Can Non-TribalApplicants Request SUTA
Consideration?

Yes. Applicants who are eligible under RUSs regular
loan and grant program authorities may request consid
eration under the SUTA provisions. However, to ensure
the feasibility of any project that will be carried out, non-
Tribal applicants must provide RUS with documentation
showing that Tribes in the service area agree to the
proposed project.

How Do Applicants Request SUTA
Consideration?

Applicants may determine if they qualify for considera
tion under the SUTA provisions by contacting their
USDA Rural Development State Office at
ww.njrdev,usda.pov/StateOfficeAddresses.html. Each
State has local electric, telecommunications, and
water and sewer specialists who can provide
assistance. Applicants may also contact program
specialists at the National Office at
.mrdev.usda.cov/Utilities LRhtml for more infor
mation.

Applicants may also write to:

USDA Rural Development
Rural Utilities Service
Room 5135-5, Stop 1510
1400 Independence Ave. SW
Washington, DC 20250-1510
Phone: (800) 670-6553 (Toll Free)
Fax: (202) 720-1725



Written Materials Required to Apply

Applicants must submit a completed application to
USDAthat meets all the requirements under the loan or
grant program through which they are requesting fund
ing. Applicants must also notify USDA, in writing, that
they are seeking SUTA consideration, and include the
discretionary SUTA authorities (for example! a 2-per
cent interest loan) that they would like to have applied
to their proposaL

Written requests may be memoranda or letters, and
must include the following:

• A description of the applicant, documenting eligibility;
• A description of the community to be served,

documenting eligibility;
• An explanation and documentation of the high need

for the benefits of the program, which may include
but is not limited to:
—Data documenting a lack of service or inadequate

service in the affected community;
—Data documenting significant health risks to

community residents due to a lack of access to, or
service by! an adequate! affordable service; and

—Data documenting economic need in the commun
ity (for the types of data suggested to document
high need, see the “Application Requirements
section of the final rule).

• The impact of the specific SUTA authorities reques
ted for the proposed project;

• Documentation substantiating that when the SUTA
authorities are factored into the proposed financing,
the project is financially feasible; and

• Any additional information RUS may consider rele
vant to the application which is necessary to
adequately evaluate the application.

RUS may also request modifications or changes,
including changes to the amount of funds requested, in
any proposal outlined in applications for consideration.

Consideration ofApplications

Applicants are welcome and encouraged to provide
additional information that demonstrates high need for
the benefits of the desired loan or grant program.

Once a complete application and SUTA request have
been received, USDA staff will conduct a review to
determine if the applicant is eligible to receive SUTA
consideration. Applicants will be notified if SUTA consid
eration has been approved or denied! Next, USDA will
evaluate requests for specific SUTA authorities to deter
mine if the proposal is financially feasible at the special
rates or terms. USDA will then determine which of the
SUTA provisions will be granted. USDA may include all,

0

some, or none of the SUTA authorities originally
requested by the applicant

For More Information

For more information on SUTA, visit
w.rurdev.usda.oov/suta.htmt. Native American Tribal
groups orTnbal members may also contact Rural
Developments Native American Coordinator by e-mail
at AlANwdc.usda.gov or by phone at (720) 544-2911.

Program Aid 2137
May 2013

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimi
nation against its customers! employees! and applicants for
employment on the bases of race, color national origin, age!
disability, sex! gender identity, religion, reprisal, and where
applicable, political beliefs, marital status, familial or parental
status! sexual orientation, or all or part of an individuals
income is derived from any public assistance program, or pro
tected genetic information in employment or in any program
or acivity conducted or funded by the Department. (Not al
prohibited bases w11 apply to all programs and/or empbyment
acdvities.)

If you wish to file an employment complaint! you must contact
your agency’s FED Counselor (click the hyperlink for list of
FED Counselors) within 45 days of the date of the alleged
discriminatory act, event, or in the case of a personnel action.
Additional information can be found online at
hUp:1/vw.ascr.usda.gov!comnlaint filing flle.html.

If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimi
nation, ccmplete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, found online at
httoJ/vw.ascr.usda.gov!comnPaint filing cust.html, or at any
USDA office, or call (866) 632-9992 to request the form. You
may also write a letter containing all of the information
requested in the form. Send your completed complaint form or
letter to us by mail at U.S. Department of Agriculture, Director,
Office ofAdjudication, 1400 Independence AvenLe. SW.
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, by fax (202) 6D-7422 or
email at program.intakeusda.gov.

Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech dis
abilities and you wish to fle either an EEO or program com
plaint please contact USDA through the Federal Relay
Service at (800) 877-8339 or (800) 845-6136 (in Spanish).

Persons with disabilities who wish to file a program complaint,
please see information above on how to contact us by mail
directly or by email. If you require alternative means of com
munication for program inrormation (e.g., Braille, large print,
audiotape, etc.) please contact USDA’s TARGET Center at
(202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD).

C



r: :2*zs

Since 1992, the Native American Veteran Direct Loan (NADL) program has provided eligible

Native American Veterans and their spouses the opportunity to use their Department of

Veterans Affairs (\.TA) home loan guaranty benefit on Federal trust land.

HOW DOES THE NADL PROGRAM WORK?

By statute, before VA may make a loan to any Native American Veteran, the Vetera&s tribal or other
sovereign goverHing body must enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with VA. Native
American Veterans who are eligible for VA home loan benefits and whose sovereign governments have
signed an MOU, may then apply directly to VA for a 30 year fixed rate loan to purchase, build, or
improve a home located on Federal trust land. They may also refinance a direct loan already made
under this program to lower their interest rate. If the property is not located on Federal trust land, the
Veteran can use the traditional VA-guaranteed Home Loan program.

WHAT ARE THE LOAN LIMITS AND INTEREST RATES?

Please see the current list of loan limits and the interest rates for NADLs.

HOW CAN I CONTACT VA TO LEARN MORE ABOUT GETTING A NADL?

VA has nine regional offices that can assist with loan guaranty questions. Please contact the RLC in
your area of jurisdiction. You can locate your RLC ofjurisdiction.

Home Loans — February 2015

Dibiftiesdotentined byVflto be reatod toyournh[].rewseMCecan lead to rnonhltjnon-tsxable cornpcns.iton,enrollrnantinthe

VA heatth ore cystern, a 20-point hLring preference for felernl emptament and other important benefits. AskycurVA
representative orveterans Serce Organbation representative about DisabJ:tyCcmpensntion, Pension, Hoath Care, CareQer

ProCrani. Career Services. EduCational Assistance, Home Loan Guaranty, Insurance and/or Dependents and SuniivorW Benefits. 0 U.S. Department
of Veterans Afihirs

-C

HOME LOAN GUARANTY

OVE R\/IE’A’



0 0
USDA

United States Department of Agriculture

January 21, 2016

Mr. Carlos V. Camacho. Executive President
Micronesia Community Development Corporation
135 Chalan Santo Papa Road
Janet Commerical Building
Hagatna, GU 96910

Dear Mr. Camacho:

Subject: Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant - 5512,417
Micronesia Community Development Corporation

I am pleased to notify you that your request for funding of 5512,417 has been approved for the
Micronesia Community Development Corporation (MCDC) to assist 20 families complete the
construction of their homes in the Sagan Bonita Project in Mangilao, Guam.

The amount of this grant is based upon the construction of 20 houscs at a Technical Assistance
Grant (TA) cost of $25,620.85 on a per unit basis.

On a monthly basis, Form SF-270. Request for Advance or Reimbursement, is to be submitted to
Rural Development’s Guam Office. The request should indicate the amount of funds used
during the previous month, amount of unspent funds, projected amount needed for the next 30
days and written justi€ication if the request exceeds the projected need for the next 30 days. This
request should be submitted approximately 15 days prior to the beginning of the month. The last
gram disbursement will only be made after all the necessary warranties have been received and
all mortgage loans have been reconciled. The amount to be retained will be one twenty-fourth
(j/24i1) of the two year grant. For your grant $21,351 will be retained until all the necessary
infonnation is submitted.

Please complete SF-3881, ACH Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form, so that all
disbursement request will be sent electronically.

Enclosed for your record is a copy of Form RD 1940-I, Request for Obligation of Funds.

Also enclosed is the RD Instruction 1944-1, Exhibit A, Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant
Agreement, for execution. Upon execution of this document, please send it back to our oflice for
futher processing In order for our office to sign off on the grant agreement we will need
evidence that MCDC has:

Rural Development
154 Waignuenue Avenue, Rni 311. hlo, Hawaii 96720

Vote (808) 9’383C° Fax (808) 933-8327

USDA is an equal opportunilyprovider, employer, and lender.

if you wish to file a Civit Rights program complaint or discrimination, complete the USDA Program DiscrlminarLon complaint Form PDF), found online
at http Ilvwm.asa usda gowcomplainljting,,,cust.html, or at any USDA office, or cart eee 532.9992 to request the form You may also write a letter
containing all or the information requested in the form. Send your completed complaint form or letter to us by mail at U.S. Department or Agr:culture,
Director. Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW,, Washington, D.C. 20250.8410, by fax (202) 6907442 or email at
program intakeusda gOv



Mr. Carlos V. Carnacho, Executive President
Micronesia Community Development Corporation
January21, 2O5
Page 2

1. Show evidence ofan approved indirect cost rate policy in accordance with 7 CFR pans
3015 and 3016.

You are encouraged to work with our T&MA Contractor. Rural Community Assistance
Corporation, for any needed technical assistance.

Should you have any questions, please contact Joseph Diego, Area II Director in Guam,
(671)300-8560 or via email at joseph.die2oJQb.usda.o%, or Donald K. Etés. Housing Programs
Director, at (808)933-8305 or via email at donald.etcs d hi.usda.uov.

Sincerely,

cc: Erika Holzhauer, RCAC
Donald K. Etés. Housing Programs Director
Joseph NI. Diego, Area 11 Director
Steven Cruz. Area Specialist

0 0

CHRIS J. KAN.
fcate Director

Enclosure



C)
United States Department of Agriculture

March 22, 2016

Carlos V. Camacho, Executive Director
Micronesia Community Development Corporation (MCDC)
Suite 108 Serenu Avenue
Tamuning, Guam 96913

Dear Carlos:

SUBJECT: USDA Program & Eligibility Update

Please allow this letter to confirm program eligibility and a recent grant award in favor of
Micronesia Community Development Corporation (MCDC), a Guam-based, private non-profit
corporation.

First of all, on September 4, 2014 USDA Rural Development (RD) had requested for a
determination from our Regional Attorney in San Francisco on MCDC’s eligibility as an
applicant for loan and grant assistance under the Rural Utilities Service’s (RU 5) Water &
Wastewaler program pursuant to 7 CFR, Part 1780. This program helps very small, financially
distressed rural communities extend and improve water and waste treatment facilities that serve
local households and businesses.

On September 17, 2014, RD received a formal notice from our Regional Attorney that
MCDC is organized in a legally sufficient maimer as a nonprofit corporation that is eligible to
apply for RUS assistance.

Recently, in FY 2015 RD approved a S512,417 Section 523 Mutual Self-Help Housing
Grant in favor of MCDC. The two-year. TA grant wilt be utilized by MCDC to assist 20
families who are first-time homeowners in building their homes utilizing the self-help method of
construction.

The significance of tlus recent award is basically three-fold. First, this is the first award
under this program for Guam. By working in partnership with MCDC, this program offers
another option for very-low- and low-income families to obtain affordable, clean and safe homes
of their own. Secondly, in order to ensure the success of this program, MCDC is guaranteed
access to dedicated RD mortgage funds under our RH 502 direct loan program to assist eligible
families with affordable mortgages. And finally, as this award is intended to represent a long-
term partnership between MCDC and RD, the TA grant is structured to be a continuous ftmding

Rural Development
770 East Sunset Blvd., Suite 250, Tlyan, GU 96913

Voice (671) 472-7351 • Fax (855) 878-2465

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, ernployei; and lender.

It you wsh to rile a CivH Rights proam comflnl oldiscrimLelion. complete the USDA Program Discr;minat;on Coripiant Farm (P09 found onne
at http:IWN,w as:r.usdagovlcampaintjillng_cosl.hlml, Cr at any USDA ofice, or call (966) 632-9952 to reqesl the torn. You may aso write a letter
canlalrlng all of tte Information requested In the form. Send your completed mparil form or letter to us by mail at U.S. Department of Agriculture,
Direclor Office or Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washingien, b.c. 20250-5410 by fax (202) 590-7442 Cr emaH at
preran.Intakousda.gov.



• Cárls V. Camaeho, Executive Director Page 2 of 2
March 30, 2016

source for MCDC. To support the viability of tins partnership, RD customarily does not allow
more than one self-help grantee with coverage over the same jurisdiction. Provided that there
remains a demand for affordable housing in the service area, MCDC will be provided with the
opportunity to apply for this two-year grant in support of the self-help housing program for the
sen’ice area,

Also, as an eligible non-profit organization and a recipient of a self-help housing grant
award, MCDC can now access RD’s Rural Housing Site Loan Program. This program provides
funds to a private or public non-profit organizations to acquire and develop sites in support of
affordable housing.

We value our partnership with MCDC and appreciate your efforts to utilize RD as a
resource in serving the rural citizens of the Island of Guam.

Si Yu’os Ma’ase!

Si nce rely,

J SEP 4. DIEGO
rca Director

0 0



8:33 AM 0 CLTC - Operations Fund C)
08/18/16 Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2016

Jun 30, 16

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
BOG Operations (#2501-003055)

_________

— 1,041,538.61

Total Checking/Savings 1,041.53861

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -76,000.00
Accounts Receivable - Other 364,03321

Total Accounts Receivable

_______

288,033.21

Total Accounts Receivable 288033.21

Other Current Assets
Due to/from GSA 521

Total Other Current Assets -5,214.71

Total Current Assets 1,324,357.11

Other Assets
Due to/from General Fund 1,364,634.97

Total Other Assets 1364634.97

TOTAL ASSETS 2,688,992.08

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Payroll 3,057.83
Deterred Revenue 216,421.37

Total Other Current Liabilities 219479.20

Total Current Liabilities

__________-

219,479.20

Total Liabilities 219,479.20

Equity
Appropriations

Encumbrances -166,739.77
Reserve for Encumbrances 166,739.77
Appropriations - Other 010,962.87

Total Appropriations 3,010,962.87

Retained Earnings 323181.21
Unappropriated Surplus -1,058,016.87
Net Income

_______

— - 193,385.67

Total Equity

__________

2,469,512.88

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,688,992.08

Page 1



7:39 AM (9 CLTC - Operations Fund (9
08/18/16 Profit & Loss

October 2015 through June 2016

Oct’lS-Jun 16

Income
AgriiResi. Lease 2,309.00
Commercial Lease/License 744,999.56
Interest Income 533.26
Land Trust Application Fees 4,450.00
Royalties 72,232.05

Total Income 824,523.87

Gross Profit 824,523.87

Expense
Building Rent 103,658.50
Contract 113,451.12
Drug Testing 80.00
Fringe Benefit 116,213.63
Miscellaneous 1100.00
Regular Salary 283,074.14
Supplies — 13,560.81

Total Expense 631,138.20

Net Income 193,385.67

Page 1



R
u
n

D
a
te

-
8

/1
8

/1
6

R
u

n
T

im
e

8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

D
L

M
C

R
U

Z
J

A
c
c
o
u

n
t

n
u

m
b

e
r

1
6

2
4
1
0
2
1
0

T
ra

n
s

n
u

m
b

e
r

-

T
ra

n
s

c
o

d
e
(s

)
C

he
ck

m
n
/y

ea
r

P
a
y
ro

ll
y
e
a
r

A
c
c
o
u
n

t
N

u
m

b
e
r

In
v
o
ic

e
N

o
R

e
m

a
rk

s
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
T

R
A

N
S

A
C

T
IO

N
S

L
IS

T

V
e
n

d
D

rs
o

T
ra

n
s

A
s
t

P
a

F
G

IA
d
c
c

8
A

d
d

U
s
e
rr

d
R

e
m

a
rk

s
4

2
6

2
3

9
3

0
A

C
C

Y
0
4
5

T
o

a
d
d

d
a
te

:
9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9
9

F
G

IA
in

E
rt

d
a
te

:
/

/
E

x
p

A
n

t
E

n
c
u
m

b
A

n
t

R
v

s

A
d
d

D
a
te

C
h
e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

ld

1
P

R
T

rR
N

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/
2
/2

0
1
5

J
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

0
4

P
O

S
1
0
0
2
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
0
0
2
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/
5
/2

0
1
5

.1
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

1
1

P
0

3
1

0
0

5
1

5
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
O

T
O

1
0

0
5

1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0
/

6
/2

0
1
5

J
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

1
9

P
0

3
1

0
0

6
1

5
D

l
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
D

1
0

0
6

1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/
7
/2

0
1
5

J
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

2
4

P
0

3
1

0
0

7
1

5
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
1
0
0
7
1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/
8
/2

0
1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
0
2
8

P
0

5
1

0
0

8
1

5
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
0
0
8
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/
9

/2
0

1
5

J
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

3
3

P
0

S
1

0
0

9
1

5
0
2

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
D

T
O

1
0

0
9

1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

1
5

.1
1

6
0

6
1

0
0

3
9

P
0

S
1

0
1

3
1

5
0
2

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
0
1
3
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/1
5

/2
0

1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
0
7
5

P
0

3
1

0
1

5
1

5
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

1
0

1
5

1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1

0
/1

9
/2

0
1

5
.1

1
6
0
6
1
0
0
8
0

P
O

S
1
O

1
9
1
S

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

1
0
1
9
1
5

S
II

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
0
8
2

P
0

5
1

0
2

0
1

5
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

1
0
2
0
1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1

0
/2

3
/2

0
1

5
J1

6
3
T

F
0
0
2
1

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
1

3
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

R
C

T
1
0
2
3
1
5

1
6

2
4

1
0

2
1

0
6
0
4

1
0

/2
8

/2
0

1
5

JL
6
S

T
F

O
O

2
4

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
2

2
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
S

P
E

C
IA

L
F

U
N

D
T

R
A

N
S

F
R

U
I’

1
0
2
8
1
5

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/3
0

/2
0

1
5

J
1

6
0

6
1

0
1

1
2

O
C

T
’1

5
IN

T
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
O

C
T

1
5

IN
T

F
O

R
V

A
R

IO
U

S
O

N
E

A
C

C
r

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
0

/3
0

/2
0

1
5

.1
1

6
0

6
1

0
1

3
0

P
0

3
1

0
3

0
1

5
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

1
0

3
0

1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
1

/
3
/2

0
1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
1
4
4

P
0

5
1

1
0

3
1

5
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
D

1
1
0
3
1
5

O
V

T
R

G
F

1
4
9
3
.5

1
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1

0
/

6
/2

0
1
5

/
/

2
5
0
4
6
.4

6
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
0
/

9
/2

0
1

5
/

/

1
3
4
8
.6

8
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

M
1
0
/

9
/2

0
1

5
/

/

1
5

9
2

.
7

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
5

/
/

9
9
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1

0
/1

3
/2

0
1

5
/

/

3
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1

0
/1

6
/2

0
1

5
/

/

5B
S

D
.0

0
A

C
C

N
E

N
D

M
1
0
/1

6
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
4

9
B

8
.9

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
0
/2

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

5
0

2
5

.0
0

A
C

C
N

E
N

D
M

1
0
/2

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

2
3

6
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

)I
D

M
1

0
/2

7
/2

0
1

5
/

/

3
5

1
9

D
D

.0
0

A
C

C
N

E
N

D
M

1
0
/2

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

7
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
-

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

1
1

/
3

/2
0

1
5

/
/

/
0
0
0
0

R
u

n
Id

:
0

0
0

0
C

od
e

T
ra

n
s

D
a
te

I
D

P
/O

N
o

P
r
io

r
R

e
f

6
0

0
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1

5

F
ro

a
T

ra
n

s
d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

D
1

5
T

o
tr

a
n

s
d

a
te

:
6
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

P
r
io

r
r
e
f

V
e
n

d
o

r.
-

.
.

:
P

/0
n

U
m

b
e
r
.
.

:
In

v
o
ic

e
.

A
d
d

U
s
e
r

-
.

.
:

T
ra

n
s

a
n

t
-

F
ro

m
a
d
d

d
a
te

/
/

F
G

IA
d
o
c
u
re

n
t#

P
a
g
e

-

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

1
/

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

4
9
.3

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M

2
1
8
5
8
.2

5
A

C
C

M
E

N
0

5

2
4

3
8

.7
3

A
C

C
R

E
K

0
5

1
1

/
3
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
1

/
5
/2

0
1
5

/
/

0
1

1
1

/
9

/2
0

1
5

/
/



R
u
n

D
a
te

8
/1

8
/1

6
R

u
n

T
im

e
5

:4
5

:3
2

U
s
e
r

ID
.

-
D

L
M

C
R

U
Z

J
A

c
c
o
u
n
t

n
u
m

b
e
r

1
6

2
4

1
D

2
1

0
T

ra
n
s

n
u
m

b
e
r

-

P
0
5
1
1
0
9
1
5

D
I

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

fl
C

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
U

rn
1
1
0
9
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

5
0

4
1
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
5

J
1
6
0
6
1
0
1
7
7

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

D
T

D
1

1
1

2
1

5
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

P
0
5
1
1
1
2
1
5

D
l

6
0

4
1
1
/1

3
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
1

9
8

P
0
5
1
1
1
3
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1

1
1

3
1

5
O

V
E

R
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/1

7
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
2

0
2

P
0
5
1
1
1
7
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
1
1
7
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/1

8
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
2

2
0

P
0
5
1
1
1
8
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
1
1
8
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/2

0
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
2

2
3

P
0
5
1
1
2
0
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
1
2
0
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/2

4
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
2

3
1

P
0
5
1
1
2
4
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
1
2
4
1
5

O
V

E
R

O
F

1
5
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/3

0
/2

0
1
5

3
1

5
0

5
1

0
2

5
4

N
D

V
1
S

1
S

T
0

1

R
E

C
O

R
D

N
O

V
1
S

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
IO

U
S

H
A

N
K

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
2
/

4
/2

0
1

5
3

1
6

0
6

1
0

2
8

5

P
O

S
1
2
0
4
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

U
T

S
1
2
0
4
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/

7
/2

0
1

5
3

1
6

0
6

1
0

2
9

8
P

0
5
1
2
0
7
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

U
T

D
1
2
0
7
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/

9
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
3

2
8

P
0
5
1
2
0
9
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1

2
0

9
1

5
O

V
E

R
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/1

1
/2

0
1
5

3
1
6
S

T
F

0
0
5
5

1
1
0
0
1
0
4
1
3

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

R
D

V
1
2
1
1
1
5

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/1

4
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
3

3
7

P
0
5
1
2
1
4
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
2
1
4
1
5

O
V

E
R

O
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/1

5
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
3

8
1

P
0
5
1
2
1
5
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
2
1
5
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
2
/1

6
/2

0
1
5

J1
6
D

6
1
0
3
6
2

P
O

S
1
2
1
6
1
5

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
2
1
6
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
ID

N
T

R
A

N
S

A
C

T
IO

N
S

L
IS

T

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
P

r
io

r
r
e
f

In
v
o
ic

e
T

ra
n
s

a
c
t

-
-

8
5
0
.0

0
A

C
C

C
P

U
Z

T
1
1
/1

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
4

1
2

5
.
5
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
F4

1
1
/2

0
/2

D
1
5

/
/

2
6
3
1
.

7
8

A
C

C
M

E
N

E
M

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
1
5

I
/

1
0
9
0
.0

5
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
1
/2

4
/2

0
1
5

/
/

5
0
0
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
1
/2

5
/2

0
1
5

/
/

2
1

9
5

8
.2

5
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
1
/3

0
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
6
.4

7
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
2
/

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
3
3
5
.5

2
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

:
1
2
/1

0
/2

0
1
5

/
/

9
9
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
2
/1

1
/2

0
1
5

/
/

4
9

4
2

.7
0

A
C

C
N

E
N

D
M

1
2
/1

5
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
5
9
2
.7

0
A

C
C

M
R

N
D

M
1
2
/1

7
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
3
4
8
.6

0
A

C
C

N
E

N
D

M

1
0
3
9
.0

8
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M

1
7

1
3

0
.2

0
A

C
C

M
S

N
D

M

F
ro

e
T

ra
n
s

d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1

5
T

o
tr

a
n

s
d
a
te

v
e
n

d
o

r.
.

.
.

:
P

/O
n
u
m

b
e
r

A
d
d

u
s
e
r

.

P
a
g
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

2
PR

T
I

R
N

T
ra

n
a

C
o
d
e
(s

)

C
h
e
c
k

m
o
/y

e
a
r.

:
/

F
re

n
a
d

d
d

a
te

:
/

/
T

o
a
d

d
d
a
te

.
:

9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9

9

P
a
y

r
o

ll
y

e
a
r

-
:

G
O

O
D

R
u
n

Id
:

0
0
0
0

F
G

IA
d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t8
F

d
A

in
tr

f
d
a
te

:
/

/
A

C
C

O
U

n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r

C
o
d
e

T
ra

n
s

D
a
te

T
N

O
V

e
n

d
o

ru
o

T
ra

n
s

r1
m

r
E

x
u

A
c
t

E
n

c
u

m
b

A
m

t
R

v
s

In
v

n
ic

e
N

n
P

/O
N

o
P

r
io

r
R

e
f

B
a

F
G

IA
d

o
c

A
d
d

U
s
e
rl

d
A

d
d

D
a
te

C
h

e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

ld

R
e
m

a
rk

s
R

e
m

a
rk

s
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
1
/

4
/2

0
1

5
J
1
6
0
6
1
0
1
3
9

9
9

0
0

P
D

S
1

1
D

4
1

5
D

l
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1

1
/

6
/2

0
1
5

/
/

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

U
T

D
1
1
0
4
1
5

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
1
1
/

9
/2

0
1
5

3
1

6
0

6
1

0
1

6
3

1
5
0
8
.5

1
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
1
1
/1

3
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
2
/1

5
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
2
/2

1
/2

0
1
5

/
/

1
2
/2

1
/2

0
1
5

/
/



F
ro

m
T

ra
n
s

d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1
5

T
o

tr
a
n

s
d
a
te

V
e
n
d
o
r

.
P

lO
n
u
m

b
e
r

-
-

A
d
d

u
s
e
r

.

F
ro

m
a
d

d
d
a
te

F
G

IA
d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t#

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

V
e
n

d
o
rN

o
T

ra
n
s

A
m

t

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

B
a

F
G

IA
d
c
c

ii
A

d
d

U
s
e
rl

d

_
_
_
_
_
_

R
e
m

a
rk

s
6
0
4

1
2
/2

3
/2

0
1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
4
4
1

9
9

0
o

P
0

3
1

2
2

3
1

5
0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
o

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

lI
T

1
2
2
3
1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

1
2

/2
4

/2
0

1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
4
2
1

2
1
8
5
8
.2

5

P
0

3
1

2
2

4
1

5
0
1

A
C

O
1E

N
O

M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

O
T

1
2
2
4
1
5

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1

6
2

4
1

D
2
1
O

6
0

4
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

5
1

1
6

0
6

1
0

4
5

0
2
3
.2

7

D
E

C
1
5

IN
T

0
1

A
C

C
D

IM
A

D

R
E

C
D

E
C

’1
5

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
IO

U
S

B
A

N
K

A
C

C

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

1
5

.1
1

6
0

6
1

0
4

8
1

5
0
.0

0
P

0
5

1
2

3
1

1
5

0
1

A
C

C
IL

A
G

K

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
1
2
3
1
1
5

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

1
/

6
/2

0
1
6

1
1

6
0

6
1

0
4

9
5

P
0

5
0

1
0

6
1

6
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
D

0
1

0
6

1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
T

h
0

1
0

8
1

6
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
1
1
2
1
6

1
6

2
4

1
0

2
1

0
6
D

4
1

/1
3

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
5
3
8

P
0
S

0
1
1
3
1
6

D
l

T
o

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

U
T

D
0
1
1
3
1
6

6
0

4
1

/1
4

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
5
7
2 0

1
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
1
1
6
1
6

6
0

4
1

/2
0

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
5
9
5

P
0

S
0

1
2

0
2

0
1

6
0
1

D
T

D
0
1
2
0
1
6

6
0
4

1
/2

1
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6
0
6
1
0
6
0
1

P
0

5
0

1
2

1
1

6
0
1

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
0

T
h

0
1
2
1
1
6

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
1
2
2
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

1
/2

5
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6

0
6

1
0

6
1

9
P

0
S

0
1

2
5

1
6

0
8

R
E

C
T

O
G

D
E

P
D

T
D

0
1
2
5
1

6
;O

V
E

R
G

F
4
0
8
9
6
.5

6
1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0

4
1

/2
9

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
6
4
6

JA
N

1
6

IN
T

0
6

T
O

R
E

C
J
A

N
1
6

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
IO

U
S

B
A

N
K

S
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
2
/

5
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
6
7
6

P
0

5
0

2
0

5
1

6
0

8
T

O
E

E
C

T
O

G
D

E
P

0
2
0
5
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
4

4
1

5
9

.3
8

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
2
/

8
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6
0
6
1
0
6
9
2

P
0

5
0

2
0

8
1

6
0

1
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
IW

O
0

2
0

8
1

6

R
u
n

D
a
te

.
8
/1

8
/1

6
R

u
n

T
im

e
.

:
8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

.
D

L
M

C
R

U
Z

J
A

c
c
o
u
n
t

n
u

m
b

e
r

1
6
2

4
1

0
2

1
0

T
ra

n
s

n
u

m
b

e
r

T
ra

n
s

c
o
d
e
(s

)
C

h
e
c
k

m
o

/y
e
a
r.

/
P

a
y

r
o
ll

y
e
a
r

.
:

0
0
0
0

R
u

n
Id

:
0
0
0
0

A
c
c
o
u

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r

c
o
d
e

T
ra

n
s

D
a
te

T
N

O
In

v
o
ic

e
fl

o
P

/O
N

o
P

r
io

r
R

e
f

R
e
m

a
rk

s
1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
P

a
g
e

.
:

3

T
R

A
N

S
A

C
T

IO
N

S
L

IS
T

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

P
R

T
F

R
N

6
0
4

1
/

8
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
5
1
2

P
O

S
1

0
8

1
6

D
l

6
0

4
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
5
3
7

P
0

S
0

1
1

2
1

6
0
1

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

P
O

S
1
1
1
4

1
6

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
P

r
io

r
r
e
f

In
T

o
ic

e
.

T
ra

n
s

a
m

t

/
/

T
o

a
d

d
d

a
te

.
9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9
9

F
G

IA
in

tr
f

d
a
te

:
/

/
E

x
p

A
m

t
E

n
c
u
m

b
A

m
t

R
y

e
A

d
d

D
a
te

C
h
e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
V

r
R

u
n

id

1
/

4
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
/

4
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
/

6
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
/1

1
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
/1

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/1

2
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
/1

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/1

9
/2

0
1

6
I

/

1
/2

5
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/2

5
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/2

6
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/2

7
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
/2

7
/2

0
1

6
/

/

2
/

2
/2

0
1

6
/

/

2
/1

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

2
/1

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

1
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6
0
6
1
0
6
2
3

P
0

5
0

1
2

2
1

6
0
8

1
4

3
4

.5
1

A
C

C
IL

A
G

R

2
.0

0
A

C
C

I
L

A
G

K

2
4

4
2

.7
0

A
C

C
IL

A
G

K

1
3
4
8
.6

8
A

C
C

IL
A

G
K

4
.0

0
A

C
C

I
L

G
K

6
1

4
3

.0
5

A
C

C
IL

A
G

K

3
5
1
9
7
9
.0

0
A

C
C

IL
A

G
K

2
1
8
5
5

.2
5

A
C

C
O

IM
A

O

9
5
9
6
.1

0
A

C
C

O
I

M
A

O

3
2
.3

2
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

5
0
.0

0
A

C
C

D
IK

A
O

1
3
4
8
.6

8
A

C
C

I
L

A
G

K

C



R
u
n

D
a
te

.
:

8
/1

8
/1

6
R

un
T

im
e

.
:

8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

-
D

L
M

C
R

U
Z

J
A

c
c
o
u
n
t

n
u
m

b
er

:
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

T
ra

n
s

n
u
m

b
e
r

.
V

e
n
d
o
r.

.

T
ra

n
s

c
o

d
e
(s

)
c
h

e
c
k

m
o
/y

e
a
r.

:
/

P
a
y

r
o

ll
y
e
a
r

.
0

0
0

0
R

u
n

Id
:

D
O

D
D

A
c
c
o
u
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r

C
o
d
e

T
ra

n
s

n
a
te

T
N

O
In

v
o

ic
e
N

o
P

/O
N

o
P

r
io

r
R

e
f

R
e
m

a
r
k
s

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
2
0
9
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

5
0

4
2
/1

1
/2

0
1
6

J
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
1
9

P
0
5
0
2
1
1
1
6

0
8

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

D
T

D
0
2
1
1
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

2
/1

2
/2

0
1
5

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
3
3

P
0
5
0
2
1
2
1
6

0
1

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
2
1
2
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
2
/1

9
/2

0
1
6

J
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
8
1

P
0
S

0
2
1
9
1
6

0
8

R
E

C
T

O
G

P
E

P
0
2
1
9
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
2
/2

2
/2

0
1
6

J1
6
S

T
F

O
1
O

6

R
E

C
T

O
G

D
E

P
0
2
2
3
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

1
1
0
0
1
0
4
1
3

0
1

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

D
T

D
0
2
2
2
1
6

6
0

4
2
/2

3
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
8
6

P
0
5
0
2
2
3
1
6

0
8

P
lo

n
u
m

b
e
r

.
.

:
In

v
o
ic

e
T

ra
n
s

a
m

t

/
/

T
o

a
d

d
d
a
te

.
:

9
9

/9
9

/9
9
9

9
F

G
IA

in
tr

f
d
a
te

:
/

/
E

x
p

Â
m

E
E

n
c
u
a
b

A
m

t
R

v
s

A
d
d

o
a
te

C
h

e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

ld

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

4
0
.0

0
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

2
/1

6
/2

0
1

6
/

/

9
9
2
6
.4

0
A

C
C

IL
A

G
K

2
/1

8
/2

0
1

6
/

/

5
0
2
0
.0

0
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

2
/2

6
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
0
9
0
.0

5
A

C
C

IL
A

G
E

2
/2

3
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
0
3
9
.0

8
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

2
/2

6
/2

0
1

6
/

/

4
0
.0

0
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

3
/

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/
R

E
C

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
2
2
4
1
6

6
0

4
2
/2

9
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
9
8

F
E

8
1
6

IN
T

0
8

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
S

A
N

E
A

C
C

E
6

0
4

3
/

4
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6
0
6
1
0
8
7
7

P
0
5
0
3
0
4
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
0
4
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3

/
8

/2
0

1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
0
8

P
Q

S
O

3
O

e1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
0
8
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3

/
9
/2

0
1
6

J1
6

5
T

F
0

1
2

1
1
1
0
0
1
0
4
2
2

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

D
T

3
0
9
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3
/1

0
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
1
0

P
0
5
0
3
1
0
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
1
0
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3
/1

7
/2

0
1
6

J
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
4
5

P
0
5
0
3
1
7
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
1
7
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
8
0

P
O

S
0
3
2
1
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
2
1
1
6

D
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
8
1

P
0
5
0
3
2
2
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
2
2
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
3
/2

4
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
8
3

P
D

S
0
3
2
4
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
3
2
4
1
6

D
V

E
R

G
F

6
5
.3

8
A

C
C

D
IM

A
O

3
/

2
/2

0
1
6

/
/

2
3

8
5

8
.2

5
A

C
C

M
E

N
C

M
3

/1
0

/2
0

1
6

/
/

2
1

8
5

.5
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

3
/1

7
/2

0
1

6
/

/

5
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
-

A
C

C
M

E
N

O
M

3
/1

7
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
5
0
4
.6

8
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
3

/1
7

/2
0

1
6

/
/

3
5

0
0

.0
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

O
M

3
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
/

/

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
P

a
g
e

-
:

4

T
R

A
N

S
A

C
T

IO
N

S
L

IS
T

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

P
R

T
F

R
N

F
ro

m
T

ra
n

s
d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1

5
T

o
tr

a
m

s
d

a
te

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
P

r
io

r
r
e
f

-

A
d
d

u
s
e
r

-

F
ro

m
a
d

d
d

a
te

F
G

IA
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t#

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

v
e
n
d
o
rN

o
T

ra
n
s

A
m

t

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

B
a

F
G

IA
d

o
c

ft
A

d
d

U
s
e
rl

d
R

e
m

a
rk

s
6
0
4

2
/

9
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
6
9
8

3
5
3
2
.7

5
P

0
5
0
2
0
9
1
6

0
1

A
C

C
IL

A
G

E

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

S
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
2
/2

4
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
0
7
9
3

2
0

5
1

2
2

2
1

5
0

8

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

T
O

R
E

C
F

E
D

1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

2
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
S

N
O

N

1
1
1
8
.0

8
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

N

2
1

9
2

.1
0

A
C

C
E

E
N

O
N

3
/2

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/

3
/2

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/

3
/2

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/



R
u
n

D
a
te

8
/1

8
/1

6
R

u
n

T
im

e
:

8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

D
L

M
C

R
U

Z
J

A
c
c
o
u

n
t

n
u

m
b

e
r

1
6
2
4

1
0

2
1

0
T

ra
n
s

n
u

m
b

e
r

-

T
ra

n
s

c
o
d
e
(s

)
C

h
e
c
k

m
o
/y

e
a
r.

:
/

P
a
y
ro

ll
y

e
a
r

-
D

O
D

D
R

u
n

Id
:

0
0
0
0

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

3
/3

1
/2

0
1

6
J
1

6
0

6
1

1
0

1
2

M
A

R
1

6
‘N

T
0
1

F
O

R
V

A
R

IO
U

S
B

A
N

K
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S

4
/

4
/2

0
1
6

J
1

6
0

6
1

1
0

5
7

P
0

S
0

4
0

4
1

6
0
1

T
o

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

0
4

0
4

1
6

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/

7
/2

0
1
6

J
1

6
0

6
1

1
0

7
0

P
0

5
0

4
0

7
1

6
0

1
T

o
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

0
T

h
0

4
0

7
1

6
S

H
O

R
T

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/

8
/2

0
1
6

J
1

6
0

6
1

1
0

9
1

P
0

5
0

4
0

8
1

6
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

O
0

4
0

8
1

6
O

V
E

R
G

F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/1

4
/2

0
1

6
J
1

6
0

6
1

1
1

1
7

P
0

5
0

4
1

4
1

6
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
0

T
h

0
4

1
4

1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/1

5
/2

0
1

6
J
1

6
0

6
1

1
1

2
4

P
0

5
0

4
1

5
1

6
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

0
4

1
5

1
6

5
0

0
R

T
O

F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
3
1
6
0
6
1
1
3
4
6

P
0

5
0

4
2

0
1

6
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
T

h
0

4
2

0
1

6
0

V
E

R
O

F
1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/2

1
/2

0
1

6
J
1

6
s
rF

o
1

5
?

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
2

2
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
S

P
E

C
IA

L
F

U
N

D
T

R
A

N
S

F
R

D
T

0
4
2
1
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
J
1

6
0

6
1

1
1

a
6

P
0
S

0
4
2
2
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

O
W

0
4

2
2

1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
4

/2
8

/2
0

1
6

3
1
6
0
6
1
1
2
0
1

0
0
5
0
4
2
8
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0

4
2

8
1

6
O

V
E

R
G

F

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

4
/2

9
/2

0
1

6
3
1
6
0
6
1
1
2
1
7

A
P

R
1
6

IN
T

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

A
P

R
1

6
IN

T
E

R
E

S
T

F
O

R
V

A
R

IO
U

S

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

5
/

3
/2

0
1
6

3
1
6
0
6
1
1
2
3
3

P
0

5
0

5
0

3
1

6
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
O

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
D

0
5

0
3

1
6

O
V

E
R

O
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

5
/

5
/2

0
1
6

3
1
6
0
6
1
1
3
2
4

P
0

5
0

5
0

5
1

6
0

1
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
fl

E
D

0
5
0
5
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6

2
4

1
0

2
1

0
6
0
4

5
/

6
/2

0
1

6
3
1
6
0
6
1
1
3
2
6

P
0
S

0
5
0
6
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
5
0
6
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

5
/

9
/2

0
1

6
J1

6
S

T
F

O
1

7
D

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
2

2
0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

R
U

T
0
5
0
9
2
6

A
d
d

u
se

r
.

F
ro

m
a
d

d
d
a
te

/
/

F
G

JA
d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t#

_
_
_
_
_
_

R
x
p

A
lI

t
E

n
C

u
m

b
A

m
t

R
v
s

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

A
d
d

D
a
te

C
h
e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

id

3
/3

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

3
3
-7

4
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
4
/

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

1
3
3
5
.5

1
A

C
C

N
E

N
D

F-
I

4
/

8
/2

0
1
6

/
/

2
2

0
7

.
2

8
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

M
4

/1
3

/2
0

1
6

/
/

1
1

2
3
4

.
5
8

A
C

C
M

E
N

O
I4

4
/1

4
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
2

6
5

.0
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

4
/1

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
0

8
2

.7
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

4
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
I

/

2
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M
4
/2

S
/2

D
1
6

/
/

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
C

X
5
/

2
1

2
0

1
6

/
/

2
5

9
9

.0
8

A
C

C
M

E
N

O
M

5
/

2
/2

0
1
6

/
/

2
1
8
5
8
.2

5
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

M
5
/

2
/2

0
1
6

/
/

1
5
0
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

M
5
/

5
/2

0
1
6

/
/

2
6
8
4
.1

9
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

B

5
5

2
9

.0
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

0
B

8
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
-

A
C

C
M

E
N

0
N

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
T

R
A

N
S

A
C

E
ID

N
S

L
IS

T

F
ro

m
T

ra
n
s

d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1
5

T
o

tr
a
n

s
d
a
te

:
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
6

P
r
io

r
r
e
t

V
e
n

d
o

r.
.

.
.

P
/c

,
n
u
m

b
e
r

.
.

:
In

v
o
ic

e
.

A
C

C
O

U
n

t
N

u
m

b
e
r

C
o

d
e

T
ra

n
m

D
a
te

T
h

0
V

e
n
d
o
rs

o
T

ra
n
s

A
m

t

!
n
v
o
i
c
e
r
i
u

P
/O

N
o

P
r
io

r
R

e
t

B
a

F
G

IA
d
o
C

4
A

d
d

U
s
e
r
ld

R
e
c
a
rk

s
R

e
m

a
rk

s

1
6
2
4
1
0

2
1
0

6
0
4

3
/2

8
/2

0
1

6
3
1
6
0
6
1
0
9
9
9

1
8

4
7

1
.8

0

P
0

5
0

3
2

8
1

6
0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
o

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0

3
2

8
1

6
O

V
E

R
G

F

P
a
g
e

-
:

5
P

ro
g
ra

m
:

P
R

T
F

R
N

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

t4
J4

!1
6

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

T
ra

n
s

a
m

t
-

T
o

a
d

d
d
a
te

.
9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9
9

F
d
A

i
n

t
r
t

d
a
te

:

9
2

.9
0

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

5
/

4
/2

0
1
6

5
/1

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

5
/1

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

5
/1

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

0



R
u

n
D

a
te

.
8

/1
8

/3
5

R
u
n

T
im

e
.

8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

.
D

L
M

C
R

IJ
Z

J
A

c
c
o
u
n
t

n
u
m

b
e
r

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

T
ra

n
s

n
u
m

b
e
r

T
ra

n
s

c
o

d
e
(s

)
c
h

e
c
k

m
o
/y

e
a
r.

P
a
y
ro

ll
y

e
a
r

A
c
c
o
u
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r

In
v

n
ic

e
N

o

_
_

_
_

_
_

R
e
m

a
rk

s
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
7
0

0
5
2
3
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
5
/2

5
/2

0
1
6

1
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
2
3

P
0
5
0
5
2
5
1
6

0
1

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
7
0

0
5
2
5
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

S
T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
0

7
0

0
5
3
1
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
5

1
3

1
/2

0
1

6
J
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
8
0

M
A

Y
lE

T
0

8
T

O
n

E
C

M
A

Y
’1

6
lE

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
B

A
N

K
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/

1
/2

0
1
6

J
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
5
6

P
0
5
0
6
0
1
1
6

0
1

O
E

P
S

O
IT

S
O

T
D

0
6
0
1
1
6

6
0

4
6

/
2

/2
0

1
6

J
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
4
7

P
0
5
0
6
0
2
1
6

0
8

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
O

T
O

0
6
0
2
1
6

6
0
4

6
/

3
/2

0
1

6
1
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
6
6

P
0
5
0
6
0
3
1
6

0
1

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
S

P
O

S
T

S
O

T
O

0
6
0
3
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/

7
/2

0
1

6
.1

1
6
0
6
1
1
5
2
1

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
T

U
0
6
0
7
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

P
0
5
0
6

0
7

1
6

6
0

4
6
/1

3
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
5
5
3

P
0
5
0
6
1
3
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
6
1
3
1
6

O
T

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
6
/1

4
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
5
5
4

P
0
5
0
6
1
4
1
6

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
6
1
4
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
1

6
/1

6
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
5
6
0

P
O

S
0

6
1

6
1

6
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
T

O
G

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
D

T
D

0
6
1
6
1
6

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
6
/1

7
/2

0
1
6

J1
6
S

T
F

0
1
9
5

1
1
0
0
1
0
4
1
3

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

R
D

T
0
6
1
7
1
6

6
0
4

6
/2

0
/2

0
1
6

J1
6
S

T
F

O
1
9
B

1
1
0
0
1
0
4
1
3

0
1

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
P

E
C

IA
L

F
U

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

R
D

T
0
6
2
0
1
6

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
T

R
A

N
S

A
C

T
IO

N
S

L
IS

T

A
d
d

u
s
e
r

.

2
1
6
5
6
.2

5
A

C
C

IL
A

G
K

1
5

0
0

0
0

0
.0

0
—

A
C

C
IL

A
G

E

1
7
4
.4

6
A

C
C

D
IP

A
O

1
5
9
9
.0

0
A

C
C

I
L

A
C

K

1
3

3
5

-
5
1

A
C

C
0
IM

A
O

1
0
0
.0

0
A

C
C

IL
A

G
K

1
3

4
8

-6
8

0
1

A
C

C
IL

A
G

K

5
0
9
2
.7

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

N

8
5

0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

N

1
0
9
0
.0

5
0

1
A

C
C

M
E

N
D

M

6
0

0
0

0
0

.0
0

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

O
M

5
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
A

C
C

M
E

N
O

X

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
P

r
io

r
r
e
f

In
v
o
ic

e
-

T
ra

n
s

a
m

t
T

o
a
d

d
d
a
te

:
9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9
9

F
G

IA
m

ir
E

d
a
te

:
/

/
E

x
p

A
m

t
E

n
c
u
m

b
A

c
t

R
v

s
A

d
d

D
a
te

C
h
e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

ld

F
ro

m
T

ra
n

s
d
a
te

:
1

0
/

1
/2

0
1

5
T

o
tr

a
n

s
d
a
te

V
e
n

d
o

r
-

P
/O

n
u

m
b

e
r

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G

P
a
g
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

6
P

R
n

R
N

/
F

ro
m

a
d

d
d
a
te

:
/

/
0
0
0
0

R
u
n

Id
:

0
0

0
0

F
G

IA
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
o
d
e

T
ra

n
s

D
a
te

T
N

O
V

e
n

d
o

rN
o

T
ra

n
s

A
m

t

_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

P
/O

N
o

P
r
io

r
R

e
f

B
a

F
G

IA
d

o
c

4
A

d
d

u
s
e
r
ld

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

R
e
m

a
rk

s
6

0
4

5
/1

2
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
3
8
4

2
4

4
2

.7
0

P
0
5
0
5
1
2
1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

0
7

0
5
1
2
1
6

S
H

O
R

T
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
5
/1

3
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
3
8
9

9
9
.0

0
P

0
S

0
5
1
3
1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

C
H

D
M

D
E

P
O

S
IT

S
0
7
0

0
5
1
3
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
5
/1

6
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
1
0

3
5
0
0
.0

0
P

0
5
0
5
1
6
1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
N

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

C
S

IT
S

0
7
0

0
5
1
6
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0

4
5
/2

3
/2

0
1
6

.1
1
6
0
6
1
1
4
2
1

1
0
3
9
-0

8
P

0
5
0
5
2
3
1
6

0
1

A
C

C
IL

A
G

K

5
/1

6
/2

0
1
6

/
/

5
/1

9
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
0
4

5
/3

1
/2

0
1
6

J1
6

5
T

F
0

1
8

2
1
1
0
0
1
0
4
2
2

D
l

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

T
O

R
E

C
T

O
G

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

5
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/

3
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/

3
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/

6
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/

6
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/

7
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/

7
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/

8
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/1

4
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/2

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/2

1
/2

0
1

6
/

/
T

O
R

E
C

O
R

D
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

6
/

/



R
u

n
D

a
te

8
/1

8
/1

6
R

u
n

T
im

e
-

8
:4

6
:3

2
U

s
e
r

ID
.

.
D

L
M

C
R

U
Z

J
A

c
c
o
u

n
t

n
u

m
b

e
r

:
1
6
2

4
1

0
2

1
0

T
ra

n
s

n
u

m
b

e
r

-

T
ra

n
s

c
o
d
e
(s

)
c
h

e
c
k

m
o
/y

e
a
r.

P
a
y
ro

ll
y
e
a
r

A
c
c
o
u

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r

V
e
n

d
o

rf
lo

T
ra

n
s

A
n

t
In

v
o

ic
e
N

o

_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

B
a

F
G

E
A

d
o

e
A

d
d

U
s
e
rl

d

R
e
m

a
rk

s
R

e
m

a
rk

s
1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/2

0
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6
0
6
1
1
5
6
3

1
1

9
6

6
.2

6
P

0
5

0
6

2
0

1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

O
T

O
0

6
2

0
1

6
O

V
E

R
G

F
1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/2

1
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6
0
6
1
1
5
9
3

1
0
3
9
.0

8
P

0
5

0
6

2
1

1
6

0
1

A
C

C
N

E
N

U
M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0

6
2

1
1

6
O

V
E

R
G

P
1

6
2

4
1

0
2

1
0

6
0
4

6
/2

3
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6

0
6

1
1

6
2

0
1
1
0
0
.0

5
P

0
5

0
6

2
3

1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
6
2
3
1
6

O
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/2

7
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6
0
6
1
1
6
3
0

5
0

0
.0

0
P

0
5

0
6

2
7

1
6

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0
6
2
7
1
6

D
V

E
R

G
F

1
6
2
4
1
0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6
0
6
1
1
6
4
5

4
5
.4

2
JU

N
E

’1
6

IN
T

0
1

A
C

C
M

E
N

D
M

T
O

R
E

C
JU

N
E

’1
6

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
F

O
R

V
A

R
IO

U
S

B
A

N
K

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

.
1
6
2
4
1

0
2
1
0

6
0
4

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
.3

1
6
0
6
1
1
6
4
9

7
9
.0

0
P

0
5

0
6

3
0

1
6

0
1

A
C

C
R

E
ti

O
N

T
O

R
E

C
O

R
D

T
O

G
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

D
T

D
0

6
3

0
1

6
D

V
E

R
G

F

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
p

r
io

r
r
e
t

In
v
o
ic

e
.

T
ra

n
s

a
m

t

P
a
g
e

.
7

P
ro

g
ra

m
:

P
R

T
F

R
N

/
/

T
o

a
d
d

d
a
te

.
:

9
9
/9

9
/9

9
9
9

P
S

IA
b
i
n

d
a
te

;
/

/
E

x
p

A
tt

E
n
c
u
m

b
A

m
t

R
v

s
A

d
d

D
a
te

C
h

e
c
k

D
a
te

C
k
Y

r
R

u
n

ld

F
IN

A
L

T
O

T
A

L
S

C
o

u
n

t;
1
0
2

1
,0

4
1
,5

3
8
.6

1

0
0
0
0

R
u
n

Id
:

0
0
0
0

C
o

d
e

T
ra

n
s

fl
a
ts

T
R

O

P
/O

N
o

P
r
io

r
R

e
t

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
T

R
A

S
IS

A
C

T
IO

N
S

L
IS

T

P
ro

m
T

ra
n
s

d
a
te

:
1
0
/

1
/2

0
1

5
T

o
tr

a
n

s
d

a
te

V
e
n

d
o

r.
.

.
.

P
/o

n
u
m

b
e
r

A
d
d

u
s
e
r

F
ro

m
a
d

d
d

a
te

F
G

IA
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
tP

6
/2

3
/2

0
1

6
/

/

6
/2

3
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/2

9
/2

0
1
6

/
/

6
/2

9
/2

0
1
6

/
/

7
/

5
/2

0
1
6

/
/

7
/

5
/2

0
1

6
/

/



8:
30

A
M

C
L

T
C

-
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

F
un

d

08
/1

8/
16

N
R

A
gi

ng
S

u
m

m
ar

y
A

s
of

Ju
n

e
30

,
2
0
1
6

C
u
rr

en
t

1
-

30
31

-
60

61
-

90
>

90
T

O
T

A
L

D
O

C
O

M
O

(G
U

A
M

C
E

L
L

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

)
0.

00
1,

59
2.

70
0.

00
0_

D
o

0.
00

1
5
9

2
.7

0
E

ve
ly

n
S

to
re

0.
00

26
.0

0
26

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

52
.0

0
G

A
SO

13
16

0,
30

9.
61

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
0,

30
9.

61
G

T
A

T
el

eg
u
am

-3
3,

39
3.

94
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
33

,3
93

.9
4

0.
00

G
ua

m
B

ro
ad

ca
st

P
ar

tn
er

s
/

S
o
re

n
se

n
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
30

,5
98

.9
8

30
,5

98
.9

8
G

ua
m

In
te

rn
at

io
n
al

C
o
u
n
tr

y
C

lu
b

-9
5,

95
5.

67
21

,8
58

.2
5

2
1
8
5
8
.2

5
2,

08
0.

74
95

,9
55

.6
7

45
,7

97
.2

4
G

u
am

R
ac

in
g

F
ed

er
at

io
n

-3
0,

96
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
3,

77
0.

00
0.

00
30

,9
60

.0
0

7
3

7
0
.0

0
G

ua
m

R
es

o
u
rc

e
R

ec
o
v
er

y
P

ar
tn

er
s

0.
00

4,
40

0.
00

4,
40

0.
00

4,
40

0.
00

26
,4

00
.0

0
39

,6
00

.0
0

iC
O

N
N

E
C

T
/C

H
O

IC
E

P
H

O
N

E
0.

00
-1

.0
39

.0
8

0.
00

0.
00

-1
.0

39
.0

8
-2

,0
78

.1
6

Jo
h
n
n
y

C
oo

l
T

o
w

in
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-9
24

.0
0

-9
24

.0
0

L
ay

ao
E

n
te

rp
ri

se
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

P
o

st
al

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
31

4.
84

5,
31

4.
84

T
O

T
A

L
0.

00
30

,8
37

.8
7

30
,0

54
.2

5
6

,4
3

0
7
4

2
2
0

,6
6

0
3
5

28
8,

03
3.

21

P
ag

e
1



8:40 AM
(3

CLTC Loan Guaranty Fund
08/18/16 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2016

Jun 30,16

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
BOG (#0101-295976) 10220.94
BOG (#2501-002274) 203,225.71
BOG TCD (#0401 437964) 300000.00

Total Checking/Savings 513,446.65

Other Current Assets
Due to/from General Fund 226,950.94

Total Other Current Assets 226M50.94

Total Current Assets 740,397.59

TOTAL ASSETS 740,397.59

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Fund Balance 590100.40
Retained Earnings 59,899.41
Net Income 90,397.78

Total Equity 74O97.59

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 740,397.59

Page 1



8:39AM CLTC Loan Guaranty Fund
08118)16 Profit & Loss

October 2015 through June 2016

Oct15-Junl6

Income
Interest Income 55059
Payment in Lieu of Taxes - — 89847.19

Total Income 90,397.78

Expense 992
Net Income 90,397.78

Page 1



0
Chamorro Land Trust Commission

June 2016 Revenue Collection Report

0

vate I PUS Receipt # Ac1tNo Account Name Amount Name

6/3/2016 2216091209 3624-52101 Application Fee $5000 Justina Mae Okada Palomo
6/6/20161 2216092057 3624-52101 Application Fee $5000 Anna Marie Halverson
6/6/2016 2216092051 3624-S2lOllApplication Fee $50.00 Anna Marie Halverson
6/6/2016 2216091901 3624-52101Application Fee $50.00 Vicente Bias Peredo

6/6/2016 2216091901 3624-52101 Apphcation Fee $50.00 Mimi Chang Peredo Esperanza
6/6/2016 2216091901 3624-52101 Application Fee J $50.00 Mimi Chang Peredo Esperanza

: 6/6/2016 2216092389 3624-52101 Apphcation Fee $50.00 Frances James San Agustin

6/8/2016 2216093362 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 iulian Guzman Quintanilla
6/16/2016 2216096998 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Richard Adonis Terrazas

6/16/2016 2216096870 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Jose Q. Cruz
6/16/2016 2216097003 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Jaytrine Marie Flores

22 160 974 3 7/2
6/17/2016 216097438 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Susie San Agustin Bias
6/17/2016 2216097817 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Fred Naputi Reyes

6/30/2016 2216103577 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Vicente Tyquiengco Flores Jr.
Total: $700.00

6/1/2016 2216090070 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,500.00 Agfayan, Inc.

6/1/2016 J160611457 3624-54201 Commercial License $769.68 IT&E
6/2/2016 2216091092 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,335.51 US Postal Service

6/3/2016 2216091422 3624-54201 Commercial License $100.00 Asahi Association of Guam

6/7/2016 2216093083 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,348.68 KM Broadcasting of Guam, LLC.

6/13/2016 0LM16015224 3624-54201 Commercial License I $1,592.70 Docomo Pacific

6/13/2016 2216095529 3624-54201 Commercial License $3,500.00 Agfayan, Inc.

6/14/2016 2216095672 3624-54201 Commercial License $850.00 MOYCOM
6/16/2016 2216097204 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,090.05 Sorensen Pacific Broadcasting, Inc.

6/20/2016 2216096504 3624-54201 CommercIal License $8,336.25 Hawaiian Rock Products

6/20/2016 221609850? 3624-54201 Commercial License $3,630.00 Guam Racing Federation
6/21/2016 2216098859 3624-54201 commercial License $1,039.08 Choice Phone, LLC

6/23/2016 2216100247 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,090.05 Sorensen Pacific Broadcasting, Inc.
6/27/2016 2216101917 3624-54201 Commercial License $500.00 Agfayan, Inc.

6/28/2016 J160611631 3624-54201 Commercial License $769.68 IT&E
Total: $27,451.68

6/1/2016 2216090025

6/23/20 16 2216100255
3624-54202 Land Lease $99.00 Jeanette Cdsostomo Cruz
36 24-54202 Land Lease $10.00 Jaynace Terrazas

6/30/20 16 2216103723 3624-54202 Land Lease $79.00 Girard Palomo lbanez
Total: $188.00

CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land

$273.00
$191.16

CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land

Kenneth F.A. Paulino (IJA165)
Jesse C. Naputi (1JA142)
Franky Flores Meno (IJAO1O)

$5,231.99 Fernando 0. Rabago (TAL17S)
$100.00 Annie Arizola (UMA2111)

CLT- Sale of Govt Land $3,337.97 Lawrence F. Meno (IJAO67)
CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land

$4,973.49 Ralph Gregory Sablan
$4,721.29 Vincent D. Meno (IJAD34)

$100.00
Total: $25,232.85

Jesse K. Borja & Therese M. Manglona(13A043)

GrandTotal: $53,572.53

6/3/2016
6/3/2016

2216091462

6/10/2016

2216091605
3669-5700 1

6/13/20 16

366 9-5700 1

6/1/2016 D1M16015199 3669-57001 Cur- Sale olcovt Land $2699.76 Mariano 0. Nauta by Doris LG.Nauta (TALIIO)

6/17/2016

2216091366

6/20/2016
2216097458

DLM16015221 3669-57001 CLT-Sale of Govt Land $3,604.19
3669-5700 1

6/21/20 16
2216098073

3669-57001

6/27/20 16
2216098802

3669-57001

6/30/2016
2216101678

3 669-57001

2216103814
3 669-57001
3 669-57001



C
Chamorro Land Trust Commi5sion

July 2016 Revenue Collection Report

0

Date PUS Receipt 9Account No Account Name Amount Name

7/1/2016 2216104603 (3624-52101 Application Fee $5000 Peter Timothy Manibusan
7/7/2016 2216106401 3624-52101 Application Fee s50.0o! Frank Santos Scharff
7/7/2016 2216106599 3624-S2lollApplication Fee $50.00 Donna Ann SN. Fonseca

7/11/2016 2216107832 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Francine Dolores Ada Cruz

7/15/2016 2216109935 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Dioni Lee Guerrero Sapinoso

7/18/2016 2216110650 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Antonette Marie Finona
7/19/2016 2216111271 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 George Raymond Monita

7/20/2016 DLM16015324 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Eric Joseph Nededog Lizama

7/28/2016 DLM16015344 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Ruth SN. Rojas
7/29/2016 2216115741 3624-52101 Application Fee $50.00 Thomas Edward Matanane

Total: $500.00

7/5/2016 2216105301 3624-54201 Commercial License $21,858.25 Guam International Country Club
7/7/2016 2216106415 3624-54201 Commercial License $4,000.00 Guam Racing Federation

7/7/2016 2216106417 3624-54201 Commercial License $6,537.75 Hawaiian Rock Products
7/8/2016 2216106873 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,348.68 KM Broadcasting of Guam, LLC

7/11/2016 2216107625 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,335.51 US Postal Service
7/12/2016 DLM16015297 3624-54201 Commercial License $3,500.00 Agfayan, Inc.
7/14/2016 2216108973 3624-54201 Commercial Ucense $850.00 Moycom
7/14/2016 2216109319 3624-54201 Commercial License $2,588.00 Guam Racing Federation
7/14/2016 2216109322 3624-54201 Commercial License $2,789.80 Guam Racing Federation

7/14/2016 2216109324 3624-54201 Commercial License $2,840.00 Guam Racing Federation

7/19/2016 2216110916 3624-54201 Commercial License $2,180.10 Sorensen Pacific Broadcasting, Inc.

7/19/2016 2216110922 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,592.70 Docomo Pacific

7/26/2016 2216113465 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,039.08 Choice Phone, LLC.

7/27/2016 2216114590 3624-54201 Commercial License $1,335.51 US Postal Service

7/29/2016 2216115290 3624-54201 Commercial Ucense $1,200.00 Bernard Watson

7/29/2016 DLM16015346 3624-54201 Commercial Ucense $2,000.00 Johnny Cool’s Towing Service
Total: $56,995.38

7/6/2016 2216105472 3624-54202 Land Lease $50.00 Ernie Bias Pangelinan
7/18/2016 2216110791 3624-54202 Land Lease $49.00 Raymond Jr. & Sophia L.B. Sanchez
7/28/2016 2216114898 3624-54201 Land Lease $61.00 Roland Earl Mateo

7/13/2016

7/18/2016
7/29/2016

2216108778
2216110669
2216115776

3669-57001
3669-57001

3669-57001

Total:

CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land
CLT- Sale of Govt Land

Total:

Grand Total:

$160.00

$2,250.00

$3,915.84
$40.00

$6,ZDS.84

$63,861.22

Mary C. Santiago (P1GOS6)
Jesusa C. Morita (FEMAO14)
Annie Arizola (uMA2111)


